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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DRAINAGE BOARD 
Ji'OR THE DAN DEVINE DRAIN 

July 16,2013 

A meeting of the Drainage Board tor the Dan Devine Drain was held in the office 
of the Oaklnnd County Water Resources Commissioner, Public Works Building. One Public 
Works Drive, Waterford, Michigan at 2:00PM on the 16th day of July, 2013. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson. 

PRESENT: Chairperson Jim Nash. Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 

ABSENT: 

Jeff Matis, Vice Chairman ofthe Oakland County Board of Commissioners on 
behalf of Michael J. Gingell, Chairperson of the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners 

Thomas F. Middleton, Chairperson of the Finance Committee, 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

Michael J. Gingell, Chairperson of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

Minutes of the meeting held May 21, 2013 were presented for consideration. It 
was moved by Middleton, supported by Matis, that the minutes be approved. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

Chairperson Nash offered and filed proofs of publication and mailings (as 
attached) of the notice of hearing on a Petition to Locate, Establish and Construct an 
Intra-County Drain Project known as the Dan Devine Drain. 

Chairperson Nash opened the hearing on the Petition (as attached) and asked the 
board secretary if any written objections had been received. No written objections had 
been received. 

Chairperson Nash asked if there were any comments or objections from the 
public. There were nont!. 

Chairperson Nash asked for comments from Water Resources Commissioner's 
Office personnel. Glenn Appel, P.E. Chief Engineer, indicated that the drain is necessary 
to implement improvements of an existing watercourse and detention basin to alleviate 
tlooding concerns, prevent stream bank erosion and address sedimentation problems 
along the water course and in the detention basin and to facilitate proper maintenance of 
the drain. 



An engineering report from Hubbell Roth & Clark, Inc. (as attached) was 
presented. After discussion, it was moved by Matis, supported by Middleton to receive 
and file the report. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

It was moved by Middleton, supported by Matis, to close the hearing. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

A motion to consider adoption of the resolution approving the petition and project 
and directing the issuance of a Final Order of Determination was presented. It was moved 
by Middleton, supported by Matis to adopt the resolution as presented. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

Chairman Nash executed the Final Order of Determination (as attached) and 
presented it to the Board. It was moved by Matis, supported by Middleton to adopt the 
resolution to accept and file the Final Order of Determination. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

A resolution to appoint Dickinson Wright PLLC as bond counsel was presented. 
It was moved by Middleton, supported by Matis, to appoint Dickinson Wright PLLC as 
bond counsel. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

A resolution to appoint Hubbell Roth & Clark, Inc. as engineers was presented. J. 
Bryan Williams indicated that the appointment was being offered at the request of the 
Charter Township of Bloomfield. (See attached letter from Wayne Domine, P.E. 
Director, Engineering & Environmental Services Department, Bloomfield Township.) 
After discussion, it was moved by Middleton, supported by Matis, to appoint Hubbell 
Roth & Clark, Inc. as engineers. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 



A resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Project Expenditures with 
Bond Proceeds was presented. After discussion, it was moved by Middleton, supported 
by Matis, to adopt the resolution as presented. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

It was moved by Nash, supported by Middleton, to certii)t attendance and 
authorize pro-rata payment of $25.00 per day to Mr. Middleton and Mr. Matis. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

;:_0Q 
--~r-,.~-J-i_m_N_a_s_h_, Chairperson -=-



STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete 
copy of the minutes of the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Oakland County. Michigan, held 
on the 16th day of July, 2013 and that the said minutes are on file in the office ofthe Oakland 
County Water Resources Commissioner and are available to the public. 

I further certify that notice of the meeting was posted at least 18 hours in advance 
of the meeting at the office of the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner which is the 
principal office of the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District. 

July 13 , 2013 



MINUTES OF THE MEETJNG OF THE DRAINAGE BOARD 
FOR THE DAN DEVINE DRAIN 

February 28, 2017 

A meeting of the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain was held in the office of the 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner, Public Works Building, One Public Works 
Drive, Waterford, Michigan at 2:00p.m. on the 28111 day of February, 2017. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson. 

PRESENT: Jim Nash, Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 

Michael Gingell, Chairperson ofthe Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

Thomas F. Middleton, Chairperson of the Finance Committee, 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

Minutes of the meeting held January 24, 2017 were presented fot· consideration. It 
was moved by Middleton, supported by Gingell, that the minutes be approved. 

ADOPTED: Y cas - 3 
Nays - 0 

Chairperson Nash asked if there were any public comments. There were none. 

A resolution to direct the Chairperson to prepare 11 special assessment roll (as 
attached) in the amount of$1,975,000 was presented. It was moved by Middleton, 
supported by Gingell, to authorize the Chairperson to prepare a special assessment roll in 
the amount of$1,975,000. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

The Chairperson presented to the Drainage Board Special Assessment RoJl No. 1 
for the Dan Devine Drain, which special assessment roll contains a statement signed by 
the Chairperson and the other members ofthe Drainage Board to the efiect that it was 
prepared in accordance with the directions of the Drainage Board and the statutory 
provisions applicable thereto. 

A resolution to approve the special assessment roll in the amount of$1,975,000 
(as attached) was presented. It was moved by Gingell, supported by Middleton, to 
approve the special assessment roll in the amount of $1,975,000 as presented. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 
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A resolution to authorize the issuance of Drain Bonds (as attached) was presented. 
It was moved by Middleton, supported by Gingell, to authorize the issuance of Drain 
Bonds. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

A Memorandum from Mike Walsh, P .E. dated February 28, 2017 (as attached) 
recommending the Board hire FK Engineering Associates for Geotechnical 
Instrumentation Monitoring services in accordance with the attached proposal dated 
January 10, 2017 for an amount not to exceed $30,000 was presented. It was moved by 
Gingell, supported by Middleton, to hire FK Engineering Associates for Geotechnical 
Instrumentation Monitoring services for an amount not to exceed $30,000. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

It was moved by Nash, supported by Gingell to certify attendance and authorize 
pro rata payment of $25 per day to Mr. Gingell and Mr. Middleton. 

ADOPTED: Yeas - 3 
Nays - 0 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
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RESOLUTION DIRECTING CHAIRPERSON TO 
PREPARE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a petition filed with the Oakland County Drain Commissioner, 
proceedings have been taken under the provisions of Chapter 20 of Act No. 40, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1956, as amended, for the acquisition and construction of the Dan Devine Drain in the 
County of Oukland, State of Michigan at an estimated cost of $1,975,000 and that amount has 
been assessed against the Charter Township of Bloomfield, the County of Oakland and the State 
of Michigan (the "Public Corporations") in accordance with the Final Order of Apportionment 
that has been filed in the office ofthe Chairperson ofthe Drainage Board. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DRAINAGE BOARD FOR TI.JE DAN 
DEVINE DRAIN, as follows: 

1. The Chairperson is directed to prepare a special assessment roll assessing the sum of 
$1,975,000 against the Public Corporntions to defray the cost of the Dan Devine Drain. 

2. The amount assessed against the Public Corporations shall be divided into annual 
installments by the Chairperson on behalf of the Drainage Board in the special assessment roiJ 
and the aggregate annual installments shull equal the annual principal maturities of the bonds 
issued by the Drainage District. 

3. The special assessment roll shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 20 of Act No. 40, Public Acts of Michigan, 1956, as amended, and when the special 
assessment roll shall have been prepared it shall be presented to the Drainage Board for approval. 
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SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL NO. 1 FOR THE 
OAN DEVINE OAAIN PROJECT 

(An Intra-County O<oln in Oakl•nd County. M'c:hloan) 

TOTAL ESTIMAT@ C.Q.!il. 

TOTAL AMOUNT ASSESSED: 

I!MQ!JNT ASSESSED JN INSTALLMENTS,;. 

AMQVNT TO BE P~EPAIO: 

Pub!jc Corporations 

Chortnr Township of Bloomf!eld 
Counly of Oakl:mo 
SttliQ of Mlchf03n 

NUMDER OF ANI-lUALINSTALLMENTS 

INTEREST: 

INS{AI.!.MENTS 

lnctollmonl 
Quo M:vch 1 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

laslotus.oakdr4G-dov:ne-sa roii·20H.xla 

s 

s 

Chonor Townsh p 
of Bloomfiold 

127,036 50 
126,324.50 
132.46<1.00 
130,003.~0 
140,743.00 
144,882.50 
153,101 .50 
1(;7,301.00 
161,440.50 
105,580.00 

1.447,537.00 

$1 976 000 

$1,976.000 

$1,748,448 

$220,55~ 
Amount Anc~110d Amount Assessed to bo 

Coffinntng~~e to bo Prooo•d CoUoctod In ln~tenmontH 

s 

73 293°~ s 
15,'236% 
11.471% s 

1 
s 

22G.552 $ 

1,447.537 
300,911 

County of 

Qru!ll!!l!l 

26,411 50 
26,875.50 
27.538.00 
28.396.50 
29,267.00 
30.117.50 
31.838.50 
32.699 00 
33,550.50 
34.420.00 

300,911.00 

10, due March 1 or each ye111, 
baginning 2018 

lnlorest on unpaid lnslliDmontslo b<IQin 
on April I. 2017, and lo accruo al 
a rata not lo e~cecd an am11unt sufficient 
to p;~y tho lnlcroel on lho bonds , lnlorosl 
Is payable on se~tombnr 1, 20\7, and 
lheroaltor on M;~rch 1 of each year 

!91!!1 

s 153 448.00 
155,000.00 
160,000 IY.) 

165,000.00 
170.000.00 
175.000.00 
185,000.00 
190,000.00 
195,000.00 
200,000.00 

$ 1.748,440.00 

We hereby ccnJfy lhollhe foregoing spoc:lal 
"'Gosamonl roU woa PfltP:Il~U In IICC:Oidanco 
wllh !he dllec:Uom of tho Or.llnoge 8o3Jd lor 
for tho Don 0 &-lilr~n and the 

tutory ovlsloos a~?llcable th 

211().12017 



RESOLUTION APPROVING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

WllEREAS, the Chairperson presented to the Drainage Board Special Assessment Roll 
No. I for the Dan Devine Drain, which special assessment roll contains u statement signed by the 
Chairperson and at least one other member of the Drainage Board to the effect that it was 
prepared in accordance with the directions of the Drainage Board and the statutory provisions 
upplicable thereto. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DRAINAGE BOARD FOR THE DAN 
DEVINE DRAIN, as follows: 

I . Special Assessment Roll No. 1 for the Dan Devine Drain, upon which special assessment 
roll is spread assessments against the Charter Township of Bloomfield, the County of Oakland 
and the State of Michigan in the principal sum of$1,975,000, is approved and ordered filed with 
the Chairperson. 

2. The Chairperson shall execute the statement atlixed to the roll setting forth the date of 
such approval. 

3. The annual installments of the assessments against the Charter Township of Bloomfield 
and the County of Oakland, ns set forth in the roll, shall become due each year on the date 
indicated in the roll, and the amount of the assessments from time to time unpaid shall bear 
interest, from the date set forth in the roll until paid, which is sufficient to pay the interest on the 
bonds to be issued by the Drainage District which interest shall be payable as set forth in the roll. 
The assessment in the amount of $226,552 against the State of Michigan shall be prepaid on or 
before April I, 2017. 

4. Each of the Charter Township of Bloomfield and the County of Oakland may pay in 
advance of maturity all or any part of un annual installment by surrendering to the Drainage 
District bonds issued in anticipation of the special assessments of a like principal amount 
maturing in the same calendar year as the installment. All bonds so surrendered shall be 
cancelled. 

5. The Chairperson of the Drainage Board, within 1 0 days of the date hereof, shall certify to 
each public corporation the amount of the total assessment against it, the amounts of the various 
installments, the due date of each installment and the interest upon the assessment from time to 
time unpaid. Also, each year as provided by law, the Chairperson shall notify each public 
corporation of the amount of the installment and interest next becoming due. 
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BOND RESOLUTION 
DRAIN BONDS, SERIES 2017 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a petition filed with the Oakland County Water Resources 
Commissioner, proceedings have been taken under the provisions of Chapter 20 of Act No. 40, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1956, as amended, for the acquisition and construction of the Dan 
Devine Drain in the County of Oakland, State of Michigan at an estimated cost of $1,975,000 
and $ J ,975,000 has been assessed against the Charter Township of Bloomfield, the County of 
Oakland and the State of Michigan (the "Public Corporations") in accordance with the Final 
Order of Apportionment that has been filed in the office of the Chairperson of the Drainage 
Board of the Dan Devine Drain (the "Drainage Board"); and 

WI IEREAS, a special assessment roll designated "Special Assessment Roll No. 1 for the 
Dan Devine Drain" was approved by the Drainage Board on this date and upon which special 
assessment roll $1,975,000 was assessed against the Public Corporations; and 

WHEREAS, the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District") proposes 
to sell bonds to defray pa11 of the cost of the acquisition und construction of the Dan Devine 
Drain, 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DRAINAGE BOARD FOR THE DAN 
DEY lNE DRAIN, as follows: 

1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS - PURPOSE. Bonds of the Drainage District 
aggregating the principal sum ofnot to exceed One Million Seven Hundred Fot1y-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($1 ,745,000) (the "Bonds") shall be issued and sold in one or more series pursuant to the 
provisions of Act 40, Public Acts of Michigan, 1956, as amended, and other applicable statutory 
provisions, for the purpose of defraying part of the cost of acquiring and constructing the Dan 
Devine Drain. 

2. BOND DETAILS. The Bonds shall be designated "Drain Bonds, Series 20 J 7"; shall be 
dated as of such date as shall be approved by the Chairperson; shall be issued in such aggregate 
principal amount as determined by the Chairperson; shaiJ be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be 
fully registered; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser 
thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding 6% per annum, to be determined upon 
the sale thereof payable on such dates as shall be determined by the Chairperson; and shall be 
serial bonds and/or term bonds nnd mature not Iuter than April l, 2027, on such dates and in such 
years as shall be determined by the Chairperson. If requested by the original purchaser of the 
Bonds and determined by the Chairperson, the Bonds may be issued in the fmm of a single bond 
with un exhibit containing the principal maturity amounts and applicable interest rates and due 
dates. 

3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST. The principal of and interest on the 
Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States. Principal shall be payable upon 
presentation and SUJTcndcr of the Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally 

-J-



mature; provided, however, that the Chairperson may determine that such presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds is not required for payment. Interest shall be paid to the Registered 
Owner of each Bond as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15th day 
of the calendar month preceding the month in which the interest payment is due. Interest shall be 
paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent 
to the registered owner at the registered address or by such other means as determined by the 
Chairperson. 

4. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM. Initially, if requested by the original purchaser of the Bonds 
and determined by the Chairperson, one fully-registered bond for each matu1ity, in the aggregate 
amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company ("DTC") for the benefit of other parties (the "Pa11icipants") in the 
book-entry-only transfer system of DTC. In the event the Drainage Board determines that it is in 
the best interest of the Drainage District not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that 
the interests of the holders of the Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of 
transfer is continued, the Drainage Board may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying 
agent, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of bond 
certificates. In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and 
exchange bond certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or "beneficial owner" in 
appropriate amounts in accordance with this Resolution. DTC may determine to discontinue 
providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the Drainage 
Disllict and the bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect 
thereto under applicable law or the Drainage District may dctennine that DTC is incapable of 
discharging its duties and may so advise DTC. In either such event, the Drainage District shall 
use reasonable efforts to locate another securities depository. Under such circumstances (if there 
is no successor securities depository), the Drainage District and the bond registrar and paying 
agent shall be obligated to deliver bond certificates in accordance with the procedures 
established by this Resolution. In the event bond certificates are issued, the provisions of this 
Resolution shall apply to, among other things, the transfer and exchange of such certificates and 
the method of payment of principal of and interest on such ccttifieates. Whenever DTC requests 
the Drainage District and the bond registrar and paying agent to do so, the Drainage District and 
the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after 
reasonable notice to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the Bonds to 
any Participant having Bonds certified to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities 
depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, so long as any 
Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to 
the principal of: interest on and redemption premium, if any, on such Bonds and all notices with 
respect to the Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the Blanket 
Issuer Letter of Representations relating to the Bonds. The Chairperson of the Drainage Board 
and the County Treasurer are each authorized to sign the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations 
on behalf of the Drainage District, in such form as such officer deems necessary or appropriate, 
in order to accomplish the issuance of the Bonds in accordance with law and this Resolution. 
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Notwithstanding any other provision of this section to the contrary, if the Chairperson 
deems it to be in the best interest of the Drainage District, the Bonds shall not initially be issued 
through the book-entry-only transfer system of DTC. 

5. PRIOR REDEMPTION. The Bonds may be subject to redemption upon such terms and 
conditions, or may not be subject to redemption, as shall be determined by the Chairperson. 

6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYlNG AGENT. The County Treasurer (the Treasurer of 
the Drainage District) shall designate, and may enter into an agreement with, a bond registrar and 
paying agent for the Bonds that shall be a bank Ol' trust company located in the State of Michigan 
that is qualified to act in such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the 
State of Michigan. The Treasurer from time to time as required may designate a similarly 
qualified successor bond registrar and paying agent. Notwithstanding any provision of this 
section to the contrary, if the County Treasurer deems it to be in the best interest of the County, 
the County Treasurer shall serve as bond registrar and paying agent for the Bonds. 

7. EXECUTJON. AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS. The Bonds shall 
be executed in the name of the Drainage District by the facsimile signatures of the Chairperson 
and at least one other member of the Drainage Board and authenticated by the manual signature 
of the bond registrar and paying agent or an authorized representative of the bond registrar and 
paying agent. After the Bonds have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the original 
purchaser thereof, they shall be delivered by the Treasurer to the purchaser upon receipt of the 
purchase price. Additional Bonds bearing the facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and at 
least one other member of the Drainage Board may be delivered to the bond registrar and paying 
agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or transfer of Bonds. The 
bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each Bond the date of its authentication. 

8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS. Any Bond, upon surrender thereof to the 
bond registrar und paying agent with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond 
registrar and paying agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, 
at the option of the registered owner thereof, may be exchanged for Bonds of any other 
authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing 
the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond. 

Each Bond shall he transferable only upon the books of the Drainage District, which shall 
be kept for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon sun·endcr of such Bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 

Upon the exchange or transfer of any Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on behalf 
of the Drainage District shall cancel the surrendered bond and shall authenticate and deliver to 
the transferee a new Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of the same aggregate 
principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond. 
J f, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent authenticates and delivers a new Bond 
pursuant to this section, payment of interest on the Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and 
paying agent shall endorse upon the new Bond the following: 11Paymcnt of interest on this Bond 
is in default. The last date to which interest has been paid is , __ 
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The Drainage District and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the 
person in whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the books of the Drainage District as 
the absolute owner of such bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of 
receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes, and 
all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 3 of this Resolution shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Drainage 
District nor the bond regislrar and paying agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 
The Drainage District agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and paying agent harmless 
from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or liability incun·ed by il, 
acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so treating such registered owner. 

For every exchange or transfer of Bonds, the Drainage District or the bond registrar and 
paying agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall be 
paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise 
of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 

9. FORM OF BONDS. The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form with such 
changes thereto ns opproved by the Chairperson: 
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INTEREST RATE 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 20 17 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter 
provided, upon presentation and surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of 
---------' Michigan, the bond registrar and paying agent, or 
at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated pursuant to the 
Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the 
registration books at the close of business on the I 5111 day of the calendar month preceding the 
month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond 
registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the 
registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage District's obligation with 
respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified 
above. Interest is payable on the first day of und in each year, 
commencing on , 201 _. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day yea1· of twelve 
30-day months. 

This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
-----~--:-~---::- Dollars($ issued by the Drainage District under and 
pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially Act 
No. 40, Public Acts of I 956, as amended), a bond authorizing resolution adopted by the 
Drainage Ooard for the Drainage District (the "Resolution") and an order of the Chairperson of 
the Drainage Board for the purpose of defraying part of the cost of acquiring and constructing the 
Dan Devine Drain. The bonds of this series are issued in anticipation of, and the principal and 
interest on the bonds are payable from, special assessments assessed against the Charter 
Township of Bloomfield (the uTownship") and the County of Oakland (the "County"), on 
Special Assessment Roll No. 1 for the Dan Devine Drain (an intra-county drain), which 
assessments arc the general obligations of said public corporations. The full faith and credit of 
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the Township and the County have been pledged for the making of such payments. The full faith 
and credit of the Drainage District have been pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of 
and interest on this bond as the same become due und. in addition, the full faith and credit of the 
County have been pledged therefore. Taxes imposed by the Township for the payment of special 
assessments arc subject to constitutional, statutory and charter tax rate limitations. Taxes 
imposed by the County for payment of special assessments and the bonds are subject to 
constitutional and statutory tax rate limitations. 

This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the 
Drainage District kept fOl' that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the 
surrender of this bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond 
registrar and paying agent duly executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized 
in writing. Upon the exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized 
denomination, in the same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, 
shall be authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefore as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided. Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 

The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds 
or portions of bonds that have been selected for redemption. 

MANDATORY PRIOR REDEMPTION 

Bonds maturing in the year -~·- are subject to mandatory prior redemption at pat· and 
nccmed interest as follows: 

lot. 

Redemption Date 
Principal Amount of 

Bonds to be Redeemed 

Bonds or pm1ions of bonds to be redeemed by mandatory redemption shall be selected by 

(REPEAT IF MORE THAN ONE TERM BOND) 

OPTIONAL PRIOR REDEMPTION 

Bonds maturing prior to 1, 20_ , are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity. Bonds maturing on and after 1, 20_ , are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity at the option of the County, in such order as shall be determined by the County, on any 
date on and after 1, 20 . Bonds of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be 
pm1ially redeemed in the amount of$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. IfJess than all of the 
bonds maturing in any year ure to be redeemed, the bonds or potiions of bonds to be redeemed 

-6-



shall be selected by lot. The redemption price shall be the par value of the bond or portion of the 
bond called to be redeemed plus interest to the date fixed for redemption and a premium as 
follows: 

% of the par value of ench bond called for redemption on or after - --- J, 20_ , 
but prior to I, 20 _ ; 

% of the par value of each bond called for redemption on or after ---- J, 20_ , 
but prior to l, 20_ ; 

No premium if ca!Jed for redemption on or after _ _ _ _ 1, 20_. 

Not less than thirty nor more than sixty days' notice of redemption shall be given to the 
registered owners of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each registered owner at the 
registered address. Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date tixed fol' redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to 
exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, 
existed, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by 
law, and that the total indebtedness of said Drainage District, including the series of bonds of 
which this bond is one, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, by its Drainage Board, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by the 
manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and at least one other member of the Drainage 
Board. This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by the bond registrar and paying agent or an authorized representative of the bond 
registrar and paying agent. 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

By: 

Chairperson of the Drainage Board 

And: 

Member of the Drainage Board 
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CERTJFICA TE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 

Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 

By: 
Authorized Representative 

AUTJ IENTICA TJON DATE: 
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ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

(please print or type name. address and taxpayer identification numbel' of transferee) the within 
bond and all rights thereunder and hereby inevocably constitutes and appoints 

attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof. with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

Dated: ------------------

Signature Guaranteed: 

Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

END OF BOND FORM 
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10. SECURITY. The Bonds shall be issued in anticipation of the collt::ction of special 
assessments against the Chm1er Township of Bloomfield and the County of Oakland on Special 
Assessment Roll No. I for the Dan Devine Drain. The full faith and credit of the Drainage 
District are pledged hereby for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds 
as the same shall become due. The full faith and credit of the County of Oakland will be pledged 
for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds if a resolution to that effect 
is approved by two-thirds of the members of the Board of Commissioners of the County of 
Oakland. 

I I. DEFEASANCE. In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or 
obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a 
combination thereof, the principal of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at 
times and in amounts sufficient to pay, at maturity or irrevocable caJI for earlier optional 
redemption, the principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds or any portion of the 
Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this Resolution shall be defeased with respect to such 
Bonds and the owners of the Bonds shall have no further rights under this Resolution except to 
receive payment of the principal of, premium if any, nnd interest on the bonds from the cash or 
securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains thereon and to transfer and exchange bonds 
as provided herein. 

12. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND; CAPITALIZED INTEREST . There has been 
established for the Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund which shall be kept in a separate bank 
uccount. From the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds there shall be set aside in the Principal and 
Interest Fund (i) any accrued interest received from the purchaser of the Bonds at the time of 
delivery of the sume, (ii) such premium, if any, received from the purchaser of the Bonds at the 
time of delivery of the same in such amount as detennined by the Chairperson, and (iii) such 
amount, if any, determined by the Chairperson to pay interest on the Bonds on such date or dates 
determined by the Chairperson, which interest is hereby capitalized. All $226,552 of the 
assessment against the State of Michigan, the first $2,854.50 of the assessment against the 
Charter Township of Bloomfield and the first $593.50 of the assessment against the County of 
Oakland on Special Assessment Roll No. I for the Dan Devine Drain shall be placed in the 
Construction Fund described in Section 13 hereof. All other collections (including both 
principal ·and interest) on Special Assessment Roll No. I for the Dan Devine Drain shull be 
placed in the Principal and Interest Fund and shall be used solely to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds authorized herein and additional bonds issued in anticipation of such 
puyments. 

13. CONSTRUCTION FUND. The remainder of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall 
be set aside in a Construction Fund and used to pay the expenses of the issuance of the Bonds 
and to acquire and construct the Dan Devine Drain. 

14. ESTIMATES OF PERIOD OF USEFULNESS AND COST. The estimated period of 
usefulness of the Dan Devine Drain for which the Bonds arc to be issued is detetmincd to be 
twenty-five (25) years and upwards, and the estimated cost thereof in the amount of $1,975,000 
is approved und adopted. 



15. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY. The issuance and sale of the 
Bonds may be subject to permission being grunted therefore by the Michigan Department of 
Treasury of the State of Michigan under Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, and 
the Chairperson hereby is authorized and dirt:ctcd, if necessary, to make application to the 
Michigan Department of Treasury for permission to issue and sell the Bonds as provided by the 
terms of this Resolution and to do all things in connection therewith. 

16. SALE. ISSUANCE. DELIVERY. TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS. 
Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated of Detroit, Michigan is hereby appointed by the 
Drainage Board as financial consultant to the Drainage District for the sale and issuance of the 
Bonds. The Drainage Board hereby authorizes the Chairperson to determine the final principal 
amount of the Bonds to be sold and to determine the other bond details as described in Section 2 
hereof and the terms and conditions for prior redemption, if any, as described in Section 5 
hereof. In addition, in order to save the cost of publication of an official notice of sale and to 
provide the Droinage District with maximum flexibility in the timing and sale of the Bonds, the 
Drainage Board hereby determines that it will sell the Bonds at a negotiated sale after solicitation 
of proposals from prospective purchasers by its financial consultant. The Drainage District's 
financial consultunt is authorized to solicit proposals from at least twenty-five prospective 
purchasers and to circulate a Request for Proposal at least seven days prior to the date fixed for 
receipt of proposals for the purchase of the Bonds. The Request for Proposal shall be in 
substantially the form approved by the Chairperson at the time of sale with such changes therein 
as are not inconsistent with this Resolution. The financial consultant is hereby designated to act 
for and on behalf of the Drainage District to receive proposals for the purchase ofthe Bonds and 
to luke all other steps necessary in connection with the sale and delivery thereof. The 
Chairperson is hereby authorized to determine the low proposer on the Bonds and to award the 
Bonds to such low proposer. The Chairperson is hereby authorized to do all other things 
necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the Bonds in 
accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. If determined to be in the best interest of the 
Drainuge District by the Chairperson, the Drainage District shall utilize the services of a 
placement agent to be selected by the Chairperson in connection with the sale of the Bonds. In 
such case, the Chairperson is authorized to enter into an agreement with the placement agent and 
take such other action as the Chairperson deems necessary or desirable. 

17. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS. Upon receipt by the Chairperson or Treasurer of the 
Drainage District of pmof of ownership of an unmatured Bond, of satisfactory evidence that the 
Bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or WI'Ongfully taken and of security or indemnity which 
complies with applicable Jaw and is satisfactory to the Chairperson or Treasurer, the Chairperson 
or Treasurer may uuthorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed Bond 
to replace the Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable 
law. In the event an outstanding matured Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, 
the Chairperson or Treasurer may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to pay the Bond 
without presentation upon the receipt of the same documentation required lor the delivery of a 
replacement Bond. The bond registrar and paying agent for each new Bond delivered or paid 
without presentution as provided above shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel 
fees, that may be incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the Drainage District in the 
premises. Any Bond delivered pursuant the provisions of this Section 17 in lieu of any Bond 
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lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor and be 
secured in the same manner as the Bond in substitution for which such Bond was delivered. 

18. TAX COVENANT. The Drainage District covenants to comply with all requirements of 
the Code necessary to assure that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Chairperson, the County Treasurer and 
other approprinte County officials arc authorized to do all things necessary to assure compliance 
with any such covenants. 

19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT. The Drainage District shall cause the preparation of an 
official statement for the Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-l2 
issued under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule") and shall do all other 
things necessary to enable compliance with the Rule. After the award of the Bonds, the Drainage 
District will provide copies of a 01 final official statement'' (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the 
Rule) on u timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the successful bidder or 
bidders to enable such bidder or bidders to comply with paragraphs (b)(3) and (b)(4) of the Rule 
and the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaldng Board. 

20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE. The Chairperson is hereby authorized, if necessary, to 
execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of the Drainage District (i) a cer1ificate of the 
Drainage District to comply with the requirements for a continuing disclosure undertaking of the 
Drainage District pursuant to subsection (b)(S) of the Rule and (ii) amendments to such 
certificate from time to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and 
any amendments thereto arc collectively referred to herein as the "Continuing Disclosure 
Certificute"). The Drainage District hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and 
carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The remedies for any 
failure of the Drainage District to comply with and carry out the provisions of the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate shall be as set fot1h therein. 

21. SUPPLEMENTAL ORDER. If the Bonds are issued in aggregate principal amount less 
than $1,745,000, the Chairperson shall enter a supplemental order amending the special 
assessments and annual installments of the special assessments against the Charter Township of 
Bloomfield and the County of Oakland due on Special Assessment Roll No. l for the Dan 
Devine Drain to correspond to the principal due on the Bonds. 

22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as 
they may be in conflict herewith are hereby rescinded. 

BLOOMFIELD 9007·4231750525v1 
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OAKLAND COUNTY 
WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER MEMORANDUM 
TO: Jim Nash, Chairman 

Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District 

FROM: Mike Walsh, P.E., Civil Engineer meg) 
SUBJECT: Dan Devine Drain 

Geotechnical Instrumentation (Vibration) Monitoring Consultant 

DATE: February 28, 2017 

-··--·---- -----···--··----
Construction of the Dan Devine Drain is expected to begin at the end of Aprll2017. Heavy equipment such as 
bacl~hoes, front~end loaders, and dump trucl<s will be used to construct the drain. The homes located at 831 
Great Oaks Drive and 847 Great Oaks Drive are located close to the work area and within 10 to 15 feet of the 
drain. Because of their close proximity to the work area, a certain amount of rlsl\ exists that vibration of the 
ground caused by work in the area could adversely affect these homes. 

In order to mitigate this risk, we are recommend'ng that Interior and exterior inspections of the homes be 
conducted to document the condition of the homes before and after construction and that geotechnical 
instrumentation (vibration) monitoring be conducted near these homes during construction. Note that a 
provision in the easement for vibration monitoring and a home inspection was needed in order to obtain the 
easement from the property owners at 847 Great Oaks Drive. 

We are recommending that the home inspections, vibration monitoring, and other services including reporting 
be provided by Fl< Engineering Associates (Ff<E) in accordance with their attached proposal dated January 10, 
2017 for a not-to-exceed amount of $30,000. FI<E has an existing blanl<et contract (No. 4863) with the County 
and has worked with this office on other projects including the 37055 Howard Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation 
project and the Oakland Macomb Interceptor. 

If approved, vibration monitoring and other data will be reviewed daily by FKE. Should the vibration exceed 
safe revels, the contactor will be notified to temporarily halt construction until adjustments can be made or 
alternate methods of construction determined. 

Requested Action: Please authorize the WRC to employ FK Engineering Associates for Geotechnical 
Instrumentation Monitoring Services for the Dan Devine Drain in accordance with 
the attached proposal and Oakland County Purchasing Contract No. 4863 for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $30,000. 

OAKLAND COUNTY WATER R€SoliRCES COMMISSIONER 
Page 1 of 1 Rev.: 11/0!i/06 ] 



FK Engineering Associates 
Excellence in Infrastructure and UndergroLmd Engineering 

30425 Stephenson Highway 
Madison Heights, Ml/18071 
Phone: 248-817-2946 

Mr. Mike Walsh, P.E. 
Oaklrmd County WRC 
One Public Works Drive, Bldg. 95 West 
Waterford, Ml 48328 

RE: Proposal on the Dan Devine Drain 
Geotechnical lnstt·umentation Monitoring Services 
Bloomfield Township, Michigan 

Dear Mr. Walsh, 

~IFKEI 

January 10, 2017 

In response to your November 17 request, FK Engineering (FKE) is pleased to present this proposal 
to perform geotechnical instrumentation monitoring services during construction efforts for the 
proposed improvements to the Dan Devine Drain located in Bloomfield Township, Michigan. 
Details regarding our proposal are presented as follows, including background information, our scope 
of services, and associated professional fees. 

Project Backgrouud 

Per our recent correspondence, FK Engineering (FKE) understands that the Office of the Oakland 
County Water Resources Commissioner (OCWRC) is planning improvements to the Dan Devine 
Drain in April, 2017. A pm1ion of the drain improvement work will be performed adjacent to two 
residential homes (831 and 847 Great Oaks Drive). 

Based on a drawing provided by OCWRC (HRC Drawing 05, Plan & Profile to Stn. 17+00 dated 
March 2014), the construction adjacent to the residence will be comprised of bank cut (excavation) 
operations increasing the cross-sectional area of the existing drain. Based on the drawing, it appears 
the both residential homes nrc within 10 to 15 feet fi'om the proposed drain improvement extents. 

To address concerns about potential impacts to the noted residential homes as a result of the 
proposed construction activities, OCWRC is seeking a proposal from FKE to provide pre and post 
condition survey services and geotechnical instrumentation monitoring during construction activities 
lhrough this area. 



FK Engineering Associates January I 0, 2017 

Scope of Services 

The following scope of work is proposed to perform the pre and post-condition survey set·vices and 
geotechnical instrumentation monitoring during construction activities in the area identified in the 
Project Background. We have separated these services into Phases to clearly present our proposed 
approach. 

Phase I - Pre-Construction Condition Survey 
• We will perform a pre-condition sutvcy of the two residential homes located at 831 and 847 

Great Oaks Drive. This work should occur at least two weeks before construction starts in 
this area. The survey will include: 

- Physical observation and documentation of the exterior of the homes, noted existing 
defects (cracks, damage, etc.) 

- Through coordination with OCWRC, complete condition survey within the two 
homes, with a concentration on those rooms closest to the proposed construction area. 

- Take photographs of observed conditions. 
- Video Record the areas observed. 
- Document our findings in Summary Report. Copies of all reports, videos, etc. shall 

be provided to HRC, WRC, and homeowners. 

Phase II - Install Geotechnical Monitoring Devices 
• Based on the observations made during Phase I, we will develop a geotechnical monitoring 

program. The program is envisioned to consist of the following: 
- Installation of crack gauges on existing exterior masonry and/or foundation cracks at 

the homes. This may include crack gauges on the homes' exterior where applicable. 
We have assumed up to 8 crack gauges will be installed. 

- Installation and base-lining of two geo-phones to monitor vibrations throughout the 
construction period. We have assumed one geophone on each side (east and west) of 
the proposed construction area. We intend to usc a Minimate Plus (or equivalent) to 
monitor vibration. This device includes a Geophonc and overpressure microphone. 

- Development of an Instrumentation Action Level protocol for OCWRC review and 
approval, prior to construction activities starting in the area. This protocol will be 
developed to provide "alert" levels based on construction caused vibrations. Action 
levels will be established to provide warning that construction activities are 
exceeding expected vibrations levels, allowing the construction activities to be 
adjusted us necessary to reduce vibrations. 

• Perform geotechnical monitoring services for duration of 15 construction days (expected 
construction schedule is 6!27/2017 to 7/14/2017). We intend to visit the site each day to 
observe conditions around the two homes, monitor installed cracks gauges, and download 
vibration monitoring data. We estimate up to 4 hour.; site time per visit during this period 
and will document our observations in Daily Field Reports. 

c. \UIP.rs\FKE HP\Desktop\Oevlnc Dr01tn Geotct h Monltorlnc Proponl_f K( _1·10.2017 .dooc 
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Fl< Engineering Associates January 10,2017 

• We will prepare and distribute two weekly geotechnical instrumentation monitoring reports 
during this period to summarize our findings and document appropriate Action Level 
activities. 

Phase Ill - P9st·Construction Condition Survey 

• We will repeat the services outlined in Phase I and compare post-construction conditions 
to prepare a record for OCWRC usc. 

• We will prepare a Final Report that will summarize the work completed, instrumentation 
installed, monitoring performed and tinal findings and observations. 

Profcssionnl Fees 

ror the pre- and post-construction surveys and the instrument installation and monitoring activities 
and reporting as discussed herein, our Cost Plus cstim:ete is $30,000. These costs are broken down 
per Phusc as follows: 

Phase 1-
Phase 11-
Phase JJJ-

$5,000 
$17,000 
$8,000 (includes Final Report) 

All work under this proposal and any additional required services will be performed in accordance 
with the rate schedule in our rates as established by our existing OCWRC Contract No. 004863. 

Terms and conditions for performance of our services will be in accordance with Oakland County 
Purchasing Contract No. 004863. 

We appreciate this opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration. We understand that 
the proposed scope of services as discussed in this proposal will be performed under our 
Contract with OCWRC's (Contract No. 004863). 

Sincerely, 

FK Engineering~ 

~ • 

ZFC/FJK 

cc: Mr. Steve Korth- Contract No. 004863 Administrator 

C \VSers\FKE HP\Oesktop\Oevlne Crain Gcolech MonllorlnR Propos~I_FKE_l·lO 20t7.dotx 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)SS. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the 
minutes of the Dan Devine Drain, Oakland County, Michigan, held on the 28111 day of February, 
2017, and that the minutes are on file in the office of the Oakland County Water Resources 
Commissioner and are available to the public. 

I further certify that the notice of the meeting was posted at least 18 hours in advance of 
the meeting at the office of the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner which is the 
principal office of the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District. _..---..... 

Dated: March 12_, 2017 
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SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL NO. 1 FOR THE 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN PROJECT 

(An Intra-County Drain In Oakland County, Ml~h 'gon) 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST. 

TOTAL AMOUNT ASSESSED: 

AMOUNT ASSESSED IN INSTALLMENTS: 

AMQ!,!NT TO BE PREPAID: 

Eubllc ~orgo[i!tlon§ 

Charter Township of Bloomfield 
County of Oakland 
State of Michigan 

t:l!.!Miil~B OF ~NNUAL INSTA~LMENTS. 

tt:ji!iB§§T. 

IN§TALLMENTS: 

Installment Chorter Township 
Due March 1 of Bloomfiel!l 

2018 s 127,036.50 
2019 128,324 ,50 
2020 132,464,00 
2021 136,603 50 
2022 140,743 00 
2023 144 882 50 
2024 153 161 50 
2025 157.301 .00 
2026 161 440 50 
2027 165,580 00 

s 1,447.537 00 

The forego ng ro~ was approved by 
the Drat aga Board for tha Dan Devine Drain 

ras.lotus oakdr46-dev ne-sa-rotl-20 17 xis 

$1 ,975,000 

51 .975,000 

$1 ,748.448 

$226,552 

fgrg!:n1!!9!:~ 

73.293% 
15.236% 
11 .471% 

County of 
Oakland 

$ 26,411.50 
26,675.50 
27,536.00 
28 396.50 
29.257.00 
30,117 so 
31,838 50 
32.69900 
33 559 50 
34,420.00 

s 300,911 00 

Amount Assessed Amount Assessed to be 
to be PreQo:d Collecjed In l nsto~ments 

$ $ 1.447.537 
$ 300,911 

s 226,552 s 

10, due March 1 ol each year. 
beglnn ng 2018 

Interest on unpaid installments to begin 
on April 1 , 2017, and to accl'l.le at 
a rate not to exceed an amount sufficient 
to pay the interest on the bonds fnterest 
is payable on September 1, 2017. and 
thereafter on March 1 of each year_ 

Total 

$ 153,448 00 
155,000 00 
160,000.00 
165,000.00 
170,000.00 
175 000.00 
185,000.00 
190,000 00 
195.000 00 
200,000.00 

s 1,7411,446.00 

We hereby certify that the foregoing special 
assesomont roll was prepar11d In accordance 
with lhe directions of lhe Drainage Board for 
for the Dan Devine Drain and lhe 

isions appllcable»>if:l'l:~ .... 
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MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTION #17040 February 15, 2017 
BY: Planning and Building Committee, Philip J. Weipert, Chairperson 
IN RE: WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER- DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT DRAIN 
BONDS- FULL FAITH AND CREDIT RESOLUTION 
To the Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
Chairperson, Ladies and Gentlemen 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 20 of Act 40 of the Public Acts of 1956, as amended, MCL 260.461 et 
seq. (the "Drain Code"), and as a matter of public health, the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District was 
established and the cost of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Dan Devine Drain (the 
"Drain") was apportioned against the State of Michigan, the County of Oakland (the "County"), and the 
Charter Township of Bloomfield (the "Public Corporations"); and 
WHEREAS, there exists a public health necessity to plan, design and construct the Drain; and 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that the cost of the improvements with respect to the Drain be financed in 
whole or in part by the issuance of bonds; and 
WHEREAS, the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District proposes that the Dan Devine 
Drain Drainage District issue its Drain Bonds, Series 2017 (the "Bonds") in the aggregate principal amount 
of not to exceed $1,975,000 to defray all or part of the cost of the acquisition and construction of 
improvements to the Drain; and 
WHEREAS, the Bonds will be dated as of such date, will bear interest at such rates not to exceed 6% per 
annum, will be in the aggregate principal amount, will mature in such years and principal amounts, and will 
be subject to redemption prior to maturity as shall be determined by the Drainage Board at the time of 
sale; and 
WHEREAS the Drainage Board deems it advisable and necessary to obtain from this Board a resolution 
pledging the full faith and credit of the County for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds; and 
WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the County that the Bonds be sold in order to achieve debt service 
savings for the Public Corporations. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. Pursuant to the authorization provided in Section 474 of the Drain Code, the Board of 
Commissioners of the County hereby pledges irrevocably the full faith and credit of the County for 
the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and agrees that, in the event the 
Charter Township of Bloomfield, the County, or the State of Michigan shall fail or neglect to 
account to the County Treasurer for the amount of any special assessment installment and 
interest when due, the amount thereof shall be advanced immediately from County funds, and the 
County Treasurer is directed to make such advancement to the extent necessary. 

2. In the event that, pursuant to the pledge of full faith and credit, the County advances out of County 
funds all or any part of an installment and interest, it shall be the duty of the County Treasurer, for 
and on behalf of the County, to take all actions and proceedings and pursue all remedies 
permitted or authorized by law for the reimbursement of such sums so paid. 

3. The County Treasurer or the financial consultant, Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated, is 
authorized, if necessary, to make application to the Department of Treasury for permission to 
issue and sell the Bonds. 

4. The County Treasurer is authorized, if necessary, to approve the circulation of a preliminary and 
final official statement for the Bonds, to cause the preparation of those portions of the preliminary 
and final official statement that pertain to the County, and to do all other things necessary for 
compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 
(the "Rule"). The County Treasurer is authorized to execute and deliver such certificates and to 
do all other things that are necessary to effectuate the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 

5. The County Treasurer is authorized, if necessary, to execute and deliver in the name and on 
behalf of the County (i) a certificate of the County to comply with the requirements for a continuing 
disclosure undertaking of the County pursuant to subsection (b)(S) of the Rule and (ii) 
amendments to such certificate from time to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate 
(the certificate and any amendments thereto are collectively referred to herein as the "Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate"). The County hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and 

PLANNING & BUILDING COMMITTEE VOTE: 
Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 



• 

carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The remedies for any 
failure of the County to comply with and carry out the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate shall be as set forth therein. 

Chairperson, on behalf of the Planning and Building Committee, I move adoption of the foregoing 
resolution. 

ommissioner Philip Weipert, District #8 
hairperson, Planning & Building Committee 
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OAKLAND COUNTY 
WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER MEMORANDUM 
TO: Philip J. Weipert, Chairperson, Planning and Building Committee 

FROM:~ Sidney Lockhart, P.E., Water Resources Commissioner Special Projects Manager 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the County Pledge its Full Faith and Credit for Bonds 
Associated with the Dan Devine Drain 

DATE: February 7, 2017 

Enclosed is a resolution requesting that the Board pledges the full faith and credit of Oakland County 
for the payment of principal and interest on the Dan Devine Drain Bonds in the amount of $1,975,000. 

In order to resolve flooding problems, the Charter Township of Bloomfield submitted a petition to the 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner's office to construct a county drain in the area 
shown on the attached map. 

The Dan Devine Drain incorporates an existing agricultural drain and another water course flowing 
through the Eastways Farm, Foxhall, and North Bloomfield Hills Subdivisions. The project is 
necessary to reduce flooding on adjacent properties and includes clean-out, stream-bank 
stabilization, clearing, and repair of selected reinforced concrete pipes at Severn Lane and 
Downderry Court. Site restoration and dredging the detention pond at the drain's terminus at the 
Township's southern border also will be included in the project. 

The Dan Devine Drain was established pursuant to Chapter 20 of Act 40 of the Public Acts of 1956, 
as amended, MCL 280.461 et seq. to protect and promote the public health. The cost of construction, 
operation and maintenance of the Dan Devine Drain was apportioned on April 28, 2015 by the 
Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District as follows: 

15.236% County of Oakland 
11.471% State of Michigan 
73.293% Charter Township of Bloomfield. 

Bids were received on December 16, 2016. The project is anticipated to be awarded to the low 
bidder, Inland Lakes Landscaping Corp. from Pontiac, Michigan. 

State law requires a 2/3 majority vote by the Board of Commissioners for adoption of the proposed 
resolution. 

It is our intention to have this matter on the Finance Committee's March 9, 2017 agenda and 
on the Board of Commissioners' March 15, 2017 agenda. 

OAKLAND COUNTY WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 
Page 1 of 1 Rev.: 11/05/08 
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Resolution #17040 February 15, 2017 

The Chairperson referred the resolution to the Finance Committee. There were no objections. 



FISCAL NOTE (MISC. #17040) March 15, 2017 
BY: Commissioner Thomas Middleton, Chairperson, Finance Committee 
IN RE: WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER- DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
DRAIN BONDS- FULL FAITH AND CREDIT RESOLUTION 
To The Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
Chairperson, Ladies and Gentlemen: 
Pursuant to Rule XII-C of this Board, the Finance Committee has reviewed the above-referenced 
resolution and finds: 

1. The Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District is requesting that 
the Board of Commissioners pledge the full faith and credit of the County of 
Oakland for the payment of principal and interest on the Dan Devine Drain 
Drainage District Drain Bonds, Series 2017, pursuant to the authorization 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

provided in Section 474 of the Drain Code. 
The bond issue is not to exceed $1,975,000 and is to be used to defray all or part 
of the cost of the acquisition and construction of improvements to the drain. 
The Bonds shall be secured primarily by the full faith and credit pledged by the 
Dan Devine Drain Drainage District and the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners will pledge the full faith and credit of the County as secondary 
obligors for the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. 
The bond issue shall bear an interest rate not to exceed 6% per annum, will be in 
aggregate principal amounts, will mature in such years and principal amounts 
and will be callable prior to maturity as determined necessary by the Drainage 
Board at the time of sale. 
The statutory limit for County debt is $6,508,485,111 (10% of State Equalized 
Value). As of February 15, 2017, the total pledged debt is $743,601,515 or 
approximately 1.14251% of the S.E.V. 
The project cost of $1,975,000 will be apportioned to the following Public 
Corporations as follows with $1,447,537 or 73.293% to the Charter Township of 
Bloomfield, $226,552 or 11.471% to the State of Michigan and $300,911 or 
15.236% to the County of Oakland. 
The Public Corporations will pay for the bonds through a Special Assessment 
Roll for the Dan Devine Drain. 
The Oakland County portion of the debt service payments will be included in the 
Non-Departmental current drain assessments account. 
No budget amendmen?uired. {) ~ 

. f~ 
ommissioner Thomas Middleton, District #4 
hairperson, Finance Committee 

FINANCE COMMITTEE VOTE: 
Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote with Crawford absent. 



Resolution #17040 March 15, 2017 

Moved by Fleming supported by Bowman the resolutions (with fiscal notes attached) on the Consent 
Agenda be adopted (with accompanying reports being accepted). 

AYES: Crawford, Dwyer, Fleming, Gershenson, Gingell. Hoffman, Jackson, Kochenderfer, 
Kowall, Long, McGillivray, Middleton, Quarles, Spisz, Taub, Tietz, Weipert, Woodward, Zack, 
Bowman. (20) 
NAYS: None. (0) 

A sufficient majority having voted in favor, the resolutions (with fiscal notes attached) on the Consent 
Agenda were adopted (with accompanying reports being accepted). 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

I HEAEI!N APPROVE THIS AESOLUTION 

CHIEF DEPU1Y COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

ACTING pURSUANT TO MCL 45.559A (7) 

I, Lisa Brown, Clerk of the County of Oakland, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution is a true and 
accurate copy of a resolution adopted by the Oakland County Board of Commissioners on March 15, 
2017, with the original record thereof now remaining in my office. 

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the County of Oakland at 
Pontiac, Michigan this 151

h day of March, 2017. . 
Yh~d/ bJf"?t_,-.._; __ 

Usa Brown, Oakland County 



Dan Devine Drain 

CERTIFICATE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR 

I, the undersigned, Chris Ward, hereby certity as follows: 

1. I am the duly qualified and acting Administrative Director of the Board of 
Commissioners of the County of Oakland, Michigan. 

2. The notice attached hereto was posted at least 18 hours in advance of the meeting 
of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Oakland held on March 15, 2017, in those 
places where notices of meetings of the Board of Commissioners are normally posted. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this 1 day of 
March, 2017. 

BLOOMFIELD 9007-423 1750454v1 



NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

MARCH 15,2017 

Please take notice that the next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
County ofOakland will be held on Wednesday, March 15,2017, at 7 p.m. at the Oakland County 
Courthouse Auditorium located at 1200 North Telegraph Road, Pontiac, Michigan. 

The agenda for the meeting will include consideration by the Board of Commissioners of 
a resolution authorizing the limited tax tull faith and credit pledge of the County of Oakland to 
the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District Drain Bonds, Series 2017 in the principal amount or not 
to exceed $1,975,000, which bonds are expected to be issued by the Dan Devine Drain Drainage 
District to finance the cost of acquiring and constructing the Dan Devine Drain. 

This notice is given pursuant to Section 308 of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as 
amended. 

BLOOMFIELD 9007-4231750452v1 

Chris Ward, Administrative Director 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
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RICK SNYDER 
GOVERNOR 

~ .. ~ 

I! 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING 

March 31,2017 

APPROVAL 

NICK A. KHOURI 
STATE TREASURER 

Municipality Code: 637134 
Fiscal Year Ended: 9/2016 

Dear Chief Administrative Officer: 

Thank you for submitting a Qualifying Statement for Dan Devine Drain Drainage District to the 
Michigan Department of Treasury on March 30, 2017. Based upon the information provided in the 
Qualifying Statement, we have determined that Dan Devine Drain Drainage District is in material 
compliance with the criteria identified in Section 303(3) of Public Act 34 of 2001. 

Dan Devine Drain Drainage District is now authorized to issue municipal securities under this Act 
without further approval from the Department. This authorization will remain in effect for six 
months plus 30 business days after the end of your next fiscal year, or when the Department has 
made a new determination, whichever occurs first. 

Within 15 business days of completing the issuance of any municipal security the municipality shall 
file with the Department a Security Report and all documents required in Section 319 of Public Act 
34 of200l.The Security Report can be found on our website, Michigan.gov/Treasury, by clicking 
on Local Government Services, Municipal Finance, Municipal Finance Forms, and 3892. The 
Security Report and accompanying documents may be emailed to 
Trcas Municipalrinanc~(ai,Michignn.gov or mailed to the address below. If emailing, the subject 
line must read the same as the file name of the attached documents. 

If you have any questions, contact the Division at 517-373-3227. 

Sincerely, 

Suzanne Schafer, Administrator 
Local Fiscal Accountability Division 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING. MICHIGAN 48909-8228 
www mlchigen.govllrDasury • 517·373-3227 
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RICK SNYDER 
GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MlCHlOAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING 

March 30,2017 

APPROVAL 

NICK A. KHOURI 
STATE TREASURER 

Municipality Code: 630000 
Fiscal Year Ended: 9/2016 

Dear Chief Administrative Officer: 

Thank you for submitting a Qualifying Statement for Oakland County to the Michigan Department 
ofTreasury on March 29,2017. Based upon the information provided in the Qualifying Statement, 
we have determined that Oakland County is in material compliance with the criteria identified in 
Section 303(3) of Public Act 34 of 2001. 

Oakland County is now authorized to issue municipal securities under this Act without further 
approval from the Department. This authorization will remain in effect for six months plus 30 
business days after the end of your next fiscal year, or when the Department has made a new 
determination, whichever occurs first. 

Within 15 business days of completing the issuance of any municipal security the municipality shall 
file with the Department a Security Report and all documents required in Section 319 ofPublic Act 
34 of 200 l.The Security Report can be found on our website, Michigan.govffreasury, by clicking 
on Local Government Services, Municipal Finance, Municipal Finance Forms, and 3892. The 
Security Report and accompanying documents may be emailcd to 
Trcas MunicipaiFiuum:c(tdMichigun.gov or mailed to the address below. If emailing, the subject 
line must read the same as the file name of the attached documents. 

lf you have any questions, contact the Division at 517-373-3227. 

Sincerely, 

Suzanne Schafer, Administrator 
Local Fiscal Accountability Division 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909·8228 
www.mlchignn.gevllreosury • 517·373-3227 



MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS 
INCORPORATED 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Prospective Proposers on the following Bond Sale: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

$1,745,000 County of Oakland, State of Michigan 
Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Drain Bonds, 
Series 2017 

Proposal Due Date: April 4, 2017 at 11:00 a.m. EDST 

Meredith A. Shanle, President 
Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated 

March 23, 2017 

Enclosed herewith please find the following in connection 
with the captioned bond issue: 

1. An Optional Proposal Form; 

2. The Request for Proposal; 

3. General and Economic Information Regarding the County 
of Oakland and the Charter Township of Bloomfield; 

4. County of Oakland Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015. 

In addition, if you have any questions or require further 
information, including copies of the County's past audited 
financial statements, please give me a call at 313-408-5990 or 
email me at merediths®mfci.com. 

las.m-os-oskdr46 

500 Woodward Ave., suite 3500, Room #3559, Detroit, MI 48226 
Phone: 313 - 884 - 1550; Fax: 313 - 309 - 6948; E -Mail: merediths@mfci.com 



Mr. Jim Nash 

OPTIONAL PROPOSAL FORM 

$1,745,000 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND, STATE OF MICHGIAN 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT, 
DRAIN BONDS,SERIES2017 

Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
and Chairperson, Dan Devine Drain Drainage District 
Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan 
Buhl Building 
535 Griswold, Suite 1850 
Detroit, Michigan48226 

Dear Mr. Nash: 

April4,2017 

With respect to the Request for Proposal (the "RFP") for the above-described bonds (the "Bonds"), please be advised 
as follows: 

I. As described in the RFP, we will pay you par, less a discount of$ ____ , or plus a premium of$ ____ _ 
for the Bonds maturing as follows: 

April I, 2018 % 

Aprill,2019 o;o 

April I, 2020 % 

April I, 2021 o;o 

April!, 2022 o;o 

April I, 2023 

April I, 2024 

______ % 
______ % 

______ % April I, 2025 

April 1, 2026 

April!, 2027 

. ______ % 

______ % 

{Note: Bonds maturing in any year shall bear interest at a rate that is not Jess than the rate borne by the bonds maturing in any 
preceding year.) 

2. This proposal is for all of the Bonds. 
3. This proposal is subject to the opinion of Dickinson Wright PLLC as to the legality of the Bonds. 
By submitting its proposal, the proposer is not an "Iran-Linked Business" within the meaning of the Iran Economic 

Sanctions Act, Act517 of the Public Acts of Michigan, 2012. 

(List other account member, if any) 
Respectfully submitted, 

Signature: __ ---:---::---:---:-::~----,,----­
Authorized Representative 

Name (Print):--------------

ACCEPTANCE CLAUSE 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the RFP, the foregoing proposal is hereby accepted by the Dan Devine 
Drain Drainage District this 5th day of April, 2017. 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

By: ~--~~~-----------------------Jim Nash, Chairperson 

The following is a computation of the interest cost on the above proposal. This computation is not to be considered as 
a part of the proposal and is subject to verification. 

Gross Interest Cost $ _____ _ 

( +) Discount(-)Prem i urn $. _______ _ 

Interest Cost $. _______ _ 

True Interest Rate ______ % 

v 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
$1,745,000 

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BONDS, SERIES 2017 

SEALED OR ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS: Written proposals for the purchase of the Bonds 
described herein (the "Bonds") will be received, on behalf of the Dan Devine Drain Drainage 
District, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the "District"), at the offices of the Municipal 
Advisory Council of Michigan, Buhl Building, 535 Griswold A venue, Suite 1850, Detroit, 
Michigan 48226, or at the office of Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated, 500 
Woodward Ave., Suite 3500, Office #3559, Detroit, Michigan, 48226, phone: 313-408-5990, e­
mail: merediths@mfci.com on April 4, 2017 until 11 :00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Savings Time, at 
which time and place said proposals will be publicly read. 

The Bonds will be awarded or all proposals will be rejected by the Oakland County 
Water Resources Commissioner within twenty-four hours of the sale. 

BOND DETAILS: The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will be fully registered 
bonds in any one or more denominations of $5,000 or a multiple of $5,000, numbered from I 
upwards and will bear interest from their date payable on October 1, 2017 and semi-annually 
thereafter until maturity. The Bonds will mature on the P 1 day of April in each year as follows: 

YEAR 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

PRINCIPAL 

$150,000 
155,000 
160,000 
165,000 
170,000 

YEAR 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

PRINCIPAL 

$175,000 
185,000 
190,000 
195,000 
200,000 

PRIOR REDEMPTION: The Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

INTEREST RATE AND PROPOSING DETAILS: The Bonds shall bear interest at a rate or 
rates not exceeding 5% per annum, to be fixed by the proposals therefor, expressed in multiples 
of 1/8 or 1/100 of I%, or both. The interest on any one bond shall be at one rate only. All bonds 
maturing in any one year must carry the same interest rate. THE INTEREST RATE BORNE 
BY BONDS MATURING IN ANY YEAR SIIALL NOT BE AT A RATE LOWER THAN 
TilE RATE BORNE BY BONDS MATURING IN ANY PRECEDING YEAR. No proposal for 
the purchase of less than all of the Bonds, at a price less than 99% or more than 100.5% of their 
par value or at an interest rate or rates that will result in a net interest cost exceeding 5%, will be 
considered. 

SINGLE BOND OPTION: If requested by the initial purchaser, the Bonds may be issued in 
the form of a single Bond with an exhibit containing the principal maturity amounts and 
applicable interest rates and due dates. 



BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY: At the option ofthe original purchaser of the Bonds, the Bonds may 
be issued in book-entry-only form as one fully-registered bond per maturity and may be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), 
New York, New York. DTC may act as securities depository for the Bonds. Purchase of the 
Bonds may be made in book-entry-only form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any multiple 
thereof. In such case, purchasers would not receive certificates representing their interest in 
Bonds purchased. 

BOND REGISTRAR, PAYING AGENT AND DATE OF RECORD: The initial purchaser 
of the Bonds may select a paying agent and bond registrar for the Bonds so long as such 
selection is acceptable to the District. ln the alternative, if the original purchaser does not wish 
to select a paying agent and bond registrar (the "Bond Registrar") for the Bonds, The Huntington 
National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan will serve as paying agent and bond registrar for the 
Bonds. The Bond Registrar will keep records of the registered holders of the Bonds, serve as 
transfer agent for the Bonds, authenticate the original and any re-issued Bonds and pay interest to 
the registered holders of the Bonds as shown on the registration books of the District kept by the 
Bond Registrar on the applicable date of record. The date of record for each interest payment 
shall be the 151h day of the month before such payment is due. lf DTC, or its nominee CEDE & 
Co., is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments will be made directly to such registered 
owner. Disbursement of such payments to DTC participants is the responsibility of DTC and 
disbursement of such payments to the beneficial owners of the Bonds is the responsibility of 
DTC participants and indirect participants. The District may from time to time as required 
designate a successor bond registrar and paying agent. 

l,URPOSE AND SECURITY: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the provisions of Act 
No. 34 of Public Acts of Michigan of 2001, as amended ("Act 34") and Act 40, of Pub! ic Acts of 
Michigan of 1956, as amended ("Act 40"), for the purpose of defraying part of the cost of 
acquiring and constructing the Dan Devine Drain. The Bonds are to be issued in anticipation of, 
and are primarily payable from, the collection of the several installments of special assessments 
against the Charter Township of Bloomfield and the County of Oakland (the "County") on the 
Special Assessment Roll for the Dan Devine Drain. The special assessment installments and 
interest thereon are sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. The 
tax levying officials of the public corporations assessed shall levy sufficient taxes to pay 
assessment installments and interest as the same become due unless there have been set aside 
moneys sufficient therefor. Taxes imposed by the Charter Township of Bloomfield are subject 
to applicable constitutional, statutory and charter limitations and taxes imposed by the County 
arc subject to applicable constitutional and statutory tax limitations. 

FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF COUNTY: Pursuant to a resolution adopted by its Board of 
Commissioners, the County has pledged its limited tax full faith and credit as additional security 
for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. The ability of the County to raise 
funds with which to meet such pledge is subject to applicable statutory and constitutional tax 
limitations. 

A WARD OF THE BONDS- TRUE INTEREST COST: The Bonds will be awarded to the 
proposer whose proposal produces the lowest true interest cost determined in the following 
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manner: the lowest true interest cost wi II be the single interest rate (compounded on October 1, 
2017 and semi-annually thereafter) necessary to discount the debt service payments from their 
respective payment dates to the date of delivery in an amount equal to the price proposed. April 
20, 2017 is the anticipated date of delivery of the Bonds. 

LEGAL OPINION: Proposals shall be conditioned upon the approving opinion of Dickinson 
Wright PLLC, attorneys of Detroit, Michigan, the original of which opinion will be furnished 
without expense to the purchaser of the Bonds at the delivery thereof. The fees of Dickinson 
Wright PLLC for services rendered in connection with such approving opinion are expected to 
be paid from bond proceeds. Except to the extent necessary to issue its approving opinion as to 
the validity of the Bonds, Dickinson Wright PLLC has made no inquiry as to any financial 
information, statements or material contained in any financial documents, statements or materials 
that have been or may be furnished in connection with the authorization, issuance or marketing 
of the Bonds and, accordingly, will not express any opinion with respect to the accuracy or 
completeness of any such financial information, statements or materials. 

TAX MATTERS: In the opinion of Bond Counsel, subject, however to certain qualifications 
described herein, under existing law, the interest on the Bonds (a) is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, and (b) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the 
federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; such opinion will 
note, however, that certain corporations must take into account interest on the Bonds in 
determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing such alternative minimum 
tax. The opinion set forth in clause (a) above will be subject to the condition that the District 
comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), 
that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or 
continue to be) excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply 
with certain of such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross 
income retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The District has covenanted to comply 
with all such requirements. The opinion will express no opinion regarding other federal tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, the 
Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all taxation by the State of Michigan or by any 
taxing authority within the State of Michigan, except estate taxes and taxes on gains realized 
from the sale, payment or other disposition of the Bonds. 

NOT "QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS": The Bonds have not been designated 
as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) ofthe Code. 

CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER: The purchaser will be required as a condition of delivery 
of the Bonds, to certify, in form and substance satisfactory to bond counsel, the "issue price" of 
the Bonds within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code, which, unless the Bonds are 
purchased for the purchaser's account and not with a view to distribution or resale, will include a 
representation that (i) the purchaser made a bona fide public offering to members of the general 
public of all Bonds and all maturities at initial offering prices and yields indicated in the 
information furnished in connection with the successful proposal and (ii) at least the first I 0 
percent of each maturity of the Bonds has been sold, or was reasonably expected at the time of 
pricing of the Bonds to be sold, to the public at an initial offering price not exceeding the price 
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for such maturity, or the price corresponding to the yield for such maturity, indicated in the 
information furnished in connection with the successful proposal. If the purchaser is purchasing 
the Bonds for its own account and not with a view to distribution or resale, it will be required to 
sign a "sophisticated investor" certificate as a condition of delivery of the Bonds. The form of an 
acceptable certificate will be provided by bond counsel. 

DELIVERY OF BONDS: The District will furnish Bonds ready for execution at its expense. 
Bonds will be delivered without expense to the purchaser. The usual closing documents, 
including a certificate that no litigation is pending affecting the issuance of the Bonds, will be 
delivered at the time of delivery ofthe Bonds. April20, 2017 is the anticipated date of delivery 
of the Bonds. However, proposers are expected to hold their proposals for no Jess than 30 days 
to allow for closing. 

CUSIP NUMBERS: At the option of the initial purchaser of the Bonds, CUSlP identification 
numbers may be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers nor any 
improperly printed number shall constitute cause for the purchaser to refuse to accept delivery of 
or to pay for the Bonds. All expenses for printing CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be paid for 
by the District, except that the CUSlP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of such numbers 
shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the purchaser. 

PROPOSER CERTIFICATION: NOT "IRAN-LINKED BUSINESS": By submitting a 
proposal, the proposer shall be deemed to have certified that it is not an "Iran-Linked Business" 
as defined in Act No. 5 I 7, Public Acts of Michigan, 20 12; MCL 129.3 I I et seq. 

NO OFFICIAL STATEMENT, CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OR RATING: There will 
not be an official statement or continuing disclosure undertaking, and a rating will not be 
requested, in connection with the offer or sale of the Bonds. 

FURTHER INFORMATION: Additional information may be obtained from Meredith A. 
Shanle, Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated, 500 Woodward Ave., Suite 3500, Office 
#3559, Detroit, Michigan 48226, telephone (313) 408-5990. 

THE RIGHT IS RESERVED TO REJECT ANY OR ALL PROPOSALS. 

ENVELOPES: Envelopes containing the proposals should be plainly marked "Dan Devine 
Drain Drainage District, Drain Bonds, Series 2017." 

Las.rfp-oakdr46 

JlMNASl-1 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner & 
Chairperson, Drainage Board for the 
Dan Devine Drain Drainage District 

-4-



Introduction 

EXHIBIT A 

GENERAL AND ECONOMIC 
INFORMATION REGARDING THE COUNTY 

Oakland County continues to be a great place to live, work, shop and establish your business. The County is a special 
place to live where families enjoy a quality of life that is second to none and where business grows and prospers. The 
County's taxable value for real and personal property has begun to rebound along with the overall economy and has 
grown 2.16% since 2011. With only 3.9% of taxable valuation coming from the ten largest taxpayers, the County 
continues to have a well-diversified tax base. 

Residential developments in the County include some of the finest in the State, The median sales price of a single 
family home was $197,596 in 2015. 82% of the county's residential development since the start of 2009 has been 
single-family units, compared to 67% for the entire Southeast Michigan region. More than 30% of new residential 
construction in the region has been in Oakland County since 2009. 

The unemployment rate for Oakland County averaged 5.0% in 2015. Oakland County did experience some job loss 
due to manufacturing reorganization in 2006 but is expecting consistent job growth for the next several years due to 
our skilled and educated workers and a best in class economic diversification strategy, including Automation Alley, 
Emerging Sectors, and Medical Main Street featuring the new William Beaumont/Oakland University Medical 
School. 

Oakland County has been recognized as one of the most prosperous counties in the nation. In comparing Oakland 
County with 35 other prosperous counties of similar population throughout the nation, economists rank Oakland 
County eleventh overall based on selected indicators of prosperity. Our goal is to ensure Oakland County and its work 
force continues to thrive today and tomorrow as a premier technology hub and Oakland County maintains the coveted 
AAA bond rating thanks to sound fiscal stewardship and a 3-year budget balanced through 2019. 

Oakland County has the highest level of personal income per capita of the major labor markets in Michigan. The 
estimated per capita income ofOakland County residents in 2016 was $63,454. 

Source: Oakland Coumy Department of Planning and Economic Development 

The County 

The County is a public corporation created under the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Michigan, and has 
general governmental powers and authority. Under Act 206, the Treasurer of the County is the officer responsible for 
the collection of delinquent real property taxes returned to the County as uncollected on March I of any year. In 
addition, the County Treasurer is responsible for the application of the borrowing proceeds and the preservation of the 
security related to these funds. The County uses a modified accrual basis for accounting purposes. 

Form of Government 

The 21 member Board of Commissioners is the governing and legislative body of the County and is elected from 
districts for two (2) year terms. The County Executive is the chief administrative officer of the County and is elected 
for a four ( 4) year term. 

The County Executive is responsible for the overall supervision of all County departments, except those headed by 
other elected officials. The County Executive also has veto powers over any ordinance or resolution adopted by the 
Board of Commissioners including appropriating ordinances, which may be over ridden by a 213 vote of all members 
elected and serving on the County Board of Commissioners. 



County Budget Process 

Conservative Budget Practices. The County's budgetary practices encourage favorable variances against actual 
operations. The County conservatively budgets for all authorized positions at full funding, regardless of whether they 
arc filled or not. In doing so, vacancies arising from turnover, transfers or separation from County employment 
provide departments latitude in operating flexibility. Favorable variances arc created as a financial management 
strategy and arc relied upon to ensure that the General Fund equity (and other equities throughout the County) is 
maintained. 

Multiple-Year Budgeting. After years of preparing and managing an operating budget for two-year periods oftimc, 
in 2009, the County expanded its budget practices to a triennial budget. The current County Executive Recommended 
Triennial Budget is balanced through FY 2018. On September 17, 20 I 5, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
adopted the current FY -2016 to FY -20 18 budget. The County maintains the triennial budget with periodic 
amendments. Each new program or action is considered for the current year and the subsequent two years on a line­
item basis. 

Dynamic Budgeting. The County continually monitors budget and supplementary data, including real estate trends, 
foreclosure data and other information which impacts County Revenue. This data is continually evaluated to determine 
long-term budget trends and to adjust current budgets. 

Operating and Other Reserves. The General Fund balance is projected to be above the minimum operating reserve 
through FY2020 based on the Executive's Recommended Budget. The County also has a formally expressed policy 
of maintaining at least $200,000,000 in its delinquent tax revolving fund. 

Additional information on the County's budget is available at: 

http: llwww.oakgov.com.lexecrPagesfbudget/default.aspx. 

County Location, Transport11tion and Character 

The County of Oakland is located in the southeast portion of Michigan's Lower Peninsula. The County covers an area 
of910 square miles, which includes 30 cities, 10 villages and 21 townships. Within the county there arc more than 5 
rivers, 1,400 lakes, 900 miles of shoreline, and numerous small streams. There are approximately 82 private and public 
golf courses, including Groveland Oaks, the first park in Michigan to be environmentally certified by the Michigan 
Turfgrass Environmental Stewardship Program, which attracts many businesses and residents to Oakland County. 

Oakland (County) International Airport is capable of accommodating jets as large as a 727 and is home base for over 
800 corporate and general aviation aircraft. It is the world's sixth busiest general aviation airport and is the second 
busiest airport in Michigan with approximately 333,000 aircraft flying in and out each year. In 1996 the airport opened 
a full time U.S. customs office and expanded the airport to international commerce, tripling the amount of international 
nights to over I ,200 flights per year. The airport contributes overS 150 million to the County's economy each year. 

Detroit Metropolitan Aimort <DTW). located 18 miles south of the County, offers direct and connecting flights daily 
to nearly everywhere in the world. With more than 31 million passengers each year, Detroit Metropolitan Airport is 
one of the busiest airports in the United States. As the second-largest hub and primary Asian gateway for Delta, the 
world's largest airline, DTW serves as the SkyTeam Alliance's major Midwestern hub. With two new passenger 
terminals, 145 gates, six jet runways and two modem Federal Inspection Services facilities for international arrivals 
it is one of the newest, most operationally-capable and efficient airports in North America. 
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Oakland County and the surrounding area is free of toll roads. 

The Port of Detroit. located south of the County (in Wayne 
County), serves as Southeast Michigan's link to the Great 
Lakes, the St. Lawrence Seaway and the world. An 
international port of entry with full U.S. Customs Service 
and a Free Trade Zone, enhancing the area's attractiveness 
to foreign manufacturers. Detroit is ranked third in exports 
(based on dollar value) after Los Angeles and New York. 

Roads and l·!jghways - Major investments in widening 
and in upgrades to many Interchanges along the 87 miles 
of interstate freeways serving Oakland County continue 
to be made. Interstate 75 and 1-275 link the area with the 
states of Ohio, Kentucky, Tennessee, Georgia and 
Florida; and 1-94, 1-96 and 1-696, Major cast/west 
freeways in the state, link cast to Canada and west through 
Chicago. 

Rail Service - CSX offers class-one industrial/commercial freight shipping from Wixom, Michigan to Detroit or 
Chicago. Canadian National Railway operates class-one industrial/commercial freight shipping from Birmingham, 
Michigan to Detroit or Windsor, Ontario. Amtrak Passenger Rail Service has stations in the Michigan cities of 
Birmingham, Pontiac, and Royal Oak for trains traveling to Chicago Union Station and points in between. 

Residential - With more than 13,000 new construction permits since the start of2009, the highest total in the seven­
county Southeast Michigan region, Oakland County continues to post strong numbers in residential development. The 
estimated median housing value of a single family home in Oakland County was S 192,800 in 2014, a 16% increase 
since 2010. 

Commercial - While new development has slowed across the region, there arc still multiple major projects progressing 
in Oakland County, including the Children's Hospital of Michigan (Troy), new student housing at Oakland University, 
and redevelopment to the stalled Bloomfield Park project has begun (Bloomfield Township). 

Agriculture- Agriculture has been declining steadily due to farm property being converted into residential, commercial 
and industrial sites, but remains an important part of the county' s economic diversification strategy. 

Retail Activity - The County is home to an extensive collection of malls and shopping centers ranging from small 
village malls and popular local downtown shopping districts, to multi-noor regional malls found in most major cities. 
From luxury retailers at Somerset Collection to value-oriented stores at Great Lake Crossing Outlets, Oakland County 
offers shopping to meet the needs of residents and visitors alike. 

Corporate- More than 60 percent of Fortune 500 companies do business in Oakland County, increasing 14 percent in 
two years. Of the Fortune Global 500 companies, 57 percent have business locations in Oakland County. 

Oakland County continues to lead all Michigan counties in the number of business incorporating and forming in the 
state. Of the total new incorporations that took place in Michigan, Oakland County had 26 percent. Oakland County 
also has the state's largest number of business proprietorships and partnerships. 

Hotels-Motels - Oakland County has 98 hotels and motels with 20 or more rooms, including the Townsend of 
Birmingham and Somerset Inn of Troy. Several new hotcllmotcl properties arc under construction and should be 
available in the very ncar future. 

Soun.:e Oakland County Department of Planning and Economic: Development Construction 
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Office Buildings - More than eight million square feet of floor space has been completed in Oakland County since 
the start of2007, accounting for nearly 25% of Southeast Michigan's total nonresidential development. According to 
real estate brokerage firm Grubb & Ellis, office lease and vacancy rates in Oakland County sub-markets remain 
competitive with the rest of metro Detroit. Birmingham sub-market has the lowest vacancy rates in the region at 5.0%. 

Industrial & Research Parks- Oakland Technology Park, located in Auburn Hills, is one of the top five research parks 
in the nation in size. Fiat Chrysler (FCA) US, LLC's $1 billion R & D headquarters and $1.4 billion corporate world 
headquarters is located on 500 acres just outside the Tech park. Electronic Data Systems, Comerica Bank, World 
Computer, ITT Automotive and other major firms arc located in this Tech Park. Oakland County leads all Michigan 
counties with more than 240 business parks totaling more than 10,000 acres. 

Source · U.S. Census /Jureau and Dodge l.ocal Construction Potentials for non-residential projects Utilities 

All of southern Oakland County buys water from the Great Lakes Water Authority. When projects now underway arc 
completed, the Great Lakes Water Authority will treat all of southern Oakland County's sewage (other than that of the 
City of Pontiac). Major drainage systems have been and arc being built in the County. Following is a list of the Utility 
Suppliers for Oakland County: 

Electricity: 

Naturn1 Gas: 

Water: 

Sewer: 

Population 

Supplier 
Supplier 

Supplier 
Supplier 
Supplier 

Supplier 
Source 

Supplier 

System Types 

Detroit Edison 
Consumers Power 

Consumers Energy 
MichCon 
Semco Energy 

Great Lakes Water Authority 
Lake Buron 
Ground Water from Wells 

Great Lakes Water Authority 
Community Water Treatment Facilities and Septic Fields 
Separate Storm and Sanitary Community Treatment Facilities 

Oakland County's 2015 population was estimated to be over 1,240,000. Out of 83 counties in Michigan, it has the 
second largest population. Oakland County is also projected to have the second largest actual population gain in the 
metro Detroit area by 2040 with nearly 45,000 new residents. 

Table I- Population Trends, 1960-2015 

\'car Populution Year Population 
1960 650.259 2011 1,211.211 
1970 907,871 2012 1,221,391 
1980 1,011.793 2013 1,232,713 
1990 1,083,592 2014 1,239,897 

2000 1, 194.156 2015 1.242,304 
2010 1,202.635 

Sources U.S Departmenl a/Commerce, /Jureau of the Census Bureau 
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Education 

There arc 28 school districts in Oakland County, all offering preschool programs and all but one providing childcarc 
or latchkey services. Newsweek rated the International Academy in Bloomfield Hills number 8 in the nation's top I 00 
U.S. high schools. Also listed as being in the top 6% of high schools in the country arc 9 other public high schools 
from 8 different school districts. 

In the fall of 2006 Oakland County launched a Mandarin Chinese language program in four school districts. Today, 
all school districts in Oakland County and 3 consortium schools offer this language program. 

Thirty institutions of higher learning with a total enrollment of over I 00,000 arc located in the County. The largest 
public degree-granting institutions headquartered in Oakland County are Oakland University, Oakland Community 
College, M-Tcch and Lawrence Technological University. Over 75% of Michigan's schools offer dual-enrollment 
programs which give high school students the opportunity to earn college credits. The national average of schools 
offering dual-enrollment is only 65%. 

Oakland University-The Schools of Management and Engineering work with industrial firms in developing personnel 
versed in manufacturing technologies and technology development processes, and management. The university's 
faculty consults with many industrial firms and facilitates on the transfer of technology between the University and 
the business community. The new William Beaumont/Oakland University School of Medicine is a game changing 
development for Oakland University, Oakland County, and the practice of medicine. 

Oakland Community College- Nearly 38,000 students attend this multi-campus college specializing in technical and 
vocational education. To lead a consortium of educational institutions in Oakland County and Southeastern Michigan 
to support the Emerging Sectors initiative Oakland Community College was given $285,000 in federal appropriations. 

Lawrence Technological University - One of the Midwest's leading technical schools, Lawrence's engineering, 
architecture, business and industrial management and associate studies graduate 1,000 students yearly. 

Other Educational Institutions- Central Michigan University, Wayne State University and Michigan State University 
have graduate studies and programs in the County. Wayne State University opened a 100,000 square foot continuing 
education center in Farmington Hills in I 995; Wayne State University consolidated several satellite facilities in 
operation throughout the County. Walsh College concentrates on business and accounting education as docs Baker 
College. 

The main campuses of the University of Michigan, Wayne State University and Michigan State University arc 
approximately 20 to 90 miles from the County. These arc major centers of research. Each university has institutes 
established for the purpose of providing technology research, development and transfer to the business sector for 
economic development. The Polymer Institute is located at the University of Detroit, less than two miles from the 
southern border of the County. 

Source · Oakland County Depal'lmelfl of Planning and Economic Developmelfl 

Job Growth 

The Oakland County economy is now in its eighth year of recovery since the recession's low point at the end of2009. 
In 20 I I during the initial phase of economic recovery, Oakland County experienced our second best year of job growth 
since 1994. The 24,412 new jobs created in the County during that turn-around year constituted almost one-third of 
all new jobs created in Michigan in 20 I I. The job growth continued in 2012 with 24,865 new jobs added in that year, 
once again more than double the initial projections. After the initial recovery burst in 20 I I -20 I 2 when almost 50,000 
new jobs were added, job growth continues at a moderate pace with an estimated 18, I 46 jobs added in 2013 and 
12,808 in 2014. Since 2009, the cumulative job growth in Oakland County through 2013 was 13%, which outpaced 
both the state's growth of 8% and the nation 's growth of 6%. 



The county's economic base continues to diversify since Oakland County's Emerging Sectors Initiative was put into 
place. Since the inception of Emerging Sectors in 2004, more than 380 Emerging Sector companies have generated 
nearly $3.5 billion in investment while creating or retaining nearly 60,000jobs. The vast majority ofthosejobs are in 
the high-wage category. It is clear that Oakland County is succeeding at attracting companies from emerging sectors 
from around the country, and in some instances, from around the globe. 

Source: Oakland County Department of Planning and Economic Development 

Industrial and lligh Technology 

Companies believe that if you arc a part of the automotive industry, you must have a presence in southeast Michigan, 
and preferably Oakland County. Certainly research and development organizations continue to select Oakland County 
as one-third of all Michigan's R & D facilities are located in Oakland County. Automation Alley, founded in Oakland 
County and headquartered in Troy, is Southeast Michigan's leading technology business association. The organization 
fosters growth and economic development and is home to more than 311,000 technology workers and 7,800 
technology businesses from a variety of industries, and to help communities make the transition from a manufacturing 
economy to a knowledge economy, Oakland County has developed the Technology Planning Toolkit. This relates 
global economic trends with local actionable items. 

Source: Oakland Counly Department of Planning and Economic Development 

Foreign Investment 

Over I ,000 businesses representing 38 foreign parent companies doing business in Michigan arc located in Oakland 
County. Sixty-seven percent of all foreign owned firms in southeastern Michigan are in Oakland County. 

County Tax Rntcs 

In August, 1978, the voters of Oakland County approved, as part of County wide fixed millage, a maximum millage 
of$5.26 per S I ,000, subject to Headlee Amendment reductions. The maximum authorized operating millage for 2016, 
after the Headlee reduction, is 4. I 868 mills. Sec "Tax Rate Limitation" section. 

Table 2- County Tnx Rates (in mills) $1.00/SJ,OOO ofTnxnble Valuation 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 
Operating 4.0400 4.0900 4.1900 4.1900 4.1900 4.1900 4.1900 

Parks & Recreation 0.2392 0.2410 0.2415 0.2415 0.2415 0.2415 0.2415 

lluron Clinton Authority 0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 

Zoo Authority 0.0990 0.0998 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 

Arts Authority 0.1981 0.1996 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.0000 0.0000 

Total 4.7909 4.8450 4.9461 4.9461 4.7461 4.7461 4.6461 

Source: Oakland County 1i·easm·er 

Tnx Rate Limitation 

Article IX, Section 6, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 provides, in part: 

"Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution, the total amount of general ad valorem taxes 
imposed upon real and tangible personal property for all purposes in any one year shall not exceed 
I 5 mills on each dollar of the assessed valuation of property as finally equalized." 
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Section 6 further provides that by a majority vote of qualified electors of the County, the 15 mill limitation may be 
increased to a total of not to exceed 18 mills, and the millage of the local units involved shall then be permanently 
fixed within that greater millage limitation. 

Act 62, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as amended, defines local units as counties, townships, villages, cities, school 
districts, community college districts, intermediate school districts, districts and other organizations or districts which 
may be established with the power to levy taxes, except villages and cities for which there arc provisions in their 
charters or general law fixing maximum limits on the power to levy taxes against property. 

The County voted in 1978 to fix millage rates pursuant to Section 6 ofthc 1963 Michigan Constitution and eliminate 
the Tax Allocation Board. The fixed rates arc as follows (per $1,000 of equalized valuation): 

Unit or Government 
Any School District 
County of Oakland 
Any Township 
Oakland County Intermediate School District 
Total Millage Rate 

Millage Rnte 
9.54 
5.26 
1.41 
0.25 

16.46 

In addition, Article IX, Section 6, permits the levy of millage in excess of the above for: 

I. All debt service on tax supported notes issued prior to December 23, 1978 or tax supported issues 
which have been approved by the voters for which the issuer has pledged its full faith and credit. 

2. Operating purposes for a specified period of time provided that such increased millage is 
approved by a majority of the qualified electors ofthc local unit. 

County Operating Tax Collection Record 

Table 3- Collection Record or County's Tax Levy, 2007- 2016 

Collections Plus 
Yenr or Collections to March 1 or Delinquent Tax 

Tnx Levy Tax Levy• Each Levy Year Amount•• Percent Funding Percent 
2016 $212,935,729 Nit\ Nit\ 100.00% 

2015 207,429,739 202,760,984 97.55% 100.00 
2014 204,966,211 199,927,994 97.54 100.00 
2013 201,089,193 195,528,055 97.23 100.00 
2012 201,724,853 189,692,721 94.04 100.00 
2011 206,524,166 198,931 ,022 96.32 100.00 
2010 223.423,778 2 I 4,04 I ,473 95.80 100.00 
2009 253,987,318 241,943.443 95.26 100.00 
2008 262,899,380 25 I ,050,564 95.49 100.00 
2007 262,814,606 251.354,868 95.64 100.00 

• Includes real and personal property taxes. 2016total estimated taxes. 
** Rcnects only real property delinquency and assumes 100% collection of personal property taxes. 

Source: Oakland County 1i·easurer 

Prior to 1997, the County's fiscal year began on January I" and ended on December 31 ". Starting in 1997, the County's 
Fiscal Year started on October 1'1 ended on September 301h. Taxes arc due December I, and become delinquent the 
following March I. The County has issued General Obligation Limited Tax Notes and established a 100% Tax 
Payment Fund at the County level, and after March 1'\ the County pays, from the I 00% Tax Payment Fund, all 
delinquent real property taxes from all municipalities in the County. The fund docs not cover personal, buildings on 
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leased land, DNR-PIL T, or tax abated property taxes. Delinquent personal property taxes arc negligible, and therefore, 
I 00% Tax Collections arc reported above. 

Table 4 - Collection Record or County Wide Tax Levy, 2007-2016 

Collections Plus 
Year of Collections to March 1 of Delinquent Tax 

Tax Levy Tax Levy• Each Levy Year Amount** Percent Funding Percent 
2016 $2,205,744,290 NIA NIA 100.00% 
2015 2,286,212,705 2,212,322,514 96.77% 100.00 
2014 2,217,628,392 2,140,231,078 96.51 100.00 
2013 2,170,304,164 2,083,958,031 96.02 100.00 
2012 2.155,447,277 2,059,602,174 95.55 100.00 
2011 2,196,145,824 2,081,982,974 94.80 100.00 
2010 2,317,084,920 2,179,375,143 94,06 100.00 
2009 2,552,222,639 2,388,595,610 93.59 100.00 
2008 2,608, 706,3 72 2,451,081,244 93.96 100.00 
2007 2,655,538,647 2,505,486,055 94.34 100.00 

* Includes real and personal property taxes. 2016 total estimated taxes. 
•• Reflects only real property delinquency and assumes I 00% collection of personal property taxes. 

Source: Oakland County Treasurer 

Property Subject to Taxation 

The State Constitution limits the proportion of true cash value at which property can be uniformly assessed to 50% or 
less. By statute, the state Legislature has provided that the property shall be assessed at 50% of its true cash value. The 
state Legislature or the electorate may at some future time reduce the percentage below the present 50% of true cash 
value. 

Responsibility for assessing local taxable property rests with the assessing officers of cities, villages, and townships. 
Any property owner may appeal his or her assessment to the local Board of Review and ultimately to the Michigan 
State Tax Tribunal. 

The State Constitution also mandates a system of equalization for assessments. Although the assessors for each local 
unit of government arc responsible for actually assessing at 50% of true cash value, the final stale equalized assessment 
against which local property tax rates arc applied is derived through several steps. County equalization is brought 
about by adjustments of the various local unit assessment ratios to the same levels; thereafter, the State equalizes the 
various counties in relation to each other. 

On March 15, 1994, the electors of the State approved an amendment to the Michigan Constitution, limiting the increase 
in taxable value of property in any year, commencing 1995, to 5% or the rate of inflation, whichever is less, until 
ownership of the property is transferred at which time the assessment reverts to 50% of the true cash value of the 
property, as equalized. The effect of this assessment cap will be that different parcels of property will be taxed on 
different percentages of their cash value. The legislation implementing this constitutional amendment adds a new 
measure of property value for property taxes levied after 1994, known as taxable value. For the year 1995, the taxable 
value of property is based on the state equalized value (SEV) of that property in 1994. For each year after 1994, 
increases in the taxable value of property arc limited by the constitutional assessment cap or the percentage change in 
the SEV of such property from the prior year until the transfer of ownership of the property at which time the taxable 
value shall be the property's SEV. 
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lndustrinl Facilities Tax 

The Michigan Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development District Act (Act 198, Public Acts of Michigan, 1974, 
as amended), provides significant tax incentives to industry to renovate and expand aging plants and to build new 
plants in Michigan. Under the provisions of Act I 98, qualifying cities, villages and townships may establish districts 
in which industrial firms arc offered certain property tax incentives to encourage restoration or replacement of obsolete 
industrial facilities and to attract new plants to the area. The issuance of any exemption certificate must be approved 
by the State Treasurer. Firms situated in such districts pay an Industrial Facilities Tax in lieu of property taxes on plant 
and equipment for a period of up to 12 years. For rehabilitated plant and equipment, the assessed value is frozen at 
previous levels. New plant and equipment is taxed at one-half the current millage rate. It must be emphasized, 
however, that ad valorem property taxes on land and inventory arc not reduced in any way since both land and 
inventory arc specifically excluded under Act 198. For abatements granted prior to January I, I 994, new plant and 
equipment is taxed at one half the current millage rate, except for mills levied for local and intermediate school 
operating purposes or under the State Education Tax Act, plus one-half of the number of mills levied for school 
operating purposes in 1993. For abatements granted after 1993, new plant and equipment is taxed at one-half of the 
total mills levied as ad valorem taxes by all taxing units, except mills levied under the State Education Tax Act. For 
abatements granted after 1993, the State Treasurer may also permit abatement of one-half of the mills levied or exempt 
the abatement totally from mills levied under under the State Education Act. Abatements under Act 198 have been 
granted to properties in the County with a total 2014 taxable valuation of $233,252, I I 0 for real and personal property. 
The total number of parcels with exemptions in 2014 under Act 198 within the County was 223. 

Others 

The Obsolete Properties Tax (Act 146, Public Acts of Michigan, 2000) provides partial property tax abatements to 
property owners on the value of improvements made to certain types of commercial and residential properties. 
Currently, the City of Pontiac is the only community in Oakland County to utilize this tax abatement. 

The Taxation of Lessees or Users of Tax-exempt Property Act (Act 189, Public Acts of Michigan, 1953) states that if 
real property exempt for any reason from ad valorem property taxation is leased, loaned, or otherwise made available 
to and used by a private individual, association, or corporation in connection with a business conducted for profit, the 
lessee or user of the real property is subject to taxation in the same amount and to the same extent as though the lessee 
or user owned the real property. The total number of lessees or users in 2014 under Act 189 within the County was 
31. 

Source: Oakland Counfy Treasurer 

Largest Taxpayers 

The I 0 largest taxpayers in the County and their May II , 20 16 taxable valuations arc: 

Table 5 - Ten Lnrgcst Taxpayers 

Taxpayer 
DTE 
Consumers Energy 
FCA Auburn Hills Owner LLC 
Enbridge 
SPIll West Bloomfield LLC 
Frankel Forbes Cohen 
lTC Transmission 
SL Town Eta) 
Taubman 
General Motors 

Total 

Taxable Valuation 

$555,571,295 
300,826,979 
164,630,200 
121 '746,620 
111,168,900 
86,905,570 
84,114,201 
76,509,990 
75,742,270 
69,642,320 

$] ,646,858,345$ 

Note: The taxable values have been compiled from a number of sources/reports and may include estimated ligures. 
So11rce. Oakland Coumy Eq~tctli:ation Deparfmenl 
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Major Employers 

The 25 largest employers in the County and number of employees in 2016. 

Table 6 - Twenty-Five Largest Employers in the County 

Beaumont Hospitals 
FCA US LLC 
General Motors Co. 
Ascension Michigan 
U.S. Postal Service 
Oakland County 
Henry Ford Health System 
Trinity Health 

Employer Name 

Magna International of America 
Comerica Bank 
Flagstar Bancorp Inc. 
Lear Corporation 
Oakland University 
McLaren Health Care Corp. 
Rochester Community Schools 
Walled Lake Community Schools 
Kelly Services, Inc. 
Comau, Inc. 
Delphi Automotive 
Farmington Public Schools 
Huron Valley Schools 
Detroit Medical Center 
The Suburban Collection 
Faurecia North America 
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan 

Approximate Number 
of Employees 

17,896 
12,564 
9,242 
4,408 
4,195 
3,432 
3,405 
3,098 
2,199 
2,163 
1,915 
1,834 
1,815 
1,802 
1,785 
1,461 
1,312 
1,300 
1,295 
1,288 
1,287 
1,255 
1,210 
1,169 
1,161 

Source: Oakland County Deparlmelfl of Planning unci Economic Development 
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Labor Force 

The unemployment rate for Oakland County averaged 5.0% and 5.4% for the State of Michigan in 2015. 

Table 7- Unemployment History in the County - Calendar Year 2016 

Total Labor Percent 
Month Force Unemployment Unemployed 

January 630,445 28,291 4.5% 

February 634,243 26,519 4.2 

March 641 ,620 27,900 4.3 

April 634,947 22,457 3.5 

May 646,099 24,984 3.9 

June 649,766 30,4 11 4.7 

July 655,160 31,294 4.8 

August 654,700 30,868 4.7 

September 654,888 27,857 4.3 

October 652,193 27,411 4.2 

November 650,782 26,412 4.1 

December 649,472 23,955 3.7 

Source: Sl£lte of Michigan, Department of7i:,·hnology, Management & Budget 

Table 8 - Unemployment History in the County, 2007-2015 (Annual Averages) 

Total Work Percent 
Year Force Unemployment Unemployed 

2015 625,346 31 ,385 5.0% 

2014 624.893 41 ,362 6.6 

2013 623,368 48,936 6.6 

2012 613,987 50,485 8.2 

2011 610,881 58,221 9.5 

2010 621,876 73,177 11.8 

2009 606,548 78,817 13.0 

2008 609,423 40,300 6.6 

2007 625.693 36,277 5.8 

2015 625,346 31 ,385 5.0% 

Source: SWte ofMichigcm, Department ofTedmology, Management & Budget 
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Table 9 - Unemployment History in the Stnte of Michigan, 2007-2016 (Annual Averages) 

Total Work Percent 
Yenr Force Unemployment Unemployed 
2016 4,837,000 238,000 4.9% 

2015 4,751,000 258,000 5.4 

2014 4,754,000 346,000 7.3 

2013 4,730,000 418,000 8.8 

2012 4,672,000 426,000 9.1 

2011 4,685,000 487,000 10.4 

2010 4,799,000 605,000 12.6 

2009 4,904,000 670,000 13.7 

2008 4,921,000 392,000 8.0 

2007 5,0\\,000 352,000 7.0 

Source: State of Michigan. Department ofTec/mology, Management & Budget 

Income 

Oakland County's per capita income (PCI) was $63,454 in 2015, the highest among Michigan's 83 counties. 
Oakland's PCI also compares favorably to the national average and state average of $42,812. 

Tnblc 10- Per Cnpitn Pcrsonnllncome in Onklnnd County, 2004-2014 

Year Per Capita Income 

2015 63,454 

2014 60,771 

2013 57,605 

2012 57,483 

2011 54,060 

2010 50,390 

2009 49,837 

2008 54,224 

2007 53,782 

2006 52,527 

2005 51.533 

2004 49,584 

Soun·e U.S. Departmenl of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Anal)'sis 
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County Labor Contracts 

As of February 2016, Oakland County had 5,066 full and part time positions of which I ,554 are represented 
by 8 certified bargaining units. 

There arc no current labor problems which might have a material effect upon Oakland County. 

Tnble II- Onklnnd County Employees Represented by Bnrgnining Unit 

County Employee Group 
Sherifrs Law Enforcement 
Corrections and Services 

Sheriffs Command Oflicers 

Children' s Village Employees 

Family Court Employees 

Prosecutor's Investigators 

Oakland County Employees Union 

Public Health Nurses 

Source Oakland County /Iuman Resources Department. 

Mnjor Corporations 

Number of 
Positions Contract Expiration Date 

417 9/30/2018 
337 9/30/2018 

115 9/30/2018 

135 9/30/2018 

87 9/30/2016 

9 9/30/2018 

364 9/30/2018 

___2Q 9/30/2018 

1,554 

Oakland County is host to Major Corporate Headquarters and Major Regional Division Offices. Below is a listing of 
the top ten doing business in Oakland County: 

Tnble 12- Companies With Mnjor Corporate or Regional Division Offices in Onklnnd County 

Compnny 

FCA US LLC 
Penske automotive Group 
Lear Corporation 
Delphi Automotive, PLC 
lAC Group North America Inc. 
BORGWARNER Inc. 
Federal-Mogul Corporation 
TK Holdings Inc. 
Guardian Industries Corporation 
Kelly Services, Inc. 

Source: 1/oover 's: as of Dec 6, 1016 
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Snles (millions) 

$86,057.0 
19,484.9 
18,211.4 
17,023.0 
9,743.6 
8,023.2 
7,419.0 
6,963.4 
5,600.0 
5,518.2 



Revenue Shoring from the State of Michigan 

The County receives revenue sharing payments from the State of Michigan under the State Constitution and the State 
Revenue Sharing Act of 1971, as amended (the "Revenue Sharing Act"). 

The State's fiscal year begins October I of each year and end September 30 of the following calendar year. Before the 
State's 1996-97 fiscal year, the State shared revenues received from personal income tax, intangibles tax, sales ta.'< 
and single business tax collections with counties, cities, townships and villages. In 1996, the State legislature began 
reform of both the formula for distribution of State revenue sharing and the designated sources of revenue to be shared. 
At that time, the State expressly designated the revenues of the sales ta.'< as the sole source for revenue sharing. 

Act Nos. 356 and 357, Public Acts of Michigan, 2004 signed into law on September 30, 2004 made a number of 
changes. The most important change is a movement of the county fixed or allocated millage from December I to July 
I. This movement occurs transitionally beginning in 2004 and is complete in July of2007. ln addition, a special Revenue 
Sharing Reserve Fund ("RSRF") was established and used to reduce the State's obligation to pay revenue sharing to 
counties. This allows counties to collect part of their millage earlier in the year thereby advancing their cash flows. 

The RSRF could be drawn on by counties to replace the revenue sharing payments which they would have otherwise 
received from the State. Once money in the RSRF was depleted, revenue sharing payments to the counties resumed. 
In Oakland County, revenue sharing distributions from the State resumed in 2015. 

Tax Collection and Levy Date for County Fixed or Allocated Millage 

The money which is generated by a cash flow shift which will accelerate the collection of county fixed or gllocated 
millage. All counties collect a base tax (which is, of course, reduced by 1-lcadlce rollbacks and limited by Proposal A 
caps) which is either fixed by a vote of the county voters or allocated to the county by a tax allocation board. In 
addition, counties have a right to vote extra millages for various purposes for up to 20 years. TI-llS DOES NOT 
APPLY TO EXTRA VOTED TAXES WI-IICI-1 CONTINUE TO BE LEVIED AND COLLECTED ON DECEMBER 
I. 

Resumption of Actunl Revenue Sharing Payments 

The statutory guarantee to counties to receive revenue sharing payments from the State remain in full force and effect. 

Purchasers of the Bonds offered herein should be alert to further modifications to revenue sharing payments 
to Michigan local government units, to the potential consequent impact upon the County's general fund 
condition, and to the potential impact upon the market price or marketability of the Bonds resulting from 
changes in revenues received by the County from the State. 
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1•ensions 

As of September 30, 20 16, the actuarial value of assets was used to determine both the funded status and the required 
employer contribution. The resulting System funded percent is I 02.3%. 

The following data is taken from the latest actuarial report prepared by Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company as of 
September 30,2016: 

Tnble 13- Onklnnd County Employees Retirement System- Present Finnncinl Report 

Command Corrections 
General Union Officers Road De~uties De~uties Total 

A. Accrued Liability 

I. For retirees and beneficiaries $475,902,136 $41,598,557 $47,017,620 $51 '792, 720 $616,311,033 
2. For vested /terminated members 6,803,134 299,101 140,125 298,351 7,540,711 
3. For present active members 
a. Value of expected future benefit 

payments 98,362,293 13,621,106 23,732,108 12,447,974 148,163,481 
b. Value of future normal costs 6,867,863 640,172 1,300,264 685,938 9,494,237 

c. Active member liability: (a) - (b) 91,494,430 12,980,934 22,431,844 11,762,036 138,669,244 

4. Total 574,199,700 54,878,592 69,589,589 63,853,107 762,520,988 
B. Valuation Assets 587,762,534 55,761,963 71,407,869 64,752,869 779,685,235 

C. Unfunded Accrued Liability: (A.4) - (B) ( 13,562,834) (883,371) ( 1,818,280) (899,762) ( 17, 164,247) 

IS 



Other Post-Employment Oenefits (OPED) 

As of September 30. 2015, valuation assets represent over 124% of accrued liabilities, while prior year the funded 
percent was 121%. 

The following data is taken from the latest actuarial report prepared by Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company as of 
September 30, 2015: 

Table 14- Oakland County Reti rees' llcnlth Cnre Trust* - Present Financial Report 

Command Corrections 
General Union Officers Road De~uties De~utics Total 

A. Accrued Liability 

I. For retirees and beneficiaries $375,309,370 $27,502,525 $42,219,144 $36,671,241 $481,702,280 

2. For vested terminated members 50,239,100 920,330 3,055,975 3,613,297 57,828,702 
3. For present active members 
a. Value of expected future benefit 

payments 294,404,697 30,579,258 81,556,258 49,692,439 456,232,652 

b. Value of future normal costs 57,256,900 4,270,789 22,821,907 13,105,548 97,455,144 

c. Active member liability: (a) - (b) 237,147,797 26,308,469 58,734,351 36,586,891 358,777,508 

4. Total 662,696,267 54,731,324 104,009,470 76,871,429 898,308,490 

B. Valuation Assets 817,857,080 59.472.552 138,574,476 I 02.423,259 1,118,327,367 

C. Unfunded Accrued Liability: (A.4) - (B) (1 55, 160,813) (4,741,228) (34,565,006) (25,551,830) (220,0 18,877) 

"' The State of Michigan adopted new legislation - Public Act 329, effective October 9, 2012 - which 
authorized local units of government to issue taxable general obligation bonds to fimd OP EB obligations 
This created the opportunity for the County to take advantage of lower bond interest rates and to refinance 
the 2007 COPS debt. On September 27, 20/3, Oakland County initiated a private placement ofS350 million 
in bonded debt to refinance the outstanding long-term OPEB COP's debt of S-122.1 million which uere 
subsequently called on April/, 20/./. The remaining amount of S72.1 million needed to call the debt came 
from surplus assets in the /me rim trust fimd setup to keep the VEBA Trust fitlly fimded. 
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Table 15 -llistory or State Equalized Valuation (SEV) 
(Represents 50% or true cash value) 

Assessment Personal %Change 
Year Real Property Property Total In Total Taxable Value 
2016 $61,675,751,998 $3,409,099,116 $65,084,851,114 7.04% $52,706,863,613 
2015 56,923,32 I ,000 3,882,782,774 60,806,103,774 10.39 5 I ,895,341,437 
2014 51,433,104,533 3,651 ,502, 760 55,084,607,293 7.11 50,048,650,087 
2013 47,639,423,175 3, 790,500,640 5 I ,429,923,815 1.17 49,235,110,306 

2012 4 7. I 31.932.645 3.707.092.321 50.839.024.966 -3.08 49.235.933.993 
2011 48,766,831,153 3,686,629,190 52,453,460,343 -9.16 50,798,540,257 
2010 53,979,517,024 3, 765,559,483 57,745,076,507 -14.90 55,081,707,586 
2009 63,909,419,815 3,949,566,334 67,858,986,149 -8.97 62,4 I 6,6 76,895 
2008 70,503,451,609 3,987,629,953 74,491,08 I ,562 -3.67 64,745,976,336 
2007 73,207,702,808 4,123,379,228 77,33 I ,082,036 4.16 64,720,016,857 
2006 72,291,329,373 4,148,396,210 76,439,725,583 5.56 62,133,415,235 

Source: Oakland County Equali:ation Department 

SEV does not include any value of tax exempt property (e.g., governmental facilities, churches, public schools, etc.) 
or property granted tax abatements. Sec "Taxing Procedures" herein. In accordance with Act 409, Public Acts of 
1965, as amended, and Article IX, Section 3, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963, SEV represents 50% of true cash 
value. 

Table 16 - History and Percentage Breakdown of State Equalized Vnluntion by Tux Year 

Type of Property 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Residential 76.7% 75 .3% 73.7% 71.3% 69.9% 68.5% 67.6% 68.7% 70.90/o 71.9% 
Commercial 15.2 15.5 16.7 18.0 19.3 20.6 19.6 19.0 17.6 16.7 
Industrial 2.8 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.7 6.0 6.3 6.0 5.9 
Personal Property 5.2 6.4 6.6 7.4 7.3 7.0 6.5 5.8 5.4 5.3 
Agricultural 0.1 .I .I 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Developmental 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.09 

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Source Oakland Cou111y Equali:ation Departme/11 

Personal Property Tnx Revenues 
In an effort to entice businesses to locate in Michigan and to encourage existing businesses to expand, the Michigan 
Legislature approved a series of bills in December 20 I 2 to phase out and eventually eliminate industrial and 
commercial personal property tax (PPT). These bills were tic-barred together, were to be implemented in phases, and 
required approval by statewide vote in August 2014 to take full effect. Based on these bills passed in 20 I 2, local units 
of government would have received partial but not full reimbursement from the State for reduced PPT revenue. The 
budget as adopted in September 2013 included a reduction in the PPT revenue based on the 2012 PPT reduction bills. 

The Legislature passed u series of new PPT bills in 2014 to fix some technical problems identified with the 2012 
bills and also to provide funding to eventually rully reimburse local governments for the reduction in PPT revenue. 
These bills also were dependent upon voter approval in August 2014. On August 5, 2014 the voters of the State of 
Michigan approved a ballot proposition having the effect of approving the PPT plan contained in the 2012 bills as 
modified by the 2014 bills. 

The first phase of the PPT plan took effect on January I, 2014, with an exemption for business owners if their personal 
property has a combined true cash value of less than $80,000 (taxable value of less than $40,000). However, eligible 
property owners must have filed an affidavit by February 20 14 in order to claim the exemption. The triennial budget 
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as adopted in September 2013 included the assumption that all eligible property owners filed for the required affidavit 
by the state-imposed February deadline and that PPT revenue will be reduced by $1.5 million annually in FY 2014 
and FY 2015. The previously adopted budget also included further additional reductions in PPT for the subsequent 
implementation of the second and third phases based on the legislation passed in 20 12, with the exemption amounts 
budgeted at S2.8 million in FY 2016 and increasing to $4.5 million in FY 2017. 

Based on the new legislation passed in 2014, the lost revenue from the PPT exemptions would be restored through 
State reimbursement beginning in FY 2016 which is reflected in this recommended budget as positive adjustments in 
the amounts of$2.8 million in FY 2016 and $4.5 million in FY 2017 and beyond. 

Table 17 - llistory of County Wide Tax Delinquencies 

Levy Year Real Property Personal Property 
2016• $65,979,676.55 $5,015,960.06 
2015 68,796,395.48 4,791,215.74 
2014 72,532,013.95 4,669,385.41 
2013 80,215,223.23 6,132,887.66 
2012 89,699,373.20 5,702,067.01 
2011 107,675,895.41 6,032,598.54 
2010 130,215,501.20 7,271,064.88 
2009 155,464,907.26 7,809,985.47 
2008 149,883,620.70 7,387,710.43 
2007 138,097,525.69 9,102,775.59 

• Preliminary 
Source: Oakland County 1i·easurer 

Dcbt-llistory 

The County of Oakland has no record of default. 

Short-Term Financing 

The County has issued short-term notes in order to establish the 100% Delinquent Tax Payment Fund. Notes issued 
in each of the years below have been in a face amount less than the actual real property tax delinquency. The County 
has pledged its full faith and credit and limited taxing power to the payment of principal and interest on notes issued 
since 1979. The County docs not issue short-term obligations for cash flow purposes. 

Tnble 18 - History of Onkhmd County Delinquent Tax Anticipation Notes 

Year Issued 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
201 I 
2010 
2009 

2008 

2007 

Source: Ouk/and County 1i·easurer 

Notes Issued 
$25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
25,000,000 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 
25,000,000 

25,000,000 
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Amount Outstanding 
$25,000,000 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 



Lcnsc Obligntlons 

The County leases a portion of its Law Enforcement Complex, Rochester Hills 52·3 District Court, Executive Office 
Building, Airport T-Hangars, Airport Tenninal Building, Animal Control Building and various Facility Infrastructure 
and Information Technology Capital Projects from the Oakland County Building Authority. Since ownership of the 
property will ultimately transfer to the County from the Building Authority, the leases have been capitalized. There 
arc also a number of sub-leases between the County and various governmental entities with the debt being funded 
from payments from the benefiting community over the life of the debt issues, with the structures being collateral. 
Current sub-leases are in place with the City of Rochester Hills, Oakland County Community Mental Health Authority, 
City of Keego Harbor, and City of Oak Park. All County Building Authority Debt is listed in the Debt Statement. 

The County leases certain office and computer equipment and facilities. Total lease expense and future minimum 
annual payments arc not significant. 

Future Fin1mcing 

The County will be moving ahead with its projects and has bond offerings planned for 2016. 

Bunking 

The banking needs of the County arc adequately handled by: 

Bank of America 
Bank of Birmingham 
Charter One Bank. NA 

Chemical Dank 
Chief Financial Credit Union 
Citizens Community Federal 

Clarkston State Bank 
Comerica Bank 
Crestmark Bank 

Flagstar Bank 
Genisys Credit Union 

Huron Valley State Bank 
I ndcpcndcnt Bank 

JP Morgan Chase Bank 
Lakes Community Credit Union 

Level One Bank 
mBank 

Main Street Bank 
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Mercantile Bank 
Michigan First Credit Union 

Oxford Bank 
PNC Bank 

Talmer Bank and Trust 
The Huntington National Bank 

The Private Bank 
TCF Bank 

Wolverine Bank 



Table 19 -Oakland County Net Direct Debt as of02/28/2017- Unaudited 

Self-Supporting 
or Portion Paid 

Directly by 
Benefited 

Gross MuniciQalities Net 

Limited Tax 
Building Authority s 43,560,000 $3,120,000 s 40,440,000 
Building Authority Refunding 33,980,000 33,980,000 
Retirees Health Care Bonds 306,390,000 306,390,000 
Sewer Disposal Bonds 6,900,000 3,550,000 3,350,000 
Water Supply Bonds 14,985,000 14,985,000 
Water & Sewage Refunding I ,205,000 1,205,000 
Mich. Bond Auth.-Sewage Disp. Bonds 30,832,033 2,230,727 28,601,306 
General Obligation Limited Tax Notes 25,000,000 25,000,000 
Total $462,852,033 $50,090,727 $412,761,306 

Drain District 
Drain Bonds $71,255,000 s 63,845,918 
Drain Refunding 11,205,000 9,388,630 
Michigan Bond Authority Drain 198,044,482 I 09,130,483 
Total $280,504,482 $182,365,031 

Table 20 -Oakland County Overlapping Debt as of 09/30/2016 

Cities, Villages and Townships 

School Districts 

Community College, Intermediate School Districts and Library 

County Issued Debt Paid by Local Municipalities 

Net County Overlapping Debt 

NET COUNTY DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

s 1,092,468,456 

2,324,969,193 

49,579,079 

207,455,758 

3,467,016,728 

3,977,917,485 

s 7,409,082 
1,816,370 

88,913,999 
98,139,451 

Overlapping Debt: Property in the County is currently taxed for a proportionate share of outstanding debt 

obligations of overlapping governmental entities including school districts, cities, villages and townships 

within the County. 

Source: Oakland Coumy Ji·easurer and Municipal Advisory Council of.Hichigan 
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Tnblc 21- Onklnnd County Schedule of Bond Maturities 
County Credit nnd Limited Tnx 
Principnl Only ns of 02/28/2017 

Building Water 
Water& 

MBA Sewer 

~ Building Authority Supply Sewage Disposal 
Authorit}: Refum!ing Bonds Refunding Bonds 

2017 2,575,000 2,075,000 790,000 205,000 2,205 ,000 

2018 2,655,000 2,410,000 745,000 205,000 2,260,000 

2019 2,705,000 2,465,000 730,000 200,000 1,725,000 

2020 2,780,000 2,460,000 740,000 220,000 1,770,000 

2021 2,885,000 2,345,000 775,000 215,000 1,805,000 

2022 2,960,000 2,430,000 785,000 160,000 1,850,000 

2023 815,000 1,200,000 800,000 1,895,000 

2024 820,000 755,000 835,000 1,940,000 

2025 870,000 100,000 845,000 1,985,000 

Beyond 
2025 4.320.000 Q 7,94Q,OOO IJ,J97,on 

S2.1 • .3.&5 .ooo lli.~.o.rul $14.985.000 L205.ooo S:ul.lU2.Q.ll 

Source. Oakland County li'easurer 
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Tnble 22- Onklnnd County Schedule of Drnin Bond Maturities 
County Credit and Lim iCed Tnx 
Principal Only as of 02/28/2017 

Drain Drain M.B.A. 
Year Bonds R~funding Drain Bonds 
2017 3,425,000 1,830,000 \3,067,500 
2018 3,695,000 I ,385,000 13,375,000 
2019 3,800,000 1,370,000 13,860,000 
2020 3,940,000 1,395,000 14,097,084 
2021 4,055,000 1,440,000 14,365,000 
2022 4,145,000 1,460,000 14,705,000 
2023 3,820,000 960,000 13,920,000 
2024 3,945,000 930,000 14,121,172 
2025 4,085,000 435,000 8,925,000 
Beyond 2025 J6,345,000 0 77,608,726 

S1l.2l.l,illill su.w.ooo $ill,044.482 

Source Oakland County 7i·easurer 
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Tnble 23 - Onklnnd County Schedule of Bond Maturities 
with Limited County Pledge- Taxable 

Principal Only ns or02128/2017 

Bldg. 
Bldg. Authority Retirees Health 

Year Authorit:t Refunding Care Bonds Sewage Tax Notes 

2017 890,000 2,335,000 23,020,000 305,000 25,000,000 

2018 925,000 2,425,000 23,870,000 315,000 0 

2019 945,000 2,490,000 24,750,000 325,000 0 

2020 960,000 2,575,000 25,660,000 335,000 0 

2021 970,000 2,655,000 26,605,000 350,000 0 

2022 1,010,000 2,685,000 27,585,000 355,000 0 

2023 l,o30,000 1,265,000 28,605,000 375,000 0 

2024 1,075,000 1,310,000 29,660,000 390,000 0 

2025 1,100.000 0 30.750,000 405,000 0 

Beyond 2025 11,270,000 0 65,885,000 3,74~,0QO Q 

S20.175,Ql)J! s 17.740.000 $306,l2Q,QO_Q $6.900.000 ..$2~.000.000 

So11rce: Oakland Co11nty Ji·eas11rer 
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Year 

2017-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2030 
2031 -2040 

Tnble 26 - Oak lund County Schedule of Principal and Interest Requirements 
ns of02/28/2017 

Principal Interest Total 

187,352,500.00 61,173,271.37 248,525,771.37 
285,993,256.00 67,714,553.39 353,707,809.39 
209,552,758.00 27,456,269.42 237,009,027.42 
60,458,001.00 4.028,615.83 64,486,616.83 

743,356,515.00 160,372,710.01 903,729,225.01 

Source: Oakland County Treasurer 
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Table 26 - Onklnnd County Statement of Legal Debt Murgin 
ns of 02/2812017 

Bonds and Notes with County Credit and Limited Tax 
GOLT Bldg. Authority 
GOL T Bldg. Authority Refunding 
GOLT Water 
GOLT Water & Sewage Refunding 
Michigan Bond Authority Sewage Disposal 

Drain Bonds 
Drain Bonds 
Drain Refunding 
Michigan Bond Authority Drain 

Total 

Total 

Bonds and Notes with County Credit and Limited-Taxable 
GOL T Bldg Authority 
GOL T Bldg Authority Refunding 
GOL T Retirees Health Care Bonds 
GOLTScwage 
GOL T Tax Notes 

Total All County Debt 
Statutory Limit- 10% of Currently Approved SEV 
Total County Credit/Pledged Debt 
A vailablc Statutory Debt Limit 

Source: Oakland Coullfy lhwsurer 
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Total 

$ 23,385,000.00 
16,240,000.00 
14,985,000.00 

I ,205,000.00 
30,832,033 .00 

s 86.647.033.00 

s 71,255,000.00 

s 

II ,205,000.00 
198,044,482.00 
280,50:t.482.00 

s 20,175,000.00 
17,740,000.00 

306,390,000.00 
6,900,000.00 

25,000,000.00 
S 376,W.QOO QO 

s 74.3,1.16,515 .QQ 

$6,508,485,111.40 
743,356,515.00 

$5.765.128,596.40 



APPENDIX A 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION AND STATISTICAL INFORMATION 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 

LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 

~ Charter Township of Bloomfield encompasses approximately 25 squ~~re miles ln tha southeastern portion or 
Ooklond County, 11pproxlmatel:y 14 miles nonhwest of downtown Detroit, 

FORM OF GOVERNMENT 

The Township is governed by a Board ofTNStees which Is composed of seven members who are elected for four 
ye11r lemu. The Board Is composed of 11 Supervisor, a Clerk, a Traosurer and four Trustees. The Supervisor is the chief u­
ecutive ond udmlnistratlve officer of the Township. The Boord Is vested with clll legislative powers except tho&o otherwise 
provided by low. 

POPULATION 

2010 U.S. Cent us 

2000 U.S. Ccn1u1 

1990 U.S. Census 

FJSCALYEAR 

41,070 

43,023 

42,473 

April I to March 31 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS 

Asticlc IX, Section 3, of lhe Michigan Constitution provid.:s lhatlhe proportion of true cash value ot which property 
shall be assessed shall not e10cecd 50% of crue cash value. The Michigan Legislature by stJJtute hos provided lhal property 
shall be assessed at 50% of its true cash value, except as described below. The Michigan legislature or the elcetorate may at 
some future time reduce the percentage below 50o/o of true cash value. 

On March I 5, 1994, the electors of the StJJte approved on amendment to the Michigan Constitution permittin11 the 
Legislature to authorize ad valorem taxes on a non-uniform basis. The legislation implementing this constitutional amend­
ment added a new measure ofpropcny value known as "Taxable Value.• Since 1995, tlllUible property has two valuatioN­
State equalized valuation ("SEV") and Tuable Value. Property taxes an: levied on Taxable Value. Generally, Taxable Val­
ue of property is the lesser of (a) the Taxable Value of the property in the immediately p~eding year minus any losses, mul­
tiplied by the lesser of 1.05 or tho inftation rate, plus additions, or (b) the property's CWTent SEV. Under certain clrcumstane~ 
cs, therefore, the Taxable Value of property may be different from the same property's SEV. Wh~n property Is sold or trans­
felTed, Taxable Value Is o.djusted to the SEV, which under existing law is SOOio of the cWTent true cash Vlllue. The Taxable 
Value of new construction is equal to cunene SEV. Tauble Value and SEV of existing property ore also adjusted aMUAlly 
ror additions and losses. 

On March I 5, 1994, the electors of the State of Michison also voted to amend the State Constitution to increase the 
state soles tax from 4% to 6% and to place a yearly cop on property value assessment increases. The Stale now levies a prop­
erty tu to finance education, and a higher real estate transfer tAX Is imposed on the sale of real property, 

REAL PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENTS 

Responsibility for assessing taxable real property rests with the local assessing officer of each township and city. 
Any property owner may 11ppcalthe assessment to the local assessor, the loCIII Boord of Review and ultimately to the Michi­
gan TILX Tribunal. 

The Michigan Constitution also mandates a system of equalization (or assessments. Although the assessors for each 
local unit of covemmelll within 11 county are responsible for actu111ly assessing at SO-to of true cash value, adjusted for Taxable 
Value purposes, the nnnl SEV and Tllllablc Value arc arrived at through several steps. Assessments are established initially 
by the municipal assessor. Municipal assessments are then equalized to the 500/o levels as determined by the County's De· 
portment of Equliution. Thereafter, the State equalizes the various counties in relation co each other. SEV is important, 
aside from ils usc in detennining Tauble Value for the purpose of levyin11 ad valorem property taxes, because of its role in 
the spreading ortues between ovcrlnpplngjurisdlctions, the distribution of various StJJte nid programs, SIJJte revenue sh~ng 
and in the calculation of debt limits. 

A· 2 



Real property that is exempt from property lllxes, e.g., churches, government property, public schools. is not includ­
ed In the SEV and Tnxable Volue data in this Official Slatement. Property grunted tax abatements under the Michigan Plant 
RelulbUitalion and Industrial Development District Act. Act 198, Public Acts ofMichlgan, 1974, os amended ("Act 198") are 
recorded on separute lllx rolls while subject to tax abatement. The valuation or tax abated property is based upon SEV but is 
not included In either the SEV or Tnxable Value dota in this Official Statement except os noted. 

APPEAL OF PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS 

Property laxpayers 1n11y appeal their assessments to the Michl&lln Tax Tribunal. Unless otherwise ordered by the 
Tu Tribwtal, before the TDJC Tribunal rendcl'! o decision on an assessment appeal, the taxpayer must have paid the tax bill, 
Tho Township has several to" appeal• pendiniJ before the Tax Tribunal (lncludinu personal property appeals, none of which 
ore expected to have a slgnificont impact on the Townshtp•s Slate Equolized Valuation, Taxoblo Value or the resulting !axes. 

INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES TAX 

Act 198 provides significant propetty taJt Incentives to lnduslry to renovate and expond aging Industrial facilities 11nd 
to build new Industrial facilities in Michigan. Under the provisions of Act 198, qwallfylng cities, vi1111ge1 and townships may 
establish districts in which Industrial firms an: offered cenaln property tax incentives to encotlnlge restoration or replacement 
of obsolete Industrial fllcilltles and to oltnlct new lnduslrial facUlties. 

Property owners situated in such districts pay an Industrial Facilities Tax ("1FT'') in lieu ofad valorem property taxes 
on plant and equipment for a period of up to 12 years. For rehabilltoted plant and equipment, the 1FT Is determined by calcu­
lating the product of the la.Xable value ofthe repl11cement facility In the year before the effective data of the abatement cerrifi­
cote multiplied by the total mills levied by all taxing units In the current year. For abatements granted prior to JIU\uary I, 
1994, new plant and equipment is taxed at one-half the toto I mills levied by all !axing units, except for mills levied for local 
school district operating purposes or under the State Education Tax Act, plus one-half of the number of mills levied for local 
school district operating purposes In 1993. For new facility obotements granted after 1993, new plant and equipment is taxed 
at one-half of the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes by oll tulns unil5. except mills levied wtder the Stnte Education Tax 
Act, plus the number of milia levied under the Stole Educotion Tu Act. for new facility abotements erunted after 1993, the 
Stole Trcosurer may permit abotement of all, none or one-half or the mill& levied under the Stole Education Tnx Act. It must 
be emphosized, however, chat ad Ylllorem property taxea on land and inventory are not reduced In ony way since both land 
and Inventory ore specifically excluded under Act 198. 

The Township does not currently have any outstanding 1FT r:ert(/1cotes. 

HISTORY OF PROPERTY VALUATIONS 

Yeor 
2016 

2015 

2014 

201J 
2012 

2011 
2010 
2009 

2008 

2007 

Sow-ce: Oakland County Equ~tllzatlon Depa.rtment 

MJCHJGAN PROPERTY TAX REFORM 

State Equalized 
Valuation 

S4,497 ,242,280 

4,144,S31,220 

3, 724,060,7SO 

3,399,266,390 

3,254,592,2.51 

3,226,628,090 

3,485.076,600 
4,11.5,224,310 
4,492,380,886 

4,696,964,620 

Ta~blc Value 
$3,470,928,740 

3,364,207,610 

3.245,848,860 

3,167,371,380 

3,096,798,011 

3, ISS,385,640 
3,404,549,680 

3,878,712,490 
3,948.259,831 

3,934,123,580 

On March 28 and April I, 2014, Governor Snyder signed into low o package of bills amending and replaclngleglsla· 
lion en11c1ed in 2012 lo refonn personnl property tu In Michigan. Commercial and industrial personal property or each own­
er with a combined ll'Uc cash value in a local taxing unit of less than $80,000 15 exempt from ad valorem taxes begiMina in 
2014. All eligible manufacturing personal property purchased or put Into service beginning in 2013 and used more than SO% 
of the tim~: in industrial processing or direct inteBJ11Ied support becomes exempt begiMing in 2016. The lesislation extends 
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certllin personal property tax exemptions and tax ab•temcnls for technology park!, Industrial facilities and enterprise zones 
that were to expire after 2012, until the newly enacted personal propeny laX exemptions take effect. Punuant to voter ap• 
provalin August 2014, the 2014 lcgiJlatlon also Includes a fonnula to reimburse local governments for lost personal property 
tiUt revenue. To provide the reimbursement, the legislation reduces the state use tax and creates a Local Community Stabili­
ZDtion Authority which will levy a local usc tu component and distribute that revenue to quallfyln& local units, The final 
impact of this lesblation caMot be detennined at this time, 

The ultimate nature, extent and Impact of any other future amendments to Michigan's property tax Jaws on the 
Township's flnanccs caMot be predicted. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult with their legal counsel and financlaladvi· 
sors as to the consequences of any such legislation on the market price or marketability of the Bonds, tho security therefor and 
the operations of the Township. 

An analysis of State Equalized Valuation is as follows: 

Real Property 
Personal Property 
TOTAL 

Resident In I 
Comn:rclal 
1 nd uuri111 
Personal Propeny 
TOTAL 

2016 
54,415,066,190 

82,176,090 
S4,497 ,242.280 

2016 
4,110,658,760 

302,019,840 
2J87,S90 

81,176.090 
$4,497.242.280 

Source: Oakland County Equalization Depanment 

An analysis ofTnable Value is as follows: 

Reo! Propcny 
Personal Propeny 
TOTAL 

Residential 
Comm:rcit~l 

lndustrilll 
Pcrson11l Property 
TOTAL 

2016 
S3J88, 752,650 

82,176,090 
SJ,470,928, 740 

2016 
3,139,476,690 

247,260,390 
2,015,570 

82,176,090 
53,470,928,740 

Source: Oakland County Equalization Department 
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BY CLASS 
2015 2014 

S4,067,802, 760 S3,647,D71,980 
76.728,460 76,988,770 

S4.144,531.220 S3.124,060,7SO 

BY USE 
2015 2014 

3,781,762,430 3,369,996,450 
283,685,400 274,758,690 

2,3S4,930 2,316,840 
76,728,460 76,988,770 

S4,144,SJ\,220 SJ,124,060,7SO 

BYCLJ\SS 
2015 2014 

S3,287,478,7.50 S3,168,860,090 
76,728,860 76,988,770 

SJ,J64,207,610 $3,245,848,860 

BY USE 
2015 2014 

3,041,371 ,240 2,924,402,200 
243,897,910 242,479,890 

2,009,600 1,978,000 
76.728.860 76,988,770 

SJ.J64.207 ,61 0 S3.24S,B48.860 



MAJOR TAXPAYERS 

Acc:ordinG to Township officials the 2016 Taxable Value of cac:h of the Township's major IAxpaycrs Ia as follows: 

2016 •;.orTotol 
NllmC ofTa1!1llc:r Tamble Value TaiiDblc Value 
DTEEneray s 18,845,210 0.54% 
Consumers Energy Co~any 8,093.240 0.23% 
Oaklllnd HWs Country Club 7,313,530 0.21% 
New Bloomfield Piau, Inc. 7,133,330 0.21% 
Tel· Square Really U.C • 6,304,550 0.18"/t 
Costco Wholesale Corpomtion 6,201,160 0.18% 
AT&T Mobility, U.C 6,012,060 0.17'/o 
Cole: u Bloomfield Hills Ml, UC $,911,100 O.J7% 
Health Care REIT, Inc. $,871,750 0.17% 
LTF Lcuc Coflllany,LLC • 5,627,990 0.16% 
Total s 77,320,520 2.23% 

• This t11Xpayc:r Is appealing its property valuations, Sec "APPEAL OF PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS", hmln. 



TAX RATES• 

(Per Sl,OOD ofToxllble Vo.lue) 

2016 2015 

Non 
Prin~ip11l Principal Principal 

01ancr Town~ hip or DloonV!dd Bnilh:os;s [ls:2l!h:ll!ill B11~ldsoss 
- Ope1111ing 0.9751 0.97SI 0.9813 

• Vnlt:d 111 
1.2744 1.2744 1.290l 

• RD11d• Ill 0.7027 07027 0.7115 
• Publk Safety 111 

6.\075 6.1075 6.1838 
• Sa(cty Path ~~ 1 0.4747 0.4747 0.4807 
·Senior Sc,...ic:c ''1 0.2392 0.2392 01422 
• l...ibr.uy opcrDtins 1.4301 1.4301 1.44110 

- libr.~ry opcrDiinB (voccd) '
11 

0.5307 0.5307 0.5374 

• ~'b111ry debt ''1 G.4ROO 0.4800 0.5000 
• Omins 0.]300 0.3300 OJ!IOO 

• OlpitAIIIT1!. Llcbt'
11 

0.4600 04600 04800 
County ofOakfllnd 4.279:!. 4.2792 43310 
Bloomfield Htlb School D~tricl 

-local 111.0000 
- Supplo:m:ntal 7848-l 7.7~60 

• Sinktng FunLI 0.7239 0.7239 0.7326 
• Debt 0.9500 0.9500 0.9500 

Stole: Educ11tiun Tax (Sell 6.0000 6.0000 6.0000 
O:tkland County lnte~diAtc School District ).33911 3.33911 3.3633 
OaklDnd County Cormunily College I.S101 I.S707 I S819 
llumn-Ciincun Melro Authorily 0.2146 0.21-16 0.2146 
S.M.A R.T. 0.994\ 0,9941 0.9998 
An lnstilutc Authority 0.1981 0.1981 0.1996 
Zoo Authorily 0.0990 0.0990 D.U998 
Total All Jurisdictions 39.2222 49.3738 39.44911 

ll' Vo1ed milh1gc: expires 2019 
111 Voted millogc: expires 2016 
11

, Includes voted millugc:s expirinc 2016, 2022, 2023 and 2025 
1 ~ 1 Voted millogc expires 2018 
m Voted millage expires 2032 
l61 Voted millnge expires 2023 
171 Voted millage expires 2023 

2014 

Non Non 

Principal Principal Principal 

~Jiii'D'S: Bnills:a;s: Bsli!.I,DS:~ 

0.9873 0.9939 0.9939 

1.2903 1.29R9 IJ989 

0.7115 0,7161 0.7163 

6.\838 6.2250 6.2250 

0.4807 0.4839 0.4839 

0.2422 0.2439 0.2439 

1.4480 1.9987 1.99!7 

05374 

0.5000 0.5\00 0.5100 

0.3900 0.3900 OJ900 

0.-1800 0.4800 0.4800 

4.3310 4.4315 4.4JIS 

\11.0000 18.0000 

R.l$63 

0.7326 0.7388 0.7388 

0.9500 09$86 0.9586 
11.0000 6.0000 11.0000 
3.3633 l.3690 ].3690 
I.SIII9 1.5844 I.S844 
0.2146 0.2146 0.2146 

0,9998 1.0000 1.0000 

0.1996 0.4!000 0,2000 

O.O'J'Jll 0.\000 0.1000 

49.7238 40 0938 49.9l7S 

• Principal n:sldence includes qualified agricultural property, qualified forest propeny and industriol personal property, which 
is e:.:cluded from cnxes levied for school openlling purposes. Moreover, commercial personal property is exemp1 fi'om a pot· 
tion of1axes levied for school operating pu~poses. Non Principnl Residence is property not included in the above definition. 
Source: Ch11ncr Township orBioomReld 



TAX RATE LIMITATIONS <II 

The Township is a11thorized punuont to Act 359, Public Acts of Michl con, 1947, a.s amended (the "Charter Town­
ship Act") to levy the folloMng lox roles: 

Maximum 

Millage 

Authori7.ed 

Oenenll Opcrutins 1.4100 

Maximum 

Millage 

ToBskviedm 

0.9751 

Expi111tion 

Dote ofMillauc 

In Perpetuity 

111 The Michigan Constitution places certain reslricUons on new taxes and tax increases And limits taxes for the payment of 
principal and Interest on bonds or other evidences of Indebtedness oul.!itanding on or after December 23, 1978, unless such 
obligations ore approved by the electors of the Issuing public corpoiUtion. 

111 Sec "PROPERTY VALUATIONS" ~~nd "CONSTITUTIONAL MILLAGE ROLL-BACK" herein 

In addition, Anicle IX. Section 6, pennits the levy of millage in CltCC&S of lhc above ro r: 
I. All debt service on IDJC supported bonds issued prior 10 December 23, 1978 or tDJC supported Issues 

which bovc been approved by lhe voters for which the Issuer has pledged its full fallh and credit, 

2. Opernling purpose!! for a speclned period of time provided that said increuc Is opproved by a ma· 
jority ofthc qualified elcctol'll of the local unit. 

3. Payment ofvalid judgments levied In occordance with State low. 

CONSTITUTIONAL MILLAGE ROLL·BACK 

Article IX, Section 31 of the Michigan Constitution requires that If the total value of existinG la:uble property In a 
local taxing unit, exclusive of new construction and improvements, increases futer than the U.S. Consumer Price Index from 
one yeor to the next, the maximum authorized tax rate for that local taxing unit must be pcnnancntly reduced through a 
Millage Reduction Fraction unless reversed by A vote of the electorate of the local taxing unit. 

·- EStimate 

YeAr 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 

Source: Charter Township of Bloomfield 

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Catlcctlons to Ma~h 1 
To:~tLcvy 

S47,161,000 • 
46,460.678 
43,301,571 
42,329,811 
41,264,728 
41,694,060 
44,116.202 
44,505,638 
45,382,069 
44,913,928 

A-7 

ofFollowing Year 
To Be Collected 

$45,100,720 97.07% 
41,726,468 96.36% 
40,828,439 96.45% 
39,754,293 96.34% 
40,098,808 96.17% 
42,167,507 9S.S8% 
42,147,621 94.70% 
42,433,483 93.50% 
42,327,344 94.24% 



The Township's 1:1xcs ore due nnd poyoble and a lien created upon the assessed property on July I, each yenr. Taxes 
remnining unpaid on the following March I stlll'e IUmed over to tbe County TrellSUJer for collection. 

The Gencllll Property Tox Act was amended by Act 123 of Public Ac!S of Michigan of 1999 ("Act 123") which 
made clelcnsive revisions to the proccdwcs for collection of delinquent real property taxes. In gcncml, for real property taxes 
levied ol\er December 31, 1998, all property returned for de\lnquentlllxes is subject to forfeiture, fun:closurc and sale for the 
delinquent tuxes in lieu of the tnx lien sole held heretofore by the County Treasurer on the second Monday in May (which fol­
lowed by twenty six (26) months the return ofthe delinquent tnxes). Actl23 has the effect of shortening the process for col­
lection of delinquent real property taxc9 ftom approximately six years (including statutory redemplion periods) to approxi­
mately four years. Act 123 will not a !Teet the obligntlon or authority of the Township to levy nny toxes necessoty for pay­
ment of debt service on general obligation limited tax bonds of the Township, including the Bonds offered herein. 

Oakland County has established a Delinquent Tox Revolving Fund which pays all real prope11y tnxcs and special IS· 

sessments returned delinquent to the CoWlty TtellSurcr as or Murch I st of each year. Said fund pays alllocai units, school 
districts, Yilloges, townships ond the County general fund for the full amount of taxes and specialliSsessments levied against 
teal prope11y. 1r feasible, it is anticipated th11t the County will continue to reimburse the Township for any uncollected tnxcs 
ond special assessments, but there is no nssurance thotthis will be the case since the County is not obligated to continue this 
l'und in future years. Uncollected personal prope11y taxl:ll must be collected by lhc local treasurer and arc negligible. 

REVENUES FROM THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 

The To'M'lShiJl n:ceives revenue shDring payments fiom the Srntc of Michlg~~n under the State Constirution lll1d the SIDle Revenue 
Sharins Act of 1971, 115 nmended. The revenue sho.rinc payments ore composed of two compont:nts - 11 constitutional dlstri· 
bution and a statutory distribution, 

The constitutional distribution is mondoted by the Stote Constitucion and distributed on a per cupllll basis to to'M'lShips, cities 
ond vi1111gcs. The amount of the constitutionally mandated revenue stuuing component distributed to the Township cnn Vllf'Y depending 
on the populntlon of the Township IU\d the receipt of511lcs tnx revenues by the State, 

Tiu: stalutory distribution is authorized by legisllltlve action nnd disbibution is subject to annunl State uppropri11tion by the Stutc 
legislatwc. Statutory distributions may be n:duccd or demyed by Exec:ulive Order during any SIDle liSCll year in which the Governor, with 
the 11pproval of the Slate Legislature's appropriations commiuecs, detmnines that actuol revenues will b.: less than the ~venue esti­
mates on which uppropriotions wen: based. 

On June 2 9, 20 16, Go vemor Snyder signed into law the budget for fiscal year 20 17, The budget includes a 
cons1itutionoJ n:venue sharirlg distnbution to cities, villages and townships ofapproximatcly S7S7.9 million. The budget continues the 
incenll ve ·based revenue sharing program known os the City, Vilmge, and Township ~venue Sharing (or "CVJ'RS'') program begun 
in ftsCa1 year 2015, similar to the Economic Vilolity Incentive Prognun ("EVIP'') that ficm fiscal year 2012 through fiscal ycor 2014 
distnbut.c:d revenue shoring to municipolitics thllt complied with ccrtoln ''best practices" such os increasing trnnspnrency. Under the 
fiscal yenr 20 17 budget, approximately 5243 million. the same amount appropriat.c:d in fiscal yelll' 20 16, has been appropriated for 
~venue sluuing to cities, villages and townships lhllt meet requi~ments for accowllability nnd trunsparency, including muking a 
citizen's b'Uitle to its fillllll~. a performance dashboani. a debt service report and a two-ycnr budge1 projection awilable for public 
viewing. The fiscal year 2017 budget reinstotcs SS.8 million. previously included in the fiscal ycar201S budgetb\11 eliminated in 2016, 
for distribution to cities, vilmges and townships os a one-time payment boscd on population. The fiscal yell!' 2017 budget also maintains 
fWlding for the revenue sharing gmnt program for finonciolly distressed communities at the fisC41 year 20 16 level of SS million. Any 
portion of the CVfRS payment that the Township would be eligible to receive would be subject to ccrtnin benchmarks that the 
Township would need to meet, and there cnn be no assurunce ofwhatllt'nount, If any, the Township would receive Wider the CVTRS 
program. The Township received revenue shoring payments of$3,217,480 • based on the State of Michigan fiscal yenr ended 
September 30, 2016, and onlicipotes meeting the requirements to receive S3,16S,624 • In revenue shnrlng payments for the 
State's liscal yeur ending Seplember 30, 2017 according to the Township's budget for fiscal year ending March 3 I, 2017. 

Pwchllsers of the Bonds should be alcned to further modifications to revenue stuuinc payments to Mlt:ltlgan local cavem­
mentol units. to potentiol consequent Impact on the Township's general fund condition, and to the potcntlol impact upon the market 
price or markelllbility of the Bonds rcrulting fiom changes in revenues received by the Township ficm the State. 

• Estlmntc 

A·ll 



The following table sets forth the annual revenue shurinQ p11ymc:ncs and other moneys received by the Township for 
the State ofMichig11n nscal years ended September 30,2012 through September 30,2016. 

·~ 

State 
Fiscal Yc:11r Ended 

Septerrber 30, 
2016 
lOIS 
2014 
2013 
2012 

Conslitutional 
Paym:nts 

• s 3,108,785 
3,129.2'!1 
3,080,866 
3,010,171 
2,949,213 

Statutory 
Poyn~nts 

s 

EVIP/CVTRS 
Payments 

s 108,695 
108,695 

6,273 
2,992 
4,965 

Total 
Sl,217,480 
3,237,950 
],087,139 
],013,263 
2,954.178 

Source: hu ns: 1 vco!l -sccurc. s1 !th: .mj. us/ppps/llm.ln!\-~hnn;m fo. nsn 

LABOR AGREEMENTS 

The Township hu three employee bnrcaining uniiS which have negotiated comprehensive salary, wage, fringe bene· 
fit and working condllions contnlc:IS with the Township. The duration of these agrc:emeniS are 111 follows: 

Nurrberor Ellpirutlon ODIC 

E'.n1Jio>,:ee GtJ UJ! &q,lo~ec:s or contract 

firefighters 51 March 31,2017 

Police ~Joyecs (Cormund Officers) 16 March 31, :WI7 

Police Employees (Patrolrren) 48 Mllrch 31,2017 

Sme: Charter Township of Bloomfield Financial Statement.s and Supplementlllj' Information for fiscal year ended March 
31,2016. 

RETIREMENT PLAN 

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN • 

The Township of Bloomfield Retirement Income Plan Is a single-employer defined benefit plan. It is the 
responsibility of the Township pension employees' n:tiremenc system (PERS) co function as the Investment and 
administrative agent for the Township wich respect to the pension plan. 

Based on state statutes, u.Jl full·time employees must be allowed to participu.te in the pension plan. However, us a 
denned conaibution plan was created lllld efTec:tivc April 1, 200S, new hires ere no longer allowed to participate In the 
dr:llncd benefit plan. Under the provision of the Township's pension plan, pension benefits vest after eight years of f\111-lime 
employment, except for the Township's police officers who vest after ten years of &ervfc:e. The plan pays upon retirement a 
benefit (depending on department) of 2.1 to 3.0% of final yearly comings multiplied by years of credited service. Maximum 
benefits vary by department and tenure and ran11e ffom 80% to 90% of final emmlngs. Retirement ages also vary by 
dcpllrtment and rnnge from age SO to uge 62. Employees are also eligible for early retirement at reduced benefits. Retirement 
plan benefits for some departments arc negotiated as part or collective bargnining agreements and may vary pursuant to these 
agreements. 

Membership in the Plan consisted or the following at January I, 2016, the lntest actuarial valuation: 

Rl:tirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 262 
Terminated and lnaclivc plan m:nilers entitled to 
but not yet receiving bencfliJ 14 

Active plan rrembcn 181 
Total 457 

The obllgntion to contribute to and maintain the Plan for the Township's employees was established by Board 
rcsolucion. 



Under provisions of the Plan, Library Dnd Bloomfield Village Pollee Department employees contribute S% of tlu:ir 
gross earnings to lhe Plan. All other employees contribute between I% and J .S% of their aross coming~ to lhe Plan. In 
addition, the Township must provide oMuol contributions sufficient lo satisfy the actuarially detennlned contribution 
requirements os mandated by the Plan. 

Total contributions to the Plan ror lhe plan year beginning January I, 2015, amounted to $302,355 of which I 00% 
were mode by the Township employees on covered payroll ofSI3,118,137 for the 2015 calendar year. 

The Township's employer contributions for its fiscal year ending March ll, 2016, were SO due to the plan being 
fully funded. The pension contributions represent funding for normal c:ost and an sddil!onml contribution. 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Acluarilll ActuariDI UAALu a% 
Valuation Value or AccNed Unlilndcd Fumlcd Covered orCoven:d 

Dote A nels lillhilhl lA ALl AAL(UAAL) Ratio Pa:z:roll rolroll 
lllf2011 Sl19,693,071 $148,403,066 528,709,989 81% $15,!22.~ 185.0% 
111/2012 123.455,1100 I 52,669,000 29,214,000 sw. 15,338,979 190.5% 
111/2013 127,620,304 157,732.226 30,111,922 81% 14,862,788 202.6% 
1/1/2014 218,093,62.5 21S,I64,942 (2,928,613) 101% 14,159,86] ·20.7% 
lll/2015 223,169,053 203,271,702 (19,R97,351) 110'" 13,711,213 -145.1% 
111/2016 205,807,266 2011.236,229 l,<t28,963 99"/o 13,118,137 18.5% 

• See Note 9 contained in the Township's Audited Flnunclol Statements, fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 for tiuther 
infonnation. 

DEFINED CONTRJBUTION PLAN •• 

The Chnrter Towruhip of Bloomfield 40 l(a) Plan Is a defined contribution pension pion established by the Township 
to provide benefits at retirement for eligible employees. The pion was effective April I, 2005 for new Township hires and 
crreclive on or mfier April 2, 20 II for Bloomfield Township Library eligible employees. At March 31, 2016 lhere were 90 
phm members. A stand-alone financial report of the plan has not been issued. 

The Township may make discretionary contributions of not more tluut 10% of the total compensation for all active 
participantS roc all phm memben except bugained employees. Township contributions for barcaincd employees will be made 
in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement. Contributions are made bi-weekly. For the year ended March 31, 
2016, contributions in the amount of S642,S95 were made to the plan by the Township. In addition, discretionary 
contributions In the amount of$93,69.5 were mode to the: pllln by Township employees. 

•• See Note I 0 cont11incd In the Township'& Audited Financial Statements, fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 for further 
informmtion. 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS ••• 

In addition to the pension benefits described 11bove the Township provides contributory ond noncontributory 
medical, dental, vision and basic life inliuruncc coverage for eligible relirees and their spouse!. The benefits are paid to four 
group1 of employees who arc eligible for different retiree benefits based on their dote of hire. Additionally, benefits for 
bargaining employees arc specified by union contract while the Board of Trustees establishes those roc non-bargaining 
employees. BorcBinlnJ: ond non-bar~:alnlng employees who retire at or after age 50 with 111 least 15 yean; of service are 
eligible for medical, dental mnd vision coverage. Bargaining and non-borguining employees who retire at the appropriate 
attAined age with at least 1.5 yeara of service arc eligible for life insw.nce covcn~gc In the amount of S6,000-$8,000 
depending on their bargaining/non-bargaining sl4tus. 

For this piAn, contribution requirements of the plan membeB and the Township are established and may be amended 
by union contJact for bllrt:alning employees and for non·batgalning employees by the Boord of Trustees. The Township's 
aMual other postemploymcnt benefit (OPEB) cosl (expense) for the plan is calculated bued on the annual requin:d 
contribution of the employer (ARC), an Dmount IICIUarially dctcnnined in accordance with the parametcn ofGASB Sllltemcnt 
45 "Accountlna and Financial Reporting by Employers ror Postcmployment Bencfiu Other Than Pensiont." The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, Is projcc:tcd to cover nonnol costs each year and to amortb:c 
any unfunded actuoriolllabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thiey years. 
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The Township's annunl OPEB cost for the year ended Marc:h 3 I, 2016 and the related Information for the pion are as 
follows: 

Contribution rntes: 
Township- Actuarially determined 
Plan cmJri)ers 

Primary 
Government 

0.11/. 
NJA 

Corrponcnt 
Unit 
o.o-;. 
N/A 

Annual ~quin:d contribution (~commended) 
lntc:Mst on net OPEB obligation 

s 13.238,120 
1,527,510 

(2,186,161) 
12,579,469 
(9,910,643) 
2,668,826 

s 531,108 
71,675 

(103,517) 
499,266 

(170,377) 

Adjustcmnt to annual ~quin:d contn'bulion 
Annual OPEB cost 

Contmutions nde 
Jnc:tt:asc: in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB obligAtion - Beginning of year 
Net OPEB oblisation- End ofyeor 

37,842.447 
S40.SII.273 

328,889 
1,791,887 

s 2.12o.n6 

The Township's annual OPEB cost, the percent11gc of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligadon, for lhe plan is as follows: 

Perc:entagc of 
Annual OPEBCostto NctOPEB 

YearEnd OPEBCost Obi!Jation Obli&atlon 
313((2016 s 13,078,735 30.7% $42,632,049 

Primuy Government s 12,579,469 31.1% $40,511,273 
Component Unit s 499,266 23.5% s 2,120,776 

Actual 
Year Annual ~Ioyer Pc:n:c:n t11gc Net 
End OPEBCost Contn'bution Contributed Oblisotion 

Ptimtcy GovcmRnl 3/3112013 s 7,803,892 s 2,826,942 36.2% s 22,031.)98 
Primary Govcmmcnc 313112014 s 11,529,765 s 3,705,253 32.1% 529,855,910 
Primlry Govc:mment 3131/2015 S 11,801,608 s 3,815,071 32.3,.. S37,842,447 
Prirnlry Govcmm:nl 3/31/2016 s 12,579,469 s 9,910,643 78.1r'/o S~0,511,273 

Component Unit 3/3112013 s 353,412 s 149,405 42.3% s 1,065,980 
Component Unil 3131/2014 s 503,682 s 142,429 28.3% s 1,427,233 
Coq~oncnl Unit 3/31/2015 s 517,090 s 152.436 29.5% s 1,791,887 
Co~ncnt Unit 3/31/2016 s 499,266 s 110,3n 34.W. s 2,120,176 
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In addition to the premiums paid ors3,815,071, lhe Township IIISO made I SSOO,OOO contribution directly to the Rc· 
tiree He11lth Cue fund af\cr the acruarial valuation date. The funded st11tus of lho plan as of July l, lOIS, was os follows: 

ActuorialaccNed liab illty 
Ac1Uari11l value of plan a.s1ets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued ll:Jbillly 

Township 
Co~onent Unit 
Funded ratio 
Covered payroll 
Unfunded CM:tUorial DCCNCd liDbUity 

$157,39(1.63! 
5,437,023 

($151,9.53,612) 
$146,695,932 

$!,257,680 
3.45% 

SIS,l79,000 
994-'% 

••• Sec Note 12 contained In the Township's Audited FiNUICial Statements, fiscal year ended M~h 31, 2016 for funhcr 
lnfonnallon. 
Source: Chaner Township of Bloomfield Financial Statements and SupplementAry lnfonnotion for flsc:al year ended March 
31,2016. 

GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE 

The Township's Oenel'll Fund fund balllllce for tho lut five fiscal years is CIS follows: 

riSCIII Year Ended 
Man:h 31. 

2016 
2DIS 
2014 
2013 
2012 

Fund 
&lance 

s 12.504,251 
\1,838,362 
11,640.178 
11,498,694 
10,968,071 

Source: Chatter Township of Bloomfield Financial Statements and SupplcmcniAry lnfonnatlon 

A·ll 



DIRECTDDIT 

Gcncr:d Obllgmtion 
11/01/2007 

0310112008 
OJ/01/2008 

0412712011 
08109/2012 

0412312013 

09/0412013 

11/07/2013 
0&'1412014 

12/1812014 

09/IS/2015 

0&11712016 

01/0l/2017 

12/2812016 
12/28/2016 

DEBTSTAltMF.NT 

As or January l, 2017 

Capitol I111Jrovcrnents, UT 

Olpitolln.,rovcrnents, Water Series 2008A, LT 
Capital Improvements, Sewer Series 20088, LT 

Capit11llq:uvvcments, Water/Sewer, LT 
u'bnuy, UTRcf\.tndlng 

Copiuallflllrovemencs, Water, LT 
Street lll'flrovcmcnts (SA} LT 

Pension Obllgotlon (LT) 
Strectlq~rovom:nts (SA), LT, 2014 

Rcfundint: Bonds, Series 2014 (LT} 

Street t""rovcmcnts (SA), LT, 201S 
Street lfl1'rovcmcnts (SA),LT,2016 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A, LT 

Refunding Bonds, Series 20168, LT 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, UT 
Shore of County Issued Bonds 

Druin 
N£TDIR£CTDDIT 

OVERLAPPING DDIT 

A von dole School District 

BiminghamSchool District 
Bloomfield Hills School District 
Ponliac School District 

OakiDnd County ® lArge 

6.66% 
2t.28o/, 

63.200/e 

10.15% 

6.S7% 

6.60% Oakbnd lntcmw:duue School District 

6.62% O:skiDnd Cortm~nlty College 

TOTAL OVERI..APPING DEBT 

NET DIRECT AND OVDU..APPING DEBT 

DEBT RATIOS: 

Per Capito 2016 State Equalized Valuation 

Per Capita 2016 True Olsh Voluc 

Per Capito Net Direct Debt 

Per Capita Combined Net Din:ct and Overlapping Debt 

Percent ofNct Din:c:t Debt or2016 Stntc: Equalized Votunlion 

Percent ofNct Direct ond OvcrlnppinQ Debt of2016 Stotr: Equ111izcd Vnlulltion 

Percent ofNcl Dln:ct Debt of2016 True Clsh Voluc 

Percent of Net Directnnd Overlapping Debt of2016 True Cash Value 

Source: Municipol Advisory Council ofMichlgon 
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$1,400,000 

480,000 
400,000 

2,SSO,OOO 

12,JSS,OOO 

2,950,000 

~fiO.OOO 

69,415,000 

3,lOS,OOO 
2,800,000 

1,220,000 

605,000 

J,tto,ooo 
2,710,000 

t8,83S,OOO 

s 118,491,600 s 
20S,I3S,OOO 

$4,450,000 

33,789,13S 

395,418,387 
46,680,000 

1,605,000 

s 
s 

St22J9S,OOO 

S6,l6J,S08 

SI28.8S8,S08 

7,891,541 
43,652,728 

34,412,400 

3,429,597 

25,978,988 

3,080,880 

106.251 
l18,SS2.38S 

247,410,893 

SJ09,501.88 

5219,003.76 

SJ,J37.SJ 

56,024.13 

2.87% 

S.SO% 
1.43% 

2.75% 



SCHI!Dt/LEOF BOND MA.11JIUJ1f.S 
.As Dr January 3, 2017 

Q:ncrul Share or county 
Obliuotion Is1ued Droln 

Year Bonds Bond a 
2016 so so 
2017 7,17.5,000 588,0.53 
2018 7,160,000 296,9115 

2019 7,480,000 303,594 
2020 7,690,000 315,:!04 

2021 7,710,000 326,813 
202l 7,88S,OOO 337,1S9 
2023 8,19.5,000 346,095 
2024 8,S4S,OOO 361,540 

2025 1,265,000 373,149 
2026 7,625,000 314,260 
2027 7,740,000 326,932 
2028 7,14.5,000 343,440 
2029 7,605,000 356,112 
2030 7,725,000 373,784 
2031 7,6.55,000 390,2!12 
2032 7,99.5,000 21.5,000 
2033 0 22.5,000 
2034 0 230,000 
203.5 0 240,000 

$122,595,000 $6,263.508 

DEBT HJSTORY: Then: is no n:cord of default. 

FtJTtJRB BONDING: The Township anticipates the is!uancc of two ~:enenl 
obligation limiacd lax bond lssuea through Oaldond County for water and sewer 
Improvements in tha opprollinutc amDunts of 5698,000 and S3,400,000, 
n:spectivcly. Addtionalty, the Township anticipates the issuance o fappromulely 
S99.5,000 in drain bonds throuah the County. The Township anticipates the 
afon:mcntioned bonds will be Issued during the 2017 calendar year. 



STA 'JlMEIIT OF LEXiAL DOlT MARGIN 

As of January 3, 2017 
2016 Suuc Equalill:d Vollation 

Debt Limited 10"/e of State Equmlizl:d Valuation (I) 
Amount ofOutstandinr~ Debt 
Less: (2·o) Special Asscument Bonds 

(2-d) Share of County Issued Bonds 

LF.G\L DOlT MARGL'l 

s 128,858,508 
5,590,000 
6.261,508 

$4,497,242,280 

449,724,228 

J17,00S,OOO 
S332,7l9,2l8 

(I) Act359, Public Acts of Michigan, 1947, ms amended (the "Quarter Township Act"),prvvides that 
the net indebtedness orthc Township shaU not cl!Cced 10"..4 of aU assessed reo land pcnonalpropcrty in 
the Township. 
(2) Bond~ which ore not included in the coJ111utation of Jc;al debt nargin according to the Olartcr 
Township Act are: 

(a) Special Asscssm~:nl Bonds; 
(b) Revenue Bonds; 
(c) Bonds Iss ucd, or con trocc or as seas ment obligations Incurred, co con;»Jy with mn order of the 

fonn:r wmtcr resources comnission, the department of environmental qualky, or a court ofcO"lJCicnl 
jurisdiction; 

(d) Bonds issued, or controct orasscss m:nt obliaations incuncd, for Willer supply, sewage, drulnage 
or refUse dlsposo.l))rojccts ncccsSDI)' toprotectthe public health by abating pollution; 

(c) Bonds issued, or cont.aet or uscssment oblisations incurred, for the construction, in1Jrovcment 
or replacement ora combined sewer overflow abatement fucility; and 
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MAJOR EMPLOYERS 

Major employers In the Township are as follows: 

E'lmloxer 
Bloomfield Hills Schoo Is 
Bloomfield Township 
Oaldllnd Hills Country Oub 
Kro;er 
Costco Worehouse 
Biminsham Country Club 
Penske Automotive Group/Honda ofBioonh:ld 
HeartlAnd Health Care O:nter-Geoi'Jian Bloomfteld 
Sunrise Senior Livinc • 
Mocquaric Equipment Finance U.C 
GoUin; Chrysler 
HubbcU. Roth & ClDrk 
Research Data Analysis 
Detroit Edison 
W a beck Country Club 
Bloomfield Post Offscc 
Lowe's Home l~rove~nt Store 

!argot 
LA Fitness 

• Two loCiitlons. 
Source: Charter Township of Bloomfield 

Product/Service 
fJiueatlon 
Ciovcmm:nt 
Private GolfOub 
Go eery 
Retail 
Private GoiCCiub 
Automotive Dcalcnhip 
Assisted living 
Assisted Uvlng 
Technology t:quipment Leasing 
Automotive Dealership 
Civil fnsinccrs 
MArketing Research 
Utltlty 
Private CiotrOub 
MaD Service 
Home lft111t1Vcm&:nt Store Warchoun 
Retail 

Fitness 

{This space hns been left intentionally blank. 
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A pprolCirretc 
Nurmcrof 
l:nploycn 

1,119 
420 
2SO 
220 
213 
200 
195 
160 
160 
145 
134 
133 
12.5 
123 
120 
116 
110 

103 
so 



LABOR CHARACTERISTICS 

The U.S. Census 2010 -2014 American Community Swvey 5-Yeor Estimates lists the lnbor force chaructcristics for 
the Township, for employed persons 16 years 1111d over, u follows: 

By Occupg1jon 
Management, busineu, science, and arts occupations 
Service occupation! 
Sales and office occupations 
Nlltuml resources, construction, and 1111intcnancc oc:cupotions 
Production, tmnsponatlon,and 1111tcriol rmvln; occupations 
Total 

Dy lnduslry 

Number of 
Eimloyc:e1 

12,049 
1,772 
4,259 

446 
677 

19.203 

Asric:ullun:, fore1try, ftshing and hunting, and nining 43 
Construction 537 
Manufacturing 2,788 
Wholesale trudc 639 
Retail trudc 1,574 
Tronsponation and warehousing, and utilities lnfonmtlon 211 
lnfomallon 340 
Finance, insuruncc, real estate, and rental and Ieos lng I ,955 
Professional, &elcntific,ltllna;cmcnt,administrutivc, and WDJtc rnanoccm:nt SciVic 3,478 
Education&~ health and social services 5,512 
Arts, entenainmcnt, recreation, accomnod11tion and food services 1,175 
Other services (e~~~:cpt profcsslonolodmhllstratlon) S64 
Public adninisuution 387 
Total 19,203 

UNEMPLOYMENT DATA 

According to the Michigan Dcpanmcnt of Career Development, Employment Security A1cncy, Office of Lnbor 
Market lnfonnalion, the unemployment statistics for the Stale of Michigan and the Township during the cum:nt year and the 
last three cnlendar years Me os follows: 

Chaner TownsiJip of Bloomfield 

2016 2015 2014 2013 
Janual)' 3.1% 4.00/o S.OO-' 6.0% 
Fcbrual)' 2.9% 3.5% S.l% 5.6% 

March 3.0% 3.5% 5.1% 5.4% 
April 2.4% 3.()0/o 4.2% 4.8% 
May 2.7"Ao 3.8% 4.8% 5.S% 
June 3.2o/o 3.8% 5.001. 6,1o/o 

July 3.3% 4.2% 5.5% 6,4°/o 

August 3.3% 3.6% 4.9% S.9% 

September 2.9% 3.2% 4.4% S.4% 
October 2.9% 3.4% 4.3% s.s% 
November 2.8"/o 3.7% 4.8% 

December 2.9"/o 3.4% 4.6% 

Annual A vcrage J.S"Io 4.6% 5.S% 
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State of Michigan 

2016 2015 2014 2013 
January S.l% 6.7"/e 8.4% 10.1% 
February 5.(11/e 6.1% 8.5% 9.4% 
Man:h S.J% 5.9% 8.4% !U>% 
April 4.3% S.l% 6.9% 8.1% 
May 4.,.;. 5.9% 7.60,{, 8.8o/. 
June 4.9% s.~. 7.6% 9.6% 
July S.4% 6.4% 8.5% 10.2% 

Auaust 4.9% 5.2% 7.3% 8.9-~ 

Scptcnner 4.4% 4.6% 6.6% 8.3% 
October 4.~1.. 4.7"1.. 6.3% 8.4'Y. 
Novcnnc:r 4.2% 5.7% 7,6•,{, 
December 4.5% 5.6o/e 7.6o/. 
Annual Average: 5.4% 7.3% 8.8% 

Source: http:l/milmi.org/cgildalaanalysis/labF'on:eReport.up?menucbolcc•LABFORCE 

BUILDING PERMITS 

The number of building pennits i"uc:d In the Township during the Jut three calendar years Is as follows: 

Reaidc:ntbl 
Co rnnm:111 Vlnduatri&V!krnl Ution 
TotJI 

• ASofNovember 16,2016 

Nudu:r or 
i'c:mliu 

935 
tOol 

1.0)9 

2016 • 20\S 2014 
&tlrmted Nllll'llerof E':ltlmat~d Nurileror &tirllted 

Vlllue Pcnnits Value Pl:nrits Value 
S71,JS4,11SO 84S $16,176,600 1,078 S7B,s28JI6 
2.'-447,347 86 26.634,308 78 lt.29t.2.52 

$102,802,197 931 SJ02.810.908 IIS6 S89,11t9-'611 

Source: Charter Township of Bloomfield. 

RESIDENTIAL CHARACTERISTICS 

There are 17,799 housing units located within the Township according to tho US Census 2010 Profile of General 
Population and Houslns Characteristics, ofwhh:h 87.3% a~ owner~occupied. A breakdown of the dwelling units according 
to the U.S. Census 2010~2014 American Community Survey S~Year Eslimotc:! is us follows: 

Single Fmnily 85.9% 
Multi Fanily 14.1% 
Mobile Holtl3 0.0% 

According to the U.S. Census 2010 ~ 2014 American Community Swvey 5-Yc:ar Estimates, the median value of an 
owner-occupied residence in the Township is $338,300. 



INCOME CHARACTERISTICS 

There were 16,446 households in the Township, accordln~ to the U.S. Census 2010- 2014 American Community 
Survey 5-Yc:or Estimates of economic charocteristlcs, which hod o median household Income ofSI08,235. A breakdown of 
the: income foJ the Township's households is as follows: 

lncom: ofHouachold 
Less th11n SIO,OOO 
SIO,OOOto $14,999 
SIS,OOO to 524,999 
S2S,OOO to SJ4,999 
$35,000 to $49,999 
sso,ooo to 574,999 
S15,000 to 599,999 
SIOO,OOO to Si49,999 
SISO,OOO or mm: 

Nurrilerof 
Households 

499 
326 
722 
943 

1.259 
2,006 
1,701 
3,041 
5,949 

The per copiUI income for the Township according to the U.S. Census 2010-2014 American Community Survey 5-
Year Estimates wus S63,030. 

ACE STATISTICS 

Age groups for the Township's residents, according to the U.S. Census, arc as follows: 

1990 2000 2010 
US Census US Census US Census 
Pcrcc:ntal!e Pc:rccnt~asc l'c:n:cnuasc 

Undc:r5 Yean S% 5% 4% 
Sto 19Ycan 17"A. 21% 20!.~ 

20 to 24 Years 1'1. 3~. J% 
25 to 44 Yccus 27"A. lr/o 17'A. 
45 to 65 Years Jl% 32"/o 34% 

Over 65 Years 13% 18% 22% 

EDUCATIONAL CHARACTERISTICS 

The: primDry and secondary educational needs of the residents of the Township are adequately handled by the Avon­
dale, Binningham, Bloomfield Hills ond Pontiac public school districts which serve lhe Township. Higher educational oppor­
tunities arc available ot the following Institutions, which arc located within driving distance of tho Township's residents: 

College for Creative Studies 

Eastern Michigan Univenily 

Lllwrenc:c TechnologiC4l University 

MadoMa University 

Oo.klond Communily Colle;e 

Oaltlond University 

University of Michigan - Dearborn 

University of OctroillMcrcy 

Wolsh College 

Wayne State University 
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According to the u.s. Census 2010 -2014 American Community Survey 5-Ycar Estimate•, the educational thDnlt• 

teristics for the Township ore as follow•: 

Years o fSchool Conpleted 
Len than 9th grade 
9th to 12th gnadc no diploma 
High SchooiGroduatc 
Som: college, no des~ 
Assoclntc dcan:c 
Bachelor degree 
Chdunte or professional dcgn:o 

UTILITIES 

Persons 2.5 
and Over 

1.1% 
1.6% 
9.S"t. 

13.2% 
5.1% 

34.1r'le 
34.,.1. 

Tho Township operates its own water distribUtion system and purclwes water from the City of Detroit. The Town­
ship also operates Its own sewage collection and tronsmiuion system and purchases sewa,c treatment through tho County of 
Oakland purauont to a contrnct with the City or DctroiL Consumen Enerzy provides natural gas and DTE EneraY provides 
elccllicity for the Township. 

TRANSPORTATION 

The Township is traversed In the north-south direction by Woodward Avenue, which connects with U.S. 24 and 1·7S 
in the northern Township limits. 

BANKING 

The hankins needs of the Township's residents con be adequately served by the following, all of which have 
branches located in the Township: 

Source: Charter Township or Bloomfield. 

Bank of America 

Bonk of Binninghom 

Comerica Bonk 

Fidelity Bank 

lPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 



Rlante 
~~----moran 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Oakland County, Michigan 

Report on the Financh1l Statements 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
1098 Woodwllld Avenue 
Detroit, M148226·1006 

Tel: 313 496 7200 
FIIX: 313 496 7201 
plontemornn.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Oakland County (the "County") as of and for the year ended September 
30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for tile Financial Statemellls 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Atulitor's RespollsihiliiJ' 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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To the Board of Commissioners 
Oakland County, Michigan 

OpilliOIIS 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Oakland County as of September 30, 2015 and the respective changes in its financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 20 to the basic financial statements, the 2014 basic financial statements have been 
restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note 20 to the basic financial statements, in 20 15, the County adopted the new 
accounting guidance of GASB No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which 
established accounting and financial reporting standards for defined benefit pension plans provided to the 
employees of governmental employers through pension plans. Adopting GASB Statement No. 68 
resulted in a net pension liability and significant changes to the defined benefit pension plan related note 
disclosures. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Mtttters 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the other required supplemental information, as identified in the table of 
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
tinancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules and introductory section and statistical section, as identified in the table of contents, arc 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 
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To the Board of Commissioners 
Oakland County, Michigan 

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, as identified in the table of contents, arc 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules, as identified in the table of contents, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section, as identified in the table of contents, have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemme11t Auditing Stamlartls 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a report on our consideration of 
Oakland County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other maners. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Oakland County's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

March 2 I , 20 16 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2015 

Primar:t: Gowrnmcnt 
Business-

Go\-crnmcntul Type Component 
Acthities Acthitics TotnJs Units 

Asset'~ 

Cum:nt assets 
Pooled cash and investments $ 421!,842, 162 s 332,099,494 s 760,941,656 $ 31!,102,559 
Cash and cash equivalents 55,910,954 
Receivables (net of allowance for 
uncollectiblcs where npplicnblc) 

Cum:nt property talll!s 16,433,046 16,433,046 
Delinquent property talll!s 615,058 64,349,651 64,964,709 
Special assessments 5,362,011! 
Due from other governmental units 25,437,1!83 25,198,326 50,636.209 9,795,759 
Due from primary government 116,940 
Due from component units 644,904 75,575 720,479 
Accrued interest receivable 739,932 2,138,427 2,878,359 95,840 
Accounts receivable 2,1!26,665 45,059,100 47,1!85,765 18,904, 164 
Contracts receivable 12,953,010 1,282,121 14,235,131 

Internal balances· note 19 (5,153,900) 5,153,900 
Inventories and supplies 1,492,390 418,993 1,911,383 4,648,821 
Prepayments and other assets 9.714,698 2,424.415 12.139.113 3,817.207 

Total cum:nt assets 494,545,848 478,200.002 972.745.850 136.754.262 

Noncum:nt assets 
Special ass essments receivable 58,146,004 58,146,004 210,278,991 
Contracts receivable 17,550,000 17,550,000 
OPr:ll as s et 163,092,632 163,092,632 
Capital assets. net 

Land and other nondepreciable assets 22,266,619 121,118,357 143,384,976 36 I ,448,049 
Land improvements, net 159,910 9,128,044 9,287,954 1,078,684 
Buildings and improvements, net 141,344,957 60,324,916 201,669,873 60,993,215 
Equipment and vehicles, net 26,887,760 19,521,316 46,409,076 7,384,313 
Infrastructure, net 12.837.648 95,900,694 108,738.342 978.942.776 

Total capital assets, net 203.496.894 305,993.327 509.490.221 1,409.847.037 

Total noncurrent assets 442.285.530 305,993.327 748.278.857 1,620,126.028 

Total assets 936.831 .378 784,193,329 1,721,024,707 I. 756,880,290 

l>derrcd OutOo'l\s or Rcsourcc:s 
Defem:d outllows related to pension 40.245,669 40.245.669 17.2""616 

Total deferred outflows o f 
resources s 40,245,669 s s 40.245.669 s 17,'l'l'l,6J6 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
September 30, 2015 

PrimM!J: Go~rnmc:nt 
Business-

Gou: rn me ntul Type: Component 
Aetilities Activities Totuls Units 

l..lubilities 
Cum:nt liabilities 

Vouchers puyabh: s 15,301.679 $ 5,715,968 s 21,017,647 s 13,819,963 
Accrued payroll 4,763,306 4,763,306 
Due to other governmental units 2,090,449 14,960,954 17,051,403 13,083.203 
Due to primary government 720,479 
Due to component units 495 116,445 116,940 
Accrued interest payable 294,771 294,771 38,462 
Other accrued liabilities 21,208,056 7,064,811 28,272.867 10,137,534 
Accrued compensated absences 1,250,552 1,250.552 
Unearned revenue 47,558,467 1.866,397 49,424,864 25,007,961 
Claims and judgments 4,405,765 4,405,765 572,340 
Bonds and notes payable 30.660.000 26.480.200 57,140.200 19.314.800 

Total cum:nt liabilities I 27.533.540 56.204.775 183.738.315 82.694.742 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Accrued compensated absences 11,254,965 11.254,965 3,018,250 
Claim~ andjudgments 14,667,837 14,667,837 673,860 
Net pension liability 12.718,628 12,718,628 26,527,162 
Other postcmploymcnt benefits 23,527,919 
Bonds und notes payable 386.428.202 19.780,412 406,208.614 245.751.674 

Total noncurrent liabilities 425.069.632 19.780.412 444.850.044 299.498.865 

Total liabilities 552,603.172 75.985. 187 628.588.359 382.193.607 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 156.456,894 284,732,715 441,189,609 I, 144,780,563 
Restricted for 

l)roperty tax forfeiture 15,190,786 15,190,786 
Gcnero~l Govcmmcnt 1,297,407 1,297,407 
Public safety 6,111.317 6,111,317 
Citi:t'.cns services 1,866,475 1,866,475 
Public works 4,329,337 4,329,337 10,571,582 
Justice AdminLo;tr.nion 1,624,078 1,624.078 
Commerce and community 

development 8,273,176 8,273,176 
Debt service 899,136 899,136 196,028,896 
Airports 700 700 
Community water and sewer 89,643,164 89.643,164 

Unrestricted 228.425.269 333.831.563 562.256.832 40.528.258 

Total net position s 424.473.875 s 708.208.142 s 1.132.682.0 17 s 1.391.909.299 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

l::1penses 

Functiuns/Progl"llms 
Primury gove mme nt 
Governmental activities 

General government, odministrallv'C s 69,539,633 
Public safety 186,050,353 
Justice adminiStration 86,238,778 
Cl\rL.cn services 83,738.255 
Public works 38,300,439 
Recreation and lc isure 1,322,395 
Commerce and community development 44.364.348 
Unallocated depreciation 3,16-1,143 
Interest on debt 3.273.505 

1 otal gowmmentul net ivd ics 515.991.849 

13usiness· typc ncllvili.:s 
Airports 7,023,922 
Community safety support 21.312,944 
Community tax f111ancing 1.230.707 
Community water and sewer 81,572,797 
Recreation and leisure 23.741,356 
Sewage dtsposal systems 129.927,356 

Total business-type activities 264,809.082 

T01al primary government s 780,800.931 

Component units 
Drainage districts $ 94,953.221 
Road commission 111.085,883 

Total component units s 206.039,1 ().t 

Pro!l'"llm ltevenues 
Opentling Cupll11l 

Chu'ltes for Gl"llnts und Gntnts 11nd 
Sen-ices Contributions Contributions 

$ 24.225,570 s 4,448,510 s 
64,625,234 17,630,677 163,231 
31,830.801 741,357 
8,414,435 14,728.273 

12,855,569 362,098 5,761,319 
14,686 

17,646,879 22.065,499 

159,6!3,174 59,976,414 5.924,550 

4.421.496 287,991 485,207 
12,833,963 761 ,013 
16,657,070 
80,058,849 807,591 1,294,332 
9,978,385 69,032 308,000 

13 7.441 ,935 518.864 8.219,302 

261.391,698 1,683.478 11.067.854 

$ 421,004.872 s 61,659.892 $ 16,992,404 

s 86,988,736 $ 782,103 s 58,354,011 
17,668,474 65,173.330 56,459.414 

s 104,657.210 $ 65,955.433 $ 114,813,425 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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~et (Expense) 
Revenue 

s ( 40,865,553) 
(103,631.211) 
(53,666,620) 
( 60.595.54 7) 

( 19,321,453) 
( 1,307,709) 
( 4,65 1,970) 
(3,164,143) 
(3.273,505) 

(290,477.711) 

( 1.829,228) 
(7,717.968) 
15,426,363 

587,975 
( 13,385,939) 
16.252,745 

9,333,948 

s (281,143,763) 

$ 51,171,629 
28.215,335 

s 79,386,964 

continued .. 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Activities (Continued) 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Prima !I Gove mme nt 
Bus iness· 

Go\•emmental Type 
Activities Activities 

ChunGes in net !!Osition 
Net (expense) revenue s (290.477.711) s 9.333,948 

General revenues 
I' axes 

Property tuxes 204,218,641 [ 1,832,814 
State·shured revenue (unrestricted) 39,238,141 
Unrestricted investment earnings 3,589,453 2,914,365 
Gain on sale of cupital assets 135,786 
Other revenues 5,623,075 

J"rnnsfers in (out) 17,940,753 ( 17,940,753) 
Total general revenues and 

transfers 270.745,849 (3.193.574) 
Chungc in net position (19,731,862) 6,140,374 

~e I position 
Beginning (as restated, sec note 20) 444.205.737 702.067.768 
Ending s 424,473,875 $ 708.208, 142 

Totals 

s (281,143,763) 

216,051,455 
39,238,141 
6,503,818 

135,786 
5,623,075 

267,552,275 
( 13,591,488) 

1.146.273.505 
s I, 132,682,017 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Component 
Units 

s 79.386.964 

1,109,874 

1,109.874 
80,496,838 

1.311.412.461 
s 1,391,909.299 

concluded 



Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Major Funds 

General Fund -The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Building Authority Debt Act 31 Fund - This fund was established to accumulate the resources for the 
payment of bonded debt issued for the construction of, or improvement to various facilities (currently four 
issues). The fund also includes debt issued as assistance in obtaining favorable lending rates for other 
units of government within the County. 

Water and Sewer Debt Act 342 Fund - This fund was established to account for the accumulation of 
resources, mainly special assessments, for the payment of bonded debt issued for the construction of 
water and sewer systems under Public Act 342 of 1939 (currently eight issues). 

Non-Major Funds 

Non-major governmental funds are presented, by fund type, in the following sections: 

Special revenue funds 
Debt service funds 
Capital projects funds 



County of Oakland 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2015 

l\lliJ2r Fuads 

Dulldlng Wa1er 1nd 

,\uU•orily Sc•~r 

Delli Delli 

C.cncral Acll l ,\ ciJ,.l 

t\ucts 

Pooled cash nnd mvestm:nts s :!57 ,903,6.28 s 1 09,3~9 s 767,364 
Re":tvubles (net of allowance for uncollccttblcs 
where applicabh:) 

Current propcny ta:~~:s 16,433,().16 
O.:hnquent propeny tn111:s 615,058 
Due from other govemm:ntal umts 8,727,955 
Due fromcorT;~onent umts 14-1,771 
Accrued interest receiVable 96,596 288 
Accounts rccetvnblc 525.577 729,051 

Contmcts rccetvab Jc 12,913,610 13,505,000 
Spec tal assessm:nts receivable 55,550, T.!7 

Due from other funds 4.45~,639 

Advances rccetvable 
lnventoncs 141,377 
Prepaym:nts and other assets ~9.122 

Total nssets s 302,305,3 79 s 1~.3~3.400 s 56.318,379 

Uatbilitics 
Vouchers payable s 8,763,067 s s 743,675 
Accrued payroll 4,763.306 

Due to other govemm:ntal units 332,331 
Due to other funds 16,857 912 
Advances payable 

Unearned revenue 11,436,921 33,197,525 

Other accrued habilit ics 5,758,617 7,340 

Total liabilities 31,071,099 912 33,948,540 

llercrrcd Jnno"s orncsources 

Unuvatlable revcnue·propcny laN:s 10,773,845 

Unavailable n:venuc-spccial assess mcnls 22,353,202 

Unavutlabk: rl:\ enue.grJnts 105,053 

Unavatlable revcnue-contmcts receivable 13,505,000 

Unavailable revenue-other 150,989 

Total deferred innows of resources 11,029,8!17 13,505,000 22,353,202 

~·und lhtlnnccs 

Nonspcndablc 490,499 

Restricted 15,190,786 837,488 16,637 

Cotm1iucd 
Assigned 242,777,177 

Unasstgned 1,745,931 

rota! fund balances 260,2().1,393 837,488 16,637 

Total liabilities, deferred inOow1 of resources, 

und fund ba'ances s 302,305.379 s 14,343,400 s 56,318,379 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Balance Sheet (Continued} 
Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Assru 
l'ooled cash and tnvcstmcnts 
Receivables (net of :lllowance for uncoUccllblcs 
where applicable) 

Current property taX&:s 
Dclinq uent property ta.-z:s 
Due from other governmental umts 
Due from component units 
Accrued mtcrcst receiVable 
AccouniS receivable 
Contracts receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Due from other funds 
Advances receivable 
lnventones 
l'repaymcnts 11nd other assets 

Total assets 

Uatlitlllcs 
Vouchers payable 
A"rued payroll 
Due to other govemmcntlll untts 
Due to other funds 
Advances payable 
Uneumcd revenue 
Other accrued hablllltes 

Totalliabilittes 

Udcrrrtllnnm\S orncsourccs 

Unavailable revenue-property taX&:s 

Unavailable revenuc-specml asscsslll!nts 

Unavailable revenue-grants 

Unavailable revenue-contracts receiVable 

Unavailable revenue-other 

Total deferred mflows of resources 

t'untll~tlnnccs 

Nonspendablc 
Restnctcd 
Committed 
Ass1sned 
Unussigncd 

fotal fum! balances 

l'otal hab1h11cs , deferred mOows of resources , 
and fund balances 

"'on-:\L1jor 
Fun!& 

s 5-1,412,003 

16,173,609 
473,534 
31,339 

649,458 
4,084,400 
2,595,277 
1,013,822 
1,611,207 

2.7~.232 

s 83.748.881 

s 3.221,779 

1,477,892 
10,4-17,141 
1,611,207 
2,215,078 
9,934,777 

28.907,874 

2,595,217 

3,330,726 

4.~5.000 

1.519.862 

11.490.865 

1,176,207 
18,440,171 
27,813,859 

(4,080.095) 

43,350.142 

s 83.748,881 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Tot•ls 

Sc1llcmhrr JO, 

2015 

s 313,192,34-1 

16,433.~6 

615,058 
24,901.564 

618,305 
128,223 

1,9().1,086 
30,503,010 
58,146.~ 

5,468,461 
1,611.207 

141,377 
3.053.354 

s 456.716.039 

s 12,728,521 
4.763,306 
1,810.223 

10,-164,910 
1,611,207 

46,8-19,524 
15.700,73-1 

93.928.425 

10,773,845 

24,948,479 

3,435,779 

17,550,000 

1.670,851 

58.378,954 

1,666,706 
34,485,082 
27,813,859 

242,777,117 
(2.33-1.164) 

3~.-108.660 

s 456.716.019 



County of Oakland 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2015 

Total fund balances for governmental funds 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Land, not being depreciated 
Construction in progress, not being depreciated 
Land improvements, net of $1,090,723 depreciation 
Buildings and improvements, net of$107,238,482 depreciation 
Equipment and vehicles, net of $18,885,024 depreciation 
Infrastructure, net of S I 4, 778,710 depreciation 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the 
cost of certain activities, such as insurance and 
telecommunications, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities 
of the internal service funds arc included in governmental 
activities in the Statement of Net Position. 

Other post-employment benefits assets do not represent 
financial resources and are not reported in the funds. 

Property ta'C revenues in the Statement of Activities that do 
not provide current financial resources are deferred and not 
reported as revenue in the funds . 

Long-term receivables such as special assessments and contracts 
receiwble are expected to be collected over several years and arc 
deferred in the governmental funds and are not awilable to pay for 
current year expenditures. 

Long-term bonded debt is not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore is not reported in the funds. Unamortized 
premiums, loss on refundings, and interest payable arc not 
reported in the funds. HO\vever, these amounts are included in 
the Statement ofNet Position. This is the net effect of these 
balances on the statement: 

Bonds and notes payable 
Accrued interest payable 

Net position of governmental activities 

$ 7,235,551 
5,462,09 I 

159,910 
139,94 7,950 

13,152,795 
12,723.028 

( 41 7 ,088,202) 
(294,771) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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$304,408,660 

178,681,325 

137,910,335 

163,092,632 

10,158,787 

47,605,109 

(417,382,973) 
$424,473,875 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

t\lat or l'unds 
Ru lldl11 1: 
Au tborlty 

Debt 
C,~ntr•• ,,..,, 31 

ltt'\'t'nurs 
Taxes s 206,368. 1 3 I s 
Spcc•al assessments 1,097,029 
Federal w-ants 359,400 
Slate w-ants 4,583 .253 
Other mtergovcrnmental revenues ·11,448.728 
Charges for scrv1ccs 108,783,651 3,080 
Cont nbul1ons 135 .744 
Investment mcome 2,276,803 98 
lnd1rect cost recovery 7,946,958 
Other 183.233 

Total rcvenu.:s 372,085,901 1,100.207 

~:X Jl<' n ell I u res 
Current opera! ions 

County Exeeut tve 85,114,190 15,674 
Clerk/Register of Deeds 8,788,748 
Treasurer 8,881,564 
Just icc adm m 1st rat 1on 50,712,524 
Law cnforcem cnt I 52,534,888 
l.ellislath·c 3,864 ,960 
Water Resource Commissioner 5 ,354 , 127 
Non-depart mcnt al 29,905,627 

Total current opcral ions 345,156,628 15,674 
Capital outlay 116,739 
Intergovernmental 
Debt service 

l'rincipal payments 5,655,000 
Interest and fiscal charb'CS 1.247,966 

Total expenditures 345,273,367 6.918,640 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 26.812,534 (5.818,433) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 23 ,968,311 5,760,891 
l'rnnsfers out (44,783 ,048) (:!SO) 
Insurance reco\'erics :!::!2 ,0~~ 

Issuance of bonds 

Total other l'inuncing sources (uses) (:!0,592,71 5) 5,760,641 

Net change in fund balances 6 .219,819 (57,792) 

Fund bulancc• 
October I, 2014 253,984.574 895,280 

S.:ptembcr 30, 20 I 5 s 260.204,393 s 837.488 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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W .ate r a nd 
St'wer 

Dt' bt 
Act 342 

$ 
10,280,376 

1,888 

1,741 

10,284,005 

2,853 

2,853 

13.592 

9.675,000 
607,900 

10.299,345 

( 15.340) 

(I 5.340) 

31.917 

s 16.637 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
(Continued) 
Governmental Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

.So n-l\IAjor 
Fu n ds 

nrn•nurs 
Ta:<cs s 
Special assessments 8 ,051,749 
Federal grants 31,776,107 
State grams 23,:!70,:!:!:! 
Other interl."n·crnnu:ntal revenues 11,675,776 
Charges for :ocrviccs 1!.204 ,002 
Coni ributtons 140,407 

Investment income 302,142 
Indirect cost reco\ cry 
Other 836,434 

Total revenues 88,256,839 

•~tlrndlturu 

Current operatiOns 
County l!:<ecut iv.: 61,8 10,965 
Ch:rk/Rcwst er of Deeds 1,1!99,662 
Treasurer 16,142 

Just tee adm in ist rat ion :!·1,914 ,655 
Law en forcemcnt 6,819,363 
Legislat ivc 
Water Rcsoure.: Commtssiom:r 9,391 ,665 

Non-departm.:ntal 

Total current opera! eons I I 0,852,45 2 

Capital outlay 16,277,979 

Intergovernmental 
Debt 5ervicc 

l'rencepal payments 4,400,000 

Interest and fiscal charges 1,445,811 

Total e:<pcndaurcs 132.976.242 

Excess (dcficeenL-y) o f revenues over 
(under) exp.:ndtturcs (44.719,403) 

Other financmg sources (uses) 
Transfers m 38,049,03 I 

Tr;msfers out (I 5,083,248) 
I nsuranc~ rccovcru:s 
Issuance of bonds 2.331.098 

Total other fmancmg sources (uses) 25,296.881 

Net change m fund balances ( 19,422,522) 

Fund bnluncrs 

October I. 2014 62,772.664 

Sc:ptc:mbc:r 30, 2015 s 43,350.142 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Tot11ls 
Srptr m brr 30 , 

2015 

$ :!06,368,1 3 I 
19,4:!9,154 
32,135,507 
:!7. 853,475 
53.124,504 

120,99:!,621 
:!76,151 

:!,580,78•1 
7,946,9511 
1,019,667 

471,726,952 

I 52,940,829 
10,688,4 10 
8,897,706 

75,627,179 
I 59,354,25 I 

3,864.960 
14,748,645 
29,905,627 

456,027,607 
16,394,718 

13,592 

19,730,000 
3,301,677 

495.467.594 

(23.740.642) 

67,778,233 
(59 ,866,546) 

2:!2,0~:! 

2,331.098 

10,464,807 

( 13,275,835) 

317.684.495 

$ 304,408,660 



County of Oakland 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

N~:t chang~: in fund balunc~: ·total govcmm~:ntnl funds 

Gov~:mrrx:ntal funds n!port capital outlay us ~:xpenditun!S. 
1-Jow~:v~:r. in th~: Statcrrx:nt of Activities, th~: cost ofthose assets 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives us depn!ciation ~:xpensc. 
This is the amount by which capital outlnys el<l:ecdcd depn!ciation 
in the current period. 

Cons truction in progress 
lluildings and improvcrrx:nts 
Equiprrx:nt and vehicles 
lnfrastructun! 
Depreciation ~:xp~:ns~: 

lnt~:mal s~:rvic~: funds an! used by manag~:rrx:ntto charge the 
costs of certain activities, such us insur-.tncc and t~:lecommunications, 
to individual funds. Th~: net n!Vcnue (expense) ofthe internal 
service funds is reported with gov~:mrrx:ntnl uctivities . 

Amorti:~ntion ofOth~:r Post-Employrrx:nt Benefits asset 
is not n!portcd in th~: govcmmentul funds . 

Property tax revenues in the Staterrx:nt of Activities that do 
not provide current financial n!SOurces arc deferred and not 
reported as n!venue in the funds. 

Prior year's dcfcmtl 
Current year deferral 

Revenues from sp~:cial assessrrx:nts and contrncts rcceivabl~: 
reported in the Staterrx:nt of Activities in pr~:vious y~:nrs did not 
provide current financial r~:sources in the governmental funds 
until the current year. 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to govemrncntul 
funds by issuing debt which increuses long-term bonded debt in 
the Stutement ofNct Position. Repayment ofbond principal is un 
expenditure in the gov~:mrrx:ntal funds, but the repayment reduces 
long-term bonded d~:bt in the Statement of Net Posit ion . This is the 
amount that proceeds el<l:c~:d repayments . 

Bond proc~:~:ds 
R~:pnyment ofbond principal 
Accrued interest 

Otange in net position of govemrrx:ntul activities 

s ( 16,320.669) 
16,46\, 101 
7,4\0,827 

292,425 
(!1.533.887) 

( 12,308,217) 
10,15!1,787 

(2,331 ,09!1) 
41,140,000 

30,518 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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s (13,275,835) 

(690,203) 

(24.697,753) 

(5,605,849) 

(2, 149,490) 

( 12, 152,152) 

38,839,420 

s (19,731,862) 



Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

Major Funds 

Parks and Recreation Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues eannarked for the operation of 
the County' s 13 parks, including campgrounds, day-use and dog parks, five golf courses, 65 miles of 
trails, two waterparks, nature centers and banquet facilities, and management of the Oakland County 
Market. Principal revenue is from a voter-approved millage and user charges. 

Delinquent Tux Revolving Fund -This fund is used to account for money advanced by the County to 
cities, townships, villages and County funds for unpaid property taxes, and the subsequent collections of 
delinquencies from taxpayers. 

The County Airports Fund - This fund was established to account for operations of the County's 
Oakland County International, Oaklandrrroy, and Oakland/Southwest airports. Revenue is primarily 
derived from leases, hangar rentals, landing fees, and other rental or service charges. Capital costs are 
financed primarily from issuance of debt or state and federal capital grants. 

Water and Sewer Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for monies received from those County 
residents whose water and sewer systems arc maintained for their respective city, villages, or townships 
by Oakland County. There are currently 22 municipal water systems and 17 municipal sewer systems 
that arc operated under these contractual arrangements. 

Evergreen-Farmington S.O.S. (Sewage Disposal System) Fund - This fund was established to record 
the operations and maintenance of the system, which is used to move sewage to the City of Detroit for 
treatment. Costs are recovered by developing rates and billing the municipalities being serviced or 
issuance of debt. 

Southeastern Oakland County S.O.S. (S.O.C.S.D.S.) Fund - This fund was established to record the 
operations and maintenance of the system, which is used to move sewage and stonn water to the City of 
Detroit for treatment. Costs arc recovered by developing rates and billing the municipalities being 
serviced. 

Clinton-Oakland S.O.S. (Sewage Disposal System) Fund - This fund was established to record the 
operations and maintenance of the system, which is used to move sewage to the City of Detroit for 
treatment. Costs are recovered by developing rates and billing the municipalities being serviced. 

Non-Major Funds 

Non-major proprietary funds arc presented, by fund type, in the following sections: 

Internal service funds 
Enterprise funds 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

r\~scls 

Current nssets 
l>oolcd cash nnd investments 
Delinquent propeny tn.\:l:s receivable 
Due from other eovemmentul units 
Due from componL'Ilt units 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable (net of nllownnce for 
uncol!ectiblcs where uppli~nble) 

Due from other funds 
Current ponion ofcontrncts receivable 
Current ponion ofadvnnccs receivnbk: 
Inventories and supplies 
J>repuyments nnd other IISsets 

Totul current assets 
Noncurrent IISsets 

Advances receivnb1e 
Cop itniiiSsets, net 

Lund nnd other nondcp rcciuble nsscts 
l.nnd improvements, net 
BUlldins und improvement~. net 
l~quipmcnt and vehidL'S, net 
lnfrn.~tructure. net 

Totnl noncurrent nssct s 

Totulnssets 
l>~frrrcd OutRo\\'! of lt~~ourc~~ 
Deferred out flows related to pension 

P11rks And 
ltrcrrAtlon 

$22,739,842 

92,973 

22,474 

289,629 
3,493 

55,307 
19.321 

23.223.039 

33,640,347 

19,981 ,529 
1,476.160 

16.794.522 

71.892,558 

95.115.597 

Total deferred outflows of resources -----

8uslnru•T\'I!!; Acthill~s • Entrr(!rlse Funds 
:\111 or 

\\'11t~r And 
UellntJUent County Sewer 

Tnx Remhing Airports Trust 

s 147,559,628 s 15.946,887 s 52,077,607 
64,349,651 

1,214,888 600 4,443,779 

1,480,565 61,546 30,517 

13,664,415 340.538 29,186,917 
5,000,000 

1.282,121 
12.883 

616.737 

228.282,030 17,631.692 91,355.557 

64,415 

36.424,974 10 ,330,049 
8,598,413 10.337 

23,050,763 1,082.774 
827.527 1,919.782 

2.5 18.655 57.059,992 

64.415 71.420.332 70,402,934 

228.346.445 89.052.024 161.758.491 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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E\·r rgrer n· 
FArmington 

SI>S 

s 13,036,820 

4,653,496 
75. 575 

110,504 

17.876.395 

15,201,333 
519,294 

9.741.700 
292,376 

3.767,623 

29.522.326 

47,398.721 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Business-TVJ!C Atth·ilics- t:ntt!]!rise Funds 
Major 

Totuls 
Clinton- Non-:\lnjor Septembc:r JO, 

s.o.c.s.n.s. Oak lund S.D.S. Funds 2015 
Assets 
Current assets 

Pooled cash and investments $ 37,472,149 s 6,667,773 $ 36.598,7118 $ 332,099,494 
De linqucnt property taxes 64,349,651 
Due from other governmental units 6,948.288 5.739,703 2,104,599 25,198.326 
Due from component units 75,575 
Accrued interest receivable 127,800 129.580 175,441 2,138,427 
Accounts receivable (m:t of allowance for 
uncollcctibles where applicable) 119,698 1,457,903 45,059,100 

Due from other fWids 78,524 5,082,017 
Current portion of contracts receivable 1,282,121 
Cuncnt portion of advances n:cc ivabh: 12,883 
I nventorics and s uppli:s 363,686 418,993 
Prepayments and other assets 556.459 1.231.898 2.424,415 

Totnl current assets 45.224.394 12.537,056 42.010.839 478,141.002 
None urrent assets 

Advances receivable 64.415 
Capital assets, net 

Land and other nondepreciable assets 3,164,020 18.[90,841 4,166,793 121,118,357 
Land rnprovcmcnts, net 9,128,044 
Building and improvements, net 224,088 6,244,062 60.324,916 
EqUipment and vehicles, net 181,103 32,721 14,791.647 19,521.316 
Infrastructure, net %4.822 10.257,156 4,537,924 95,900,694 

Total noncurrent assets 4.309.945 28.704.806 29,740.426 306.057,742 

Total assets 49,534,339 41.241.862 71.751.265 784,198,744 
Deferred OutOows ofltcsourccs 
Deferred outflows related to pension 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Goven1mental 
Activities -

Jntcmul 
Service 
Funds 

s 115,649,818 

536.319 
26,599 

611,709 

922,579 
308 

1.351.013 
6.661.344 

125,759.689 

9,568,977 

1,397,007 
13,734,%5 

114,620 
24.815,569 

150,575.258 

40.245,669 
40.245,669 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Uusin ess-Tvjlt: Acthilies - Entrrj!riu l'untll 
:\lu'or 

\\'utrr untl Evr~rrrn-
l•urks anti Drlinqurnt County Srwrr l'urmins:tun 
l{rcrrutlun Tux Rr•·ohins: AlrJIOrls Trust SDS 

IJabililics 
Cum:nt liabilities 

Vo uchers pnynble s 449,·121 s 191 ,760 s 392,972 s 3,•169,879 s 187,567 
Due to other govcmmcntnllmlls 290,647 1,064,286 5, 191,522 
Due to component umts 116,445 
Due to other funds 1,960 
Uncnmed revenue 51 .604 1,536, 105 
Notes pnyoble 25,000,000 
Current pon ion of bonds pn) able 610,000 620,200 250,000 
Curr•-nt ponion of nccrucd compensated obseno 
CurrL-nt pon ion of clntms ond judgments 
Current ponion ofodvnnccs payable 
Other accrued linb•htlcS 398.566 43. 168 495.913 3.772.027 484.877 

Total current hab1lit1es 899,591 25.525.575 3.034,990 9,042.837 6,115,926 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Bonds pnyoblc 7,550.000 6,855,412 5,375;000 
Net pension liability 
Accrued compensated nbSL'IlC:CS 
Clnnns m1djudgments 
Advances pay able 

Totol noncurrent liob11it1cs 7.550.000 6.855.412 5.375.000 

Total hnb1h11es 899.591 25.525.575 10.584.990 15.898.249 11.490,926 
:-.rtpusilion 
Net mwstment in cnp 1tnl nsscts 71,892,558 63.260,332 62,927,322 23,897,326 
Restricted for progrmns 700 51,442,040 9,260,456 
Unrestricted 22.323.448 202.820.870 15.206,002 31.490.880 2.750.013 

Totnl net position $ 94,216.006 s 202.820.1170 s 711.•167.034 s 145,860.242 s 35,907,795 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Totals 
Clinton- ~on·Major Se111rmber 30, 

S.O.C.S.J>.S. OaklAnd S .D.S. Fun tis 201~ 
l..inhililies 
Current liabilities 

Vouchers puyuble s 87,325 s 595,255 s 341.789 s 5.715,968 
Due lo other sovernmcntnl units 7.182.917 182,015 1,049.567 14,960,954 
Due to component units 116.445 
Due to other funds 1,899 1,556 5,415 
Unearned re\·enuc 27!1.6811 1,866,397 
Noles payable 25 ,000,000 
Current portion of bonds puyuble 1,4110,200 
Current portion of occructl compensated abscnc• 
Current portion of claims nntl jutl~nts 

Current portion ofodvanccs payable 
Other accrued linbilitics 249.697 1.109.087 511.476 7.064.!111 

Total current liabilities 7.521,838 1.886.357 2.183 .076 56.210,190 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Bonds poyablc 19,780,412 
Net pension liability 
Accrued compcnsntc:d absences 
Claims nnd jutlgmcniS 
Atlvnncc:s puyable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 19.780.41 2 

Total liabilities 7.521 .1138 1.8116.357 2. 183,076 75.990.602 
~cl position 
Net mvestmcnt m cupual assets 4,309,945 211. 704,806 29.740.426 284,732.715 
Restrich:d for programs 14,536,679 8,496,2 14 5.907,775 89,643 ,864 
Unrcstnctcd 23.165.877 2.154.485 33.919.9 88 333,831,563 

Total net posttion $42.012.501 s 39.355.505 $ 69,568.189 s 708,208,142 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Go,-ernmental 
Aclhilies­

Internal 
Senice 
Fun tis 

s 2,573.158 
280,226 

495 
80,461 
93,1185 

1.250,552 
4,405.765 

12,883 
5.507.322 

14.204,747 

12.718,628 
11,254.965 
14,667.837 

64.415 

38.705.1145 

52.910.592 

24.815,569 

113.094.766 
s 137.910.335 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

8u5lnus-TVIH: Acth·ltles- Entererlse Funds 
i\lu or 

Wuterund 
l'11rks untl Delinquent County Sewer 

Hec:rc:utlon Tu l«'11hing Airports Trust 

0 IH: nlllng rc'~ n ucs 
Charges for services s 9,893,635 s 15,770,957 s 4,416,272 s 81,321,792 
Other 52.063 347,080 5,224 299,063 

Total operating revenues 9,945,698 16,118,037 4.421.496 81,620,855 

Olrt:rntlng CX(lCnscs 
Salaries 8,508,876 103,551 1,106,766 92,235 
Fringe benefits 2,971,568 72,521 653,695 65,517 
Fringe benefits- pension 
Contractual services 6,402,409 262,762 1,865,825 41,404,657 
Commodities 993,912 114,884 1,909,120 
Dcp reciat ion 3,331,106 2,718,781 2,822,614 
Internal services 1,533,485 237,840 20,685,252 
Intergovernmental 14.418,339 

Total operating expenses 23,741.356 438,834 6,697,791 81,397.734 

Operating income (loss) (13,795,658) 15.679.203 (2.276,295) 223.121 

SonOJlC:rAtlng rn~nun (eXJM:IIscs) 
Propeny taxes 11,832,814 
Cant ribut ions 69,032 287,991 807,591 
Interest reco\·cry - federal grunts 102,749 
Interest n:venuc 157,136 1.360,886 141,752 496,641 
Interest C.\'Pense (47,312) (326,131) (175,063) 
Bonds maturing 
Gain on sole of property 

und equipment 32,687 ( 1,562,006) 
Total nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) 12,091,669 1,313,574 206,361 (432,837) 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions ( 1.703,989) 16,992.777 (2,069,934) (209,716) 

Trunsfcn untl contributions 
Capital contributions 308,000 382,458 1,294,332 
Trunsfers in 1,809,253 
Trunsfers out (208,852) ( 19,634.498) ( 1,477.287) 

Total trunsfers and contributions 99,148 ( 19,634,498) 382,458 1,626.298 

Change in net position ( 1.604.841) (2.641. 721) ( 1.687,476) 1.416.582 

~cl position 
Octob.:r I, 2014 (as rcstat.:d, sec Note 20) 95,820.847 205.462.591 110,154,510 144,443.660 

S.:ptcmber 30,2015 s 94,216,006 s 202,820.1170 $78,467,034 s 145.860,242 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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E'~rgrc:en-
Funnlnglon 

sos 

$40,419,719 
96,827 

40,516,546 

36,494,069 
58,258 

680,989 
1,208,906 

38,442,222 

2.074.324 

91,394 
85,129 

(274,933) 

(98,410) 

1,975,914 

7,449,977 

(254. 182) 

7.195,795 

9,171.709 

26.736,086 

$35.907,795 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Uuslnus-T}' IIC Acthitlu • Enter11rlse J."untk 
:\IAjor 

Gol-crnmentul 
,\c:thitles • 

TotAls lnternul 
Clinton· Non-Mujor Srtllrmbcr 30, Sen·lce 

S.O.C.S.D.S. Ouklund S.O.S. Funds 20J!i Funds 

OtJCntln~: rennues 
Char(li!S for services s 49,672,262 s 37.302,500 s 19,453,091 s 258.250,228 s 230,272.228 
Other 3.751.015 8,345 111.020 4.670.637 4.603.408 

Total opcroting revenues 53.423.277 37.310.845 19,564. 111 262.920.865 234.875.636 

OJ1Cntlin~: ext~enses 
Salaries 2,351 ,208 12, 162,636 33.453,817 
Frin(ll! benefits 1,307,904 5,071,205 20.348,239 
Fring~: benefits • pension 36,325. 259 
Controctuul services 46,287,025 35,364,639 12,977,657 181 ,059,043 135.304,060 
Commodities 129,272 46,647 575,022 3,827,115 6,342,449 
Dep reciot ion 797,558 759,605 8,704,853 19,815,506 5,155,383 
lnternul services 1,151,169 739,490 2,025.657 27,581,799 6,128.280 
I ntergovernmentul 50.000 14.468.339 

Total operating expenses 48,365,024 36.910,381 27.992,301 263,985,643 243.057.487 
Operating income (loss) 5.058.253 400.464 (8.428, 190) ( 1.064, 778) (8,181,851) 

NOIIOJICrlllilll: rennurs (exJICnses) 
Property IO.'~cs 11 ,832,814 
Coni ributions 518,1!64 1.683.478 326.031 
Interest recovery ·federal grunts 194. 143 
Interest revenue 245,620 107,984 319.217 2,914.365 1,008,669 
Interest expense (823.439) ( 12.590,825) 
Bonds maturing (21,410,000) 
Guin on sole of property 

und equipment 152 ( 1.529.167) 359,1!38 
Totul nonop erol mg revenues 
(expenses) 764,484 107,984 319,369 14.272.194 (32,306,287) 

Income (loss) before transfers 
und cont ribu 1 ions 5.822.737 508.448 (8.1 08.821) 13.207,416 (40.488.138) 

Transfer.; and contrlbullons 
Cupitul contributions 677.931 761 ,013 10,873,711 5.761,319 
Transfers in 2,577,778 4,387,031 10.367,503 
Trunsfers out (33.877) (229.034) (490.054) (22.327.784) (338.437) 

Totultrunsfcrs und contnbutions 644.054 (229,034) 2.848.737 (7.067.042) 15.790.385 

Chungc in net position 6.466.791 279.414 (5.260,084) 6.140,374 (24.697,753) 

Net 110slllon 
October I. 201-l (as restated , sec Not~: 20) 35.545,710 39.076.091 74,828.273 702.067.768 162.608,088 

September 30. 2015 s 42.012.501 s 39.355.505 s 69,568.]89 s 7011.208.142 s 137.910.335 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Businus-Tvee Activities - Ente !]!rise Funds 
Mu'or 

Wuteramtl Evergreen-
l'urks und Delinquent County Sewer 1-'unnlngton 
Recreution Tux Rnoh·in~: ,\irpons Tna.~t SDS 

Cus h dows from ope rutin~: ucti\'itics 
Cash received from users s 9,809,801 s 20.923,156 s 4,44 1,063 s 78,272,164 s 45,091 ,428 
Cosh paid to suppliers (12.284,519) (335,283) (2,871 ,598) (77,537,149) (37,391,436) 
Cosh paid to employees (8,508.876) (103.551) {1,106,766) !92,235) 

Net cosh provided by (used in) 
operating activities ! 10.983,594) 20.484.322 462.699 642.780 7,699,992 

Cush dows from noncupitullinuncin~: 
ucth·itiu 

Transfers from other fWlds 1,809,253 
Trun.~fers to other fWlds (208,852) ( 19,634,498) ( 1,477 ,287) (254,182) 
Contributions 69,032 287,991 297,040 
l'rincipal paid on debt 
Interest paid on debt 
l'urchase of delinquent property taxes (72,532,014) 
Delinquent property taxes collected 81,140,950 
Issuance of short-term borrowings 25,000,000 
Advances issued 
Repayments received on advances 12,883 
Property tuxes 11,832,814 
Interest paid on short-term borrowings (44.273) 
J>o~ments on short-term borrowings { 15.000,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncnpital fmancing activitacs 11 ,692.994 ( 1,056,952) 287,991 629,006 (254,182) 

Cush dnws from cupitul untl reluh:d 
financing ucth·itic:s 

Contributions for capitol acquisitions 308,000 457,416 
Proceeds from sale of bonds 609,192 
Transfers from other funds 
Interest recovery· federal grants 102,749 91.394 
l'roceed~ from sole of capital assets 32,687 116,445 
Acquisition of capital assets (5,253,493) (5,689) (8,702,865) ( 1,005,763) 
J>rincipal paid on debt (600,000) (352,500) (245,000) 
Interest paid on debt (326,131) (175,063) (274,933) 
Amount paid on advances 
Interest paid on advances 

Net cash provided by (used in) capatal 
and related fmancing activities (4,912.806) (829,071) (8.047 .375) (I ,434.302) 

cu.~h flows from innsting ucth·itics 
Interest on investments 162,130 1,384,230 144,590 506,721 85.418 

Net cash provided by investing 
activities 162,130 1.384.230 144,590 506,721 85.418 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
nnd cash equivalents (4,0-ll,276) 20,811 ,600 66.209 ( 6,268,868) 6,096,926 

Pooled cu.~h und in,·c:stments 
October I. 2014 26.781 ,118 126,748,028 15,880,678 58.346.475 6,939,894 

September 30,2015 s 22.739,8.J2 s 147,559,628 s 15.946,887 $ 52,077,607 $ 13.036,!!20 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Dusiness-Tl:~ Activities- Ente!]!risc l'unds 
i\la~r 

Govc:mmcntal 
Acth·ilic:s -

Totals Internal 
Clinton- Non-:\lujor September JO, Sen·icc 

S.O.C.S.D.S. Oukhtnd S.O.S. Funds 2015 Funds 

Cnsh Oows from opcmting acth·itics 
Cash received from users s 52,073,410 s 36,732,973 s 18,797,732 s 266,141,727 s 234,075,966 
Cash paid to suppliers (47,545,184) (36,770,548) ( 16.544,954) (231,280,671) ( 171,045,212) 
Cash paid to employees (2,351.208) (12, I 62,636) (33.453,8 I 7) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 4.528,226 (37.575) (98,430) 22,698,420 29,576.937 

Cash Oows from nonCApilnllinnncing 
acli\'ilics 

Transfers from other fWlds 2,577,778 4,387,031 8,629,563 
Transfers to other fWlds (33,877) (229,034) (490,054) (22,327,784) (338,437) 
Contributl1ns 518.864 1,172,927 307,281 
Principal paid on debt (21,410,000) 
Interest paid on debt ( 12,588,479) 
Purchase of delinquent propcny taxes (72,532,014) 
Delinquent propcny taxes collected 81,140,950 
I ssunncc of shon-term borrowings 25,000,000 
Advances issued 
Repayments received on advances 142,531 155,414 
Propcny tuxes 11,832,814 
Interest paid on shon·term borrowings (44,273) 
l'a}mcnts on shon-term borrowings ( 15,000,000) 

Net cash provided by tused in) 
noncapdal financing activities 627.518 (229,034) 2,087.724 13,785,065 (25,400,072) 

Cnsh Rows from cupitnlnnd rc:lntcd 
financing nctivitics 

Contributl1ns for cnpital acquisit~ns 677,931 1,443,347 243,750 
Proceeds from sale of bonds 609,192 
Transfers from other funds 1,737,940 
Interest recowry - federal grants 194,143 
J>roceeds from sale of capital assets 152 149,284 627,541 
Acquisition of capital nssets (1 ,618,723) (9,1 15,339) (586,124) (26,287,996) (5,780,462) 
Principal paid on debt ( 1,197,500) 
Interest p.1id on debt (776,127) 
Amount paid on ad,ances (155,414) 
Interest paid on udvances (2.346) 

Net cush provided by (used in) capital 
und related fllllncing aetivit-=s (940.792) (9.115.339) (585,972} (25,865.657) (3,328,991) 

Cnsh Rows from im rsting ncti\·itics 
Interest on investments 250.857 109.153 325,180 2,968.279 1,016.998 

Net cnsh provided by investing 
ncuvitics 250,857 109,153 325,180 2,968.279 1,0)6,998 

Net increase ~ decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 4,465,809 (9,272,795) 1.728,502 13,586,107 1,864,872 

roolcd cash and lnnstmcnts 
October I, 2014 33,006.340 15.9-t0.568 34,870,286 .3 18.513.387 I JJ,784.9.t6 

September 30, 20 I 5 s 37.472.149 s 6.667,773 s 36.598,788 s 332.099.494 s I 15.649,818 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Uusiness-T~1!e J\cthities- Enlt!J!rise Fund~ 
Ma 'or 

\\'aler and 1-:n~rgreen-

rarks and llelinquenl Cuunly Sewer Farminglun 
l{ecreallun TIIX Re\uh·ing Airports Trust SDS 

Operat ing (loss) income s (13.795,658) $15,679,203 $(2.276.295) s 223,121 s 2,074,324 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income 
to net cash provided by {used in) operllling 
activities 

Depreciation e;\'(lense 3,331. 106 2.718,781 2,822,614 680,989 
( lncreu.~e) decrease in due from other 
IJ>"ernmcntal units 1!4,154 3,666,293 129,555 3,222,061 

(increase) decrease in due from component 
units 78,409 

{Increase) decrease in accounts n."<:eivable 9,668 1. 121.800 9,322 (3,589,571) 
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (3,493) I 14,572 1,274,412 
(Increase) dccrcu.~e in inventories and supplies {11 ,300) 
(lncreu.~e) decrease in prepayments and other 
US SetS (3.169) (611 ,868) 

{Increase) decreuse in dcli:rrcd outflows 
related to pension 
lncrca~e (decrease) in vouchers poy able {71 ,432) (11.571) ( 12,294) 1,340,871 (43 ,066) 
lncreose {decrease) in due to other govern-
mental units 38,195 593,170 23,725 

Increase {decrease) in due to component units 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 1,960 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (226,226) 10,245 (3,247) 
Increase (decrease) in current ponion of 
other long-term liabilities 

Increase (decrease) in other accru~o'<lliabilities (297,244) (9,598) 12,940 (376,437) 387,178 
lncreast: (dt:crease) in net pension liability 
Increase (decrease) in other long-term 
liabilities 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
opera\ ing activit k'S s (10,983.594) $20.48-1.322 s 462.699 s 642.780 s 7,699,992 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30. 2015 

Dusinen-Tvpe ,\cth·itiu - Enterprbe Funds 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities 

Depreciation expense 
(Increase) dL'Creuse in due from other 
I!Pvernmental units 

(lncreuse) decrease in due from component 
units 
(lncrea.~e) decrCIL~e in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 
(Increase) decrease in inventories and supplies 
(Increase) decrea.~e in prepayments and other 
ussets 
(lncrcu.~e) decreuse in deferred outflows 
related to pension 
Increase ( decreuse) in vouchers pay able 
Increase (decrease) in due to other J!PVCrn-
mental units 
Increase (decrease) in due to component units 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase ( decrcu.~e) in unearned revenue 
Increase (dL'Creuse) in current portion of 
other long-term liabilities 
I ncreu.w (decrease) in ot hL'T accrued liabilit ics 
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 
lncreuse (decrease) in other long-term 
liabilities 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operut ing uct ivit ies 

Major 

Clinton- ~on-Major 

S.O.C.S.O.S. 011kland S.ll.S. Funds 

s 5.058,253 s 400,464 s (8,428,190) 

797,5S8 759,605 8,704,853 

( 1,295,316) (965,872) (684,387) 

388.000 59 
(54,SS I) ( 159,040) 

61,406 
143,070 

34,310 {137, 157) 

3,322 (810,900) 237,513 

121 , 130 (162.574) ( 13,442) 

1,555 
15,583 

( 136,481) 353.702 159,747 

s 4.528.226 s (37.575) s (98,430) 

Tot11b 
September 30, 

2015 

s {1 ,064,778) 

19,815,506 

4,156,488 

466,468 
(2,662,372) 

1,446,897 
131,770 

(717,884) 

632,443 

600,204 

3,516 
(203,645) 

93,807 

s 22.698,420 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Gonmmental 
t\cthillu ­

Internal 
Senice 
Funds 

s (8,181,851) 

5,155,383 

(482,411) 

3,492 
(544,505) 
222,131 

(308 ,371) 

( 1,025, 148) 

(40,245,669) 
(735.260) 

(1,013) 
495 

(131,786) 
1,623 

1,111,817 
925,191 

76,570,928 

(2,758,109) 

$ 29,576.937 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Noncash trunsuctions 
fo.ntcrprisc Fundo; 
Major funds : 
Noncash and capital related financing activities included contribution of capital assets in the 
amount of$382,548 and $7,449,977 in the County Airports and Evergreen-Farmington S.O.S. 
lund, respectively, and acquisition of capital assets of$724,475 reported in the Other 
Accrued liabilities liability uccount in the Clinton-Oakland S.O.S. fund. 
In the Water and Sewer Trust fund, the following : acquisition of capital assets of$414,915 
reported in the Other Accrued liabilities liability account; write-off of capital ussets of$1,273,374; 
Capital us set contributions of$836,916 included in Due from Other Governmental Units asset 
account; proceeds from sale of capital assets belonging to Drainage Districts Component Unit 
of$ 116,445 reported in the Due to Component Units liability account; principal ($552,500) and 
interest ($299,140) for the restatement of debt for the Dminuge Districts Component Unit 
reported in lntergovcmmcntal Expcnscs,and debt adjustment increase for $85,179 from reversal 
ofpriorycar's debt forgiveness. 

Noncash and non-capital related financing activities included interest c>~pcnse of$8,313 
reported in the Vouchers Payable liability in the Delinquent Tux Revolving fund; 
recording ofContrJcts Receivable and Unearned Revenue of$1,282,121 in the County 
Airports lund, and Contributions in the amount of$510,551 reported in Due from Other 
Governmental Units asset account in the Water and Sewer Trust fund. 

Nonrnajor funds ; 
Noncash and capital related financing activities included contribution of capital assets in the 
amount of$166,952 and $594,061 in the Fire Records Management and CLEM IS funds, 
res pcct ivcly. 

lntcrnul Scr~cc Funtlo; 
Noncash and capital related financing activities included contribution of capital assets in the 
umount of$5,536,319 and acquisition of capital assets in the amount of$42,735 reported in the 
Other Accrued Liabilities liability account in the lnfonnation Technology fund. 

Noncash and non-capital related financing activities included recording ofpcnsion expense 
in the amount of$36,325,259 in the Fringe Ilene fits fund. 
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 

Pension (and Other Postemployment Benefits) Trust Funds - Employee Pension Trust funds accept 
payments made by the County, invest fund resources, and calculate and pay pensions to beneliciaries. 
Postemployment benelit trust funds accumulate resources to provide health-related benefits to retired 
employees, dependents, and beneficiaries. 

Investment Trust Funds - These funds account for monies from external local units of government, held 
in a pooled investment portfolio for the benefit of the respective governmental units under contractual 
arrangement. 

Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held by the County in a custodial capacity. 
Disbursements from these funds are contingent upon the agreement or applicable legislative enactment 
for each particular fund. Agency funds are generally clearance devices for monies collected for others, 
held briefly, and then disbursed to authorized recipients. 

Combining schedules for liduciary funds arc presented, by fund type, in the following sections: 

Pension (and other postemploymcnt benefits) trust funds 
Investment trust funds 
Agency funds 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Pension 
(and Other 

Post-
employment ln ... oestment 

Bencfil'i) Trust Agency 
Trust Fund'i Funds Fund'i 

AS!>CtS 
Pooled cash and invcs tmcnts s 27,169,589 s 500,425,222 $ 236,907,377 
Cash and cash equivalents 732,076 
Investments, nt lair value 

Common stock 843,544,809 
Preferred stock 81,991 
Government securities 141,833,088 
Corporate bonds 215,345,465 
Municipal bonds 2,585,553 
I ledge funds 91,409,533 
Limited partnerships 113,056, 188 
A sset·bucked fixed income 17,894,077 
Government bonds 24,615,466 
Government mortgage-bucked securities 59,960,543 
Government issued commercial mortgage-bucked securities 1,108,168 
Non-government backed CMOs 2,393,816 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 26,340,326 
Rank loans 4,872,095 
Exchange traded funds 1,395,831 
International common stock 66,740,809 
Index linked government bonds 21,140,690 
Real estate 156,932,205 
Other fixed income 6,614,664 
Other 628,922 

Total investments I, 798,494.239 

Receivables- interest and dividends 4,844,601 171,295 
Receivables -other 29,298 
Prepaid expenses 214.906 

Total assets 1,830, 752.633 500.425,222 237.810,748 

Linbilitics 
Vouchers payable 1,025,335 407,603 
Due to other governmental units 222,300,060 
Other accrued liabilities 2,386.574 15.103.085 

Total liabilities 3,411,909 237.810.748 

Net position 
llcld in Trust lor t•ension and Other Postemploymcnl 
healthcare benefits, and pool participants s 1.827 .340. 724 s 500,425.222 s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Changes in Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Additions 
Contributions 

Pool participants 
Employer 
Plan members 

Total contributions 
Investment income 
Other revenue 

Total additions 
Deductions 
Bene fits 
Administrative expenses 
Distribution to pool participants 

Total deductions 
Net increase (decrease) 

Net position held in trust for pension and other postcmployment 
healthcare benefits, and pool participants 

October I, 2014 
September 30, 2015 

$ 

$ 

Pension 
(und Other 

Post­
employment 

Benefits) 
Trust Funds 

4,554,832 
584,619 

5,139,451 
13,573,094 
2,387,199 

21,099,744 

82,183,259 
6,067,392 

88,250,651 
(67,150,907) 

1,894.491,631 
1,827,340,724 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Investment 
Trust 
Funds 

$863,051 ,594 

863,051 ,594 
3,830,655 

866,882,249 

772,978,999 
772,978,999 

93,903,250 

406,521 ,972 
$ 500,425,222 



Component Unit Financial Statements 

Component Units 

Drainage Districts- This component unit consists of many individual districts created for the purpose of 
alleviating drainage problems. This involves accounting for the resources and costs associated with the 
construction, maintenance, and financing of the individual drainage districts. 

Road Commission - This component unit is responsible for the construction and maintenance of the 
County's system of roads and bridges, and is principally funded by the State-collected vehicle fuel and 
registration taxes under Michigan Public Act 51 of 1951. 

Combining schedules for Drainage Districts Funds are presented, by fund type, in the Drainage Districts 
section. 



County of Oakland 
Statement of Net Position 
Component Units 
September 30, 2015 

Total 
J)minu~:e l~oud Component 
Districts Commission Units 

Assets 
Current Dssets 

J>oolcd cash 11nd investments s 38,102,559 s s 38,102,559 
Cash and cash equivalents 55,910,954 55,910,954 
Rece ivD blcs, net 

Special assessments 5.362.018 5.362,018 
Due from other governmental units 9,795,759 9,795,759 
Due from primary government 116,445 495 116,940 
Accrued interest receivable 95,840 95,840 
Accounts receivable 41,265 18,862,899 18,904,164 

Inventories nnd supplies 4,648,821 4,648,821 
I' repayments nnd other assets 124,290 3,692,917 3,817.207 

Total current assets 48.276.158 88,478.104 136.754.262 

Noncurrent assets 
Special assessments receivable 210,278,991 210,278,991 
Capital assets, net 

Land and other nomlepreeiablc assets 164.753,430 196,694,619 361,448,049 
Land improvements. net 1,078,684 1,078,684 
Buildings und improvements. net 52.740.325 8,252,890 60,993,215 
Equipment and vehicles, net 335.019 7,049,294 7,384,313 
Infrastructure. net 395.652.128 583.290,648 978,942.776 

Total capital assets. net 613.480,902 796.366,135 1.409.847,037 
Total noncurrent assets 823.759,893 796.366.135 1,620. I 26.028 
Total assets 872,036,051 884,844,239 1,756,880,290 

J)cfc rn:d Out Rows orthsoun:es 
Deferred outflows related to pension 17.222.616 17.222,616 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Vouchers payable 3,045,949 10,774,014 13,819,963 
Due to other governmental units 13,083,203 13,083,203 
Due to primary government 692,227 28,252 720,479 
Unearned revenue and advances 15.145,232 9,862,729 25,007,961 
Accrued interest payable 35,129 3.333 38,462 
Current portion of long-terrn debt 18,814,800 500,000 19,314,800 
Current portion of long-terrn liabilities 572,340 572,340 
Other accrued liabilities 6,465.970 3,671.564 10.137.534 

Total current liabilities 57.282.510 25.412,232 82.694,742 
Bonds and notes payable 245,75 I ,674 245,75 I ,674 
Accrued compensated absences 3,018,250 3,018,250 
Claims and judgments 673,860 673,860 
Net pension liability 26,527,162 26,527,162 
Other postemployment benefits 23.527,919 23.527.919 

Total liabilities 303.034.184 79.159.423 382.193.607 
:'tiel position 
Net investment in capital assets 348,914,428 795,866.135 1,144, 780,563 
Restricted lor 

Public works 10,571,582 10,571,582 
Debt service 196,028,896 196.028,896 

Unrestricted 13.486,961 27.041.297 40,528.258 

Total net position s 569.001.867 s 822.907.432 s 1.391, 909,299 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements 
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County of Oakland 
Statement of Activities 
Component Units 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Funcliuns/Pro~rams 

Dra11agc DIStr~~:ts 

Rood CommiSsion 

Total componcnttmis 

G~nrra1 Rennue 

Unrcstnctcd mvcstmcnt cnmmll5 

Chansc m net position 

:-;cl posiliun 

Dc~mnmg (as restated, sec N01c 20) 

Emmg 

l'mgntm Revenuu 
Open~tin~ Ca1•ital 

Chai'Jles fur Grnnts and Gmnts and 

Servicu Contributions Contributions 

s 9~.9SJ.221 s 86,988,736 s 782,103 s 58,354,011 

111,085,883 17,668,47~ 65,173,330 56,459.~14 

s 206,039.1~ s 1~.657110 s 65,955.433 s 114,813,425 

s 

s 

Dnlina~e 

Districts 

51,171,629 

51,171.629 

333.292 

S 1 ,S~,921 

517,496,946 

569,001 .867 

The accompan)'ing nolcs arc an inh:gral part of the financial statements 
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s 

s 

Road 

Commission 

28.215.335 

28.215.335 

776,582 

28,991.917 

793.91S,SIS 

822.907,432 

s 

s 

Total 

Component 

Units 

51,171,629 

28.215,335 

79,386,964 

1.109,874 

80,4%,838 

1.311.412.461 
1,391.909199 



County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The basic financial statements of Oakland County (the County) have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, which are primarily set 
forth in the GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards 
(GASB Codification). The more significant of the County's accounting policies are described 
below. 

The Financial Reporting Entity 
As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the GASB, the financial 
reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component units, which arc 
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of 
the component unit's board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or 
{b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial 
burden on the primary government. 

The accompanying financial statements present Oakland County (the Primary Government) and its 
component units. The County's Parks and Recreation Commission is not legally separate from the 
County, nor docs it possess separate corporate powers. As such, the financial data of the County's 
Parks and Recreation Commission have been included with the financial data of the Primary 
Government. The financial data of the component units arc included in the County's reporting 
entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the County. 

Blended Component Unit 
A blended component unit is a legally separate entity from the County, but is so intertwined with 
the County that it is, in substance, the same as the County. It is reported as part of the County and 
blended into the appropriate funds. 

• Oaklllml Cmmty Buildi11g Alltllority (tile Alltllority) - A five-person authority is appointed by 
the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, and its activity is dependent upon Board actions. 
The purpose of the Authority is to finance, through tax-exempt bonds, the construction of 
public buildings for use by the County, with the bonds secured by lease agreements with the 
County and retired through lease payments from the County. The Oakland County Building 
Authority is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to 
finance the construction of the County's public buildings. The Authority's activity is reported 
in various Debt Service funds (designated by the caption "Building Authority"), and the 
Building Improvement Fund, a capital projects fund. 

Separate financial statements for the Authority are not published. 
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County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 
A discretely presented component unit is an entity that is legally separate from the County but for 
which the County is financially accountable, or its relationship with the County is such that 
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. These 
component units are reported in separate columns to emphasize that they are legally separate from 
the County. 

• Road Commissio11 for Oaklttml Co1111l)' (Road Commissio11) - The Road Commission is 
governed by three appointees of the County Board of Commissioners who arc not County 
Board members. The Road Commission is responsible for the construction and maintenance of 
the County's system of roads and bridges, and is principally funded by State-collected vehicle 
fuel and registration taxes under Michigan Public Act 51 of 1951. The County has budgetary 
control and appropriation authority over its activities; however, such has not been exercised. 
The Road Commission's primary activities, which are as of and for the year ended September 
30, 2015, arc reported discretely as a governmental fund type - Special Revenue fund. The 
Road Commission Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2015, is not reported in the financial statements of Oakland County. 

• Complete financial statements of the Road Commission, which include the Road Commission 
Retirement System and its separately issued statements, can be obtained from its administrative 
offices as follows: 

Road Commission for Oakland County 
3 I 00 I Lahser Road 
Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025 

• Draitmge Districts - This component unit consists of 182 individual districts created under 
Chapters 20 and 21 of Michigan Public Act 40 of 1956, for the purpose of alleviating drainage 
problems. This involves the construction, maintenance, and financing necessary to account for 
the cost of the drainage district. The individual districts, each a separate legal entity with 
power to assess the benefiting communities, is governed by the Drain Board for Oakland 
County, which consists of the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner, the Chairman 
of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, and the Chairperson of the Finance 
Committee of the Board of Commissioners. Assessments are made against the applicable 
municipalities within each district, including the Road Commission for Oakland County and 
the State of Michigan for road drainage. All activities of the various drainage districts are 
administered by the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner. However, the drainage 
districts arc not subject to the County's appropriation process. Because of the relationship 
between the component unit and the primary government, it would be misleading to exclude 
the Drainage Districts' Component Unit from the financial statements of Oakland County. 

• The financial activities of the Drainage Districts as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2015 arc reported discretely as a governmental fund type. There arc no separately issued 
financial statements of this component unit, although financial information for the specific 
drainage districts may be obtained from: 

Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
#I Public Works Drive 
Waterford, Michigan 48328 
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County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

Basic (Government-wide) and Fund Financial Statements- GASB Statement No. 34 
GASB Statement No. 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for state and local 
governments and requires that net position be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into 
the following three categories: 

• Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted net position results when constraints placed on net position use are either 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors and the like, or imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Unrestricted net position consists of net position which does not meet the definition of the 
two preceding categories. Unrestricted net position often is designated to indicate that 
management docs not consider them to be available for general operations. Unrestricted net 
position often has constraints on resources which are imposed by management, but can be 
removed or modified. 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the County as a whole) and 
fund financial statements. While the previous financial reporting model emphasized fund types 
(the total of all funds of a particular type) in the new financial reporting model, the focus is on 
either the County as a whole, or major individual funds (within the fund financial statements). 
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic financial statements) 
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. In the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are 
presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) arc reflected, on a full accrual , economic 
resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations. 

The County's fiduciary funds (which have been redefined and narrowed in scope) are presented in 
the fund financial statements by type. Since, by definition, these assets are being held for the 
benefit of third parties (pension participants and others) and cannot be used to finance activities or 
obligations of the government, these funds arc not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items arc 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met. 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects the degree to which direct expenses that are 
clearly identifiable with a given functional category (General Government, Public Safety, Justice 
Administration, Citizen Services, Public Works, Recreation and Leisure, and Commerce and 
Community Development) are offset by program revenues. Program revenue includes I) charges 
to customers or applicants who purchase, usc, or directly bene lit from goods, services or privileges 
provided by a given function or category, restricted investment earnings, and 2) grants and 
contributions that arc restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
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County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

functional category. The operating grants include operating~specific and discretionary (either 
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 
Property taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues are reported instead as general revenues, 
which are used to cover the net cost ofthe various functional categories ofthe County. 

The County's policy is to eliminate internal activity from the Statement of Activities. This policy 
dictates the elimination of indirect expenses, but not direct expenses. The exception to this general 
rule is activities between funds reported as governmental activities and funds reported as business­
type activities (i.e., billings for services or products by internal service funds to Enterprise Funds). 

The County does not currently employ an indirect cost allocation system. Rather, an administrative 
service fee is charged by the General Fund to the other operating funds to address General Fund 
services such as finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, administration, etc. This is treated like a 
reimbursement, eliminating revenues and expenses on the Statement of Activities. 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change 
in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 

The fund financial statements arc, in substance, very similar to the financial statements presented in 
the previous financial reporting model. Emphasis here is on the major funds in either the 
governmental or business-type categories. Non~major funds (by category) are summarized into a 
single column. 

The governmental funds statements in the fund financial statements are presented on a current 
financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund 
statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the 
government-wide statements governmental column, a reconciliation is presented on the page 
following each statement, which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund­
based financial statements into the full accrual governmental column of the government-wide 
presentation. 

Internal service funds of a government (which traditionally provide services primarily to other 
funds of the government) are presented, in summary form, as part of the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the County's governmental 
activities, financial statements of internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental 
column when presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these services are allocated to 
the appropriate functional activity. When appropriate, surplus or deficits in the internal service 
funds are allocated back to the various users within the entity~wide Statement of Activities. 

The focus of the entity-wide financial statements under the new reporting model is to present the 
County as a whole. The focus of the Fund Financial Statements is on the major individual funds of 
the governmental and business-type categories, as well as the fiduciary funds (by category), and the 
component units. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and 
compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the information. 

Basis of Presentation- Fund Accounting 
Funds are used to report the County's financial position and results of operations. Fund accounting 
is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating 
transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting 
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 
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County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the County 's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund . Revenue is primarily derived from 
property taxes, state and federal distributions, and charges for services. 

The Building Authority Debt Act 31 Fund was established to accumulate the resources for payment 
of bonded debt issued for the construction of, or improvement to various facilities. This also 
includes debt issued as assistance in obtaining favorable lending rates for other units of government 
within the County. 

The Water and Sewer Refunding Debt Act 342 Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources, 
mainly special assessments against benefiting municipalities, for the payment of bonded debt 
issued for construction of various water and sewer systems in Oakland County. 

The County reports the following major enterprise funds: 

The Parks and Recreation Fund accounts for the operation of the Oakland County parks system. 

The Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund accounts for money advanced to the County and other local 
units of government for unpaid property taxes, and the subsequent collection of delinquencies. 

The County Airports Fund was created to account for operations of the County's airports. 

The Water and Sewer Trust Fund accounts for the collection of resources for the operation of 
various water and sewer systems maintained by the County, rather than the respective individual 
municipalities. 

The Evergreen-Farmington S.O.S. (Sewage Disposal System) Fund was established to record the 
operations and maintenance of the system, which is used to move sewage to the City of Detroit for 
treatment. Costs are recovered by developing rates and billing the municipalities serviced. 

The Southeastern Oakland County S.D.S (S.O.C.S.D.S.) Fund was established to record the 
operations and maintenance of the system, which is used to move sewage and storm water to the 
City of Detroit for treatment. Costs arc recovered by developing rates and billing the 
municipalities being served. 

The Clinton-Oakland S.O.S. Fund was established to record the operations and maintenance of the 
system, which is used to move sewage to the City of Detroit for treatment. Costs arc recovered by 
developing rates and billing the municipalities being serviced. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

Governmental Fund Types 
Special Revenue Funds are used to ensure that specified resources (other than expendable trusts 
and funds for major capital improvements) arc used as required by legal, regulatory, and/or 
administrative provisions. Included within the Special Revenue Funds are programs for care of 
children, drain maintenance, and certain grant operations involving public health, employment 
training, community development, environmental infrastructure programs, and other grants. 

76 



County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

Debt Service Funds account for the financing resources and payment of current principal and 
interest on debt. Debt Service Funds account for servicing of general long-term debt of various 
building authority debt issues, and debt associated with local water and sewer obligations upon 
which there arc County guarantees. 

Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition, construction, and renovation of major capital 
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

Proprietary Fund Types 
Internal service funds account for goods and services provided to departments, funds, and 
governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis. Included within the internal service funds are 
certain fringe benefits provided to County employees which include health, workers' 
compensation, unemployment compensation, information technology, various equipment revolving 
funds, and central service-type operations. 

Enterprise Funds, business-type activities, report operations for services to the general public, 
financed primarily by user charges intended to recover the cost of services provided, and include 
three airports, four sewage disposal systems, parks and others. 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. The exception to this general rule is activities between funds reported as 
governmental activities and funds reported as business-type activities. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include I) charges for customers for goods supplied or 
services provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources, as well as taxes, are reported as general revenue rather than as 
program revenues. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection 
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation of capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Fiduciary Fund Types 
Fiduciary funds arc used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Oakland County's fiduciary funds include Pension (and other post-employment 
benefits) Trust funds to account for retirees' retirement and medical benefits; Investment Trust 
funds, which report funds deposited by and invested for local units of government; and Agency 
funds, which account for assets held in a custodial capacity by the County for others. These funds 
are not renected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of the funds arc 
not available to support the programs of Oakland County. 

Basis of Accounting 
• Primary govermmmt - The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is 

determined by its measurement focus. Governmental funds arc accounted for using a current 
financial resources measurement focus . With this measurement focus, only current assets, 
except for certain miscellaneous receivables and special assessments, and current liabilities are 
included on the balance sheet. Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the 
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County's general activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked resources 
and the servicing of long-term debt. 

• Proprietary, Pension Trust, and Investment Trust funds arc accounted for on a flow-of­
economic-resources measurement focus. All assets and liabilities are included on the 
Statement of Net Position with the balance classified as net position. Proprietary funds account 
for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income 
is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. 

• The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting, which 
recognizes revenue in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, 
generally when they become both measurable and available. Property taxes are levied on 
December I and July I of each year (see Note 4) and are recognized as revenue in the fiscal 
year during which they are levied, and interest associated with the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and has been recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due within the current fiscal 
period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenues of the current period. Other 
revenue is considered to be available when anticipated to be collected within 60 days of the end 
of the fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except debt service expenditures, which are recorded when paid. 

• Proprietary, Pension Trust, and Investment Trust Funds use the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities arc incurred. Agency funds, which report only a Statement of Net Position, use the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 
The Road Commission uses the current financial resources measurement focus for its governmental 
fund-type activities. The governmental fund type is used to account for all of the Road 
Commission's activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked resources and the 
servicing of long-term debt. Revenues and expenditures arc recorded under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, and, as such, revenue is recorded when measurable and available, and earned. 
Project-related revenue is recognized as related costs are incurred, except for interest on long-term 
debt, which is recorded when paid. 

The Drainage Districts use the current financial resources measurement focus for their activities. 
The governmental fund type is used to account for all of the Drainage Districts' activities, 
including the financing of the cost of construction and maintenance of Drainage Districts and 
servicing of long-term debt. Revenues and expenditures are recorded under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, and as such, revenue is recorded when measurable and available, and earned. 
Project-related revenues arc recognized as related costs are incurred, except for debt service 
expenditures, which are recorded when paid. 

Budgets 
Budgets and budgetary accounting are on the modified accrual basis, which is consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis) in that property tax revenue is recognized 
when made available by Board resolution. The budget was legally adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners prior to September 30, 2014 and presented in a separate document. Appropriation 
budgets were adopted for the General Fund and the following Special Revenue funds: Child Care 
and Social Welfare-foster Care. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Project-length 
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financial plans are budgeted for the remainder of the Special Revenue funds and for all Debt 
Service and Capital Projects funds. Budget and actual comparisons for such funds are not reported 
in the financial statements because annual budgets arc not prepared. 

Encumbrances are recorded at the time that purchase orders and contracts are issued. The 
encumbrances are liquidated when the goods or services are received. Unliquidated encumbrances 
at the end of the year arc set aside as assigned within fund balance. In the succeeding year, the 
encumbrances arc re-appropriated by the Board of Commissioners to cover the unliquidated 
encumbrances included in fund equity. 

Pooled Cash and Investments 
The County maintains a cash and investment pool for all funds except the pension trust funds, the 
Superseding Trust fund, and two agency funds (Jail Inmate Trust and District Court Trust), in order 
to maximize investment earnings. Investments of the pool arc not segregated by fund but each 
contributing fund's balance is treated as equity in the pool. For funds not in the pool, cash 
equivalents are considered to be demand deposits and short-term investments with an original 
maturity date of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Cash overdrafts occurring in funds participating in pooled cash accounts at September 30, 20 I 5 
have been reclassified as a "due to other funds," and a corresponding "due from other funds" was 
established in the General Fund. Similarly, negative accrued interest receivable caused by negative 
cash balances is also reclassified at year end as an inter-fund liability. 

The County's investments arc stated at fair value, which is determined by using quoted market 
rates, if the investment is traded on a recognized stock exchange. There are no derivative 
instruments or products in the County's non-pension investment portfolio at September 30, 20 I 5. 

Pooled investment income is allocated to all funds based on the respective share of their average 
daily balances. Interest charges for funds with negative balances arc reported as negative interest 
income. 

Inter-fund Rcccivablcs/Payablcs 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. Short-term receivables and payables resulting from such 
transactions are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 

Non-current portions of long-term inter-fund loan receivables arc reported as advances and arc 
offset equally by nonspendable fund balance. 

Inventories 
Inventories in governmental and proprietary funds arc stated at cost using the first-in, first-out 
(FIFO) method. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

Prepayments 
Payments made for services that will benefit periods beyond September 30, 2015 are recorded as 
prepayments using the consumption method. 
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Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
drains, and similar items), are reported in the government-wide statements and applicable 
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets that are used for governmental activities are 
only capitalized in the government-wide statements and fully expended in the government funds. 
The County established capitalization thresholds for capital assets of $5,000. Capital assets are 
stated at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the time of donation. In some 
instances, capital asset historical costs were not available; therefore, the costs of these assets at the 
dates of acquisitions have been estimated. Expenditures materially extending the life of capital 
assets are capitalized. Interest incurred during construction is only capitalized in proprietary funds. 
Capital assets are depreciated over their useful lives, using the straight-line depreciation method. 
Infrastructure ("public domain") assets, including roads, bridges, sanitary sewers, drains, curbs, and 
gutters, are capitalized. 

The County's estimated useful lives of the major classes of property and equipment follow: 

Class 

Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and vehicles 
Sewage disposal systems 
Infrastructure 

Years 

10-15 
35-45 
3-10 

40-50 
10-75 

Capital assets used in the general operation of the Road Commission are depreciated under various 
methods, including straight-line and sum-of-the-years digits. 

Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences (vested sick and annual leave) of the Primary Government that are allowed 
to accumulate are charged to operations in the Fringe Benefit fund (an Internal Service fund) as the 
benefits accrue. Compensated absences for the Road Commission are accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the 
governmental funds only for employee tenninations as of year end. 

No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits for the 
Primary Government and Component Units. 

Pension 
The County offers pension benefits to retirees. The County records a net pension liability for the 
difference between the total pension liability calculated by the actuary and the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, provide 
information about the fiduciary net position of the pension plan and additions to/deductions from 
the pension plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments arc reported at fair value. 
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Other Postemployment Benefit Costs 
The County offers retiree healthcare benefits to retirees. The County receives an actuarial 
valuation to compute the annual required contribution (ARC) necessary to fund the obligation over 
the remaining amortization period. In the governmental funds, OPEB costs arc recognized as 
contributions are made. For the government~wide statements, the County reports the full accrual 
cost equal to the current year required contribution, adjusted for interest and "adjustment to the 
ARC" on the beginning of year balance, if any. 

Net Pension Liability 
Beginning in fiscal year 20 I 5, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions, requires governments that provide defined benefit pensions to recognize the net pension 
liability and the pension expense on their financial statements. As a result, the government-wide 
statements now include a liability for our unfunded legacy costs related to the County's pension 
plan. The net pension liability is the difference between the total pension liability and the plan's 
fiduciary net position. The pension expense recognized each fiscal year is equal to the change in 
the net pension liability from the beginning of the year to the end of the year, adjusted for deferred 
recognition of the liability and investment experience. The net pension liability is recorded on the 
government-wide, internal service and discretely presented component unit statements. This 
change docs not impact the General Fund or any other governmental fund. Refer to the pension 
notes for further details. 

Fund Equity 
In the fund financial statements for the governmental fund reports, the following are the 
components of fund balance: 

• Nonspendable, includes amounts that cannot be spent. 

• Restricted, amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through 
enabling legislation. 

• Committed, amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal resolution of the County's highest level of decision-making authority. A 
formal resolution by the Board of Commissioners is required to establish, modify or rescind a 
fund balance commitment. 

• Assigned, amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to be used for specific purposes, 
but are neither restricted nor committed. These assignments are authorized by the Board of 
Commissioners through a formal resolution. 

• Unassigned is the residual classification of the General Fund, and the reporting of any negative 
fund balance of a governmental fund. 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position or 
fund balance are available, the County's policy is to first apply restricted resources. When an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance 
classifications could be used, it is the County's policy to spend funds in this order: committed, 
assigned, and unassigned. 

81 



County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

Deferred Outnows/Innows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The County has only 
one item that qualifies for reporting in that category. Accordingly, the item, deferred outflows 
related to pensions, is reported as deferred outflows in the government-wide, internal service and 
component unit statements of net position. This amount is the result of a difference between what 
the plan expected to earn from the plan investments and what it actually earned. This amount will 
be amortized over the next four years and included in pension expense. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that time. The 
government has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of 
accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, 
is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report 
unavailable revenues from five sources: property taxes, contracts, grants, special assessments and 
other. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the 
amounts become available. 

Property taxes levied are used to finance the expenditures of the current fiscal period (October I, 
2014 through September 30, 20 15) and arc reported as revenues in the financial statements. 
Amounts not collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year are considered unavailable for 
the current period, and arc reported as deferred inflows. 

Usc of Estimates 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
basic financial statements, September 30, 2015. These estimates and assumptions also affect the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Legal Compliance- Budgets 

The Board of Commissioners has established the legal level of control by control groups, as 
outlined in the County's General Appropriations Act. This act states that expenditures shall not 
exceed the total appropriations for personnel expenditures (salaries, overtime, and fringes), 
operating expenditures, and internal support expenditures (Internal Service fund charges), 
respectively, by department. Budgets arc adopted and presented on the GAAP basis of accounting. 

The Board of Commissioners is authorized to make amendments to the various budgets as deemed 
necessary. Current year supplemental budgetary appropriations were not material. Funds that 
receive an appropriation and can therefore be defined as those with an appropriated, annual, legally 
adopted budget are the General Fund and two Special Revenue funds: Child Care and Social 
Welfare-Foster Care. The budgetary comparison for the General Fund is presented in the Required 
Supplementary Information. The Child Care and Social Welfare Foster Care funds are presented in 
the Special Revenue Funds section. 
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Transfers within and between budgeted funds and departments may be made by the Fiscal Officer 
(Director of Management and Budget Department) in the following instances: 

(a) Transfers may be made from the non-departmental overtime reserve account and fringe 
benefit adjustment account to the appropriate departmental budget as specific overtime 
requests are reviewed and approved by the Fiscal Officer. Additionally, overtime 
appropriations may be transferred between divisions within a department at the request of 
the department head, if authorized by the Fiscal Officer or designee. 

(b) Transfers may be made from the non-departmental appropriation reserve accounts for 
maintenance department charges and miscellaneous capital outlay to the appropriate 
departmental budgets as specific requests for these items are reviewed and approved by 
the Fiscal Officer. 

(c) Transfers may be made from the non-departmental appropriation reserve accounts, 
emergency salaries, and summer help as specific requests for these items are reviewed 
and approved by the Director of the Human Resources Department. 

At year end, the Board of Commissioners adopts a resolution which authorizes and closes amounts 
exceeding the original appropriation against the balances in other appropriations and closes the 
remaining balance to the General Fund's "Unassigned Fund Balance." 

During the year, the County incurred no expenditures in excess of appropriations which are 
presented at the legal level of control. 

3. Deposits and Investments 

The County has deposits and investments which are maintained for its primary government, 
component unit and fiduciary fund types. 

For the primary government, the County manages its investments in a pool format which is used by 
all County funds. Share value is maintained at $1, with interest rates floating daily. Investment 
income is allocated back to County funds based on their share of the pool which is calculated on 
their average daily cash balance. 

For its pool, the County only uses federal and state-chartered banks and savings institutions, which 
are members of the FDIC, and have a location in the state of Michigan. All deposits and 
investments for the pool arc held in the County's name and tax ID number. 

The County Treasurer is permitted to offer an investment option to local units of government 
within the County, called the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). Contracted participant 
deposits are treated just like County funds and receive a share of earnings based on their average 
daily cash balance. The LGIP is not subject to regulatory oversight, is not registered with the SEC, 
and does not issue a separate report. The LGIP is managed as a 2(a)7 fund with its net asset value 
maintained at $1. Fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 
The LGIP has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the period to support 
the value of the shares. Investments arc valued monthly. 
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Deposits 

It is County policy to review and verify a bank's creditworthiness through a system of ratio 
analysis and from information provided by several third-party sources. In addition, the County 
places concentration limits on banks based on creditworthiness resulting from both the ratio 
analysis and third-party information. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the County's deposits may not be returned. 

As of September 30, 20 t 5, the bank balance of the County's deposits was $1,075,951,200. Insured 
deposits were $4,750,000, and the remaining $ t ,071,20 I ,200 was uninsured, uncollateralized, and 
held in the County's name. 

The Drainage District's component unit ' s cash, deposits and investments are maintained in pooled 
accounts of the County; therefore, their amount of insurance would be allocated to the Drainage 
District's deposits based on their prorated share of the investment portfolio. 

The County's Investment Policy allows for the use of bank deposits including certificates of 
deposit. The only limitation placed on bank deposits is that they cannot exceed 60% of the total 
investment portfolio. In addition, the County's investment policy limits the investment with any 
single financial institution to t 5%. 

At September 30, 2015, the Road Commission component unit had $4,134,332 of bank deposits 
(checking and savings accounts) that were uninsured and uncoltateralized. The Road Commission 
believes that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is 
impractical to insure all deposits. However, only those institutions with an acceptable estimated 
risk level are used as depositories. 

Investments- lntcrnnllnvcstmcnt Pool 

Investments, except those of the Retirement Systems, Superseding Retiree Medical Benefits Trust 
and Deferred Compensation Plan, are administered by the Treasurer under guidelines established 
by Act 20 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1943, as amended and the investment policy as adopted 
by the County's Board of Commissioners. The County's investment policy is more restrictive than 
state law and allows for the following instruments: 

I. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the 
United States. 

2. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of Michigan 
financial institutions. 

3. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase at the highest classification established by not 
less than two standard rating services and that matures not more than 270 days afier the date of 
purchase. 

4. Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments in subdivision 1. The PSA Master Repurchase 
Agreement prototype agreement shall be employed with appropriate supplemental provisions 
regarding security delivery, security substitutions, and governing law. A signed repurchase 
agreement must be on file before entering into a repurchase transaction. 

5. Bankers' acceptances of United States banks. 
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6. Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of purchase are rated as 
investment grade by not less than one standard rating service. 

7. Obligations described in subdivisions I through 6 if purchased through an inter-local agreement 
under the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967. 

8. Investment pools organized under the Surplus Funds Investment Pool Act, PA 367 of 1982. 
9. Investment pools organized under the Local Government Investment Pool Act, PA 12 I of 1985. 
I 0. Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of I 940 with authority to only 

purchase investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a Michigan public 
corporation. Investment is limited to mutual funds that maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per 
share. 

As of September 30, 20 I 5, the County had the following deposit and investment types in its 
internal investment pool: 

Deposil and Investment Type 
Ccrtilicates of Deposit (I) 
Deposit Accounts (I) 
Money Marketlnvestmcnt Pools 
Ml Government Coupon 
U.S. Agencies 

Total Market Value ortntcmallnvestmcnt Pool 

Market Value 
$ 701,693,406 

$ 

374,257,794 
600,804 

38,409,800 
409,860,065 

1,524,821,869 

Weighted Average Maturity oflntcmallnvcstmcnt Pool (in days) 

Weighted Average 
Maturity (days) 

224 
I 
I 

4,200 
1,075 

487 

(I) These items arc considered deposits and not investments. They are presented here to give a 
clear picture of the investment pool's overall weighted average maturity. 

Credit Risk- The County had $409,860,065 invested in U.S. government securities which are rated 
AA+ by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's. The County had $38,409,800 in Municipal 
bonds rated Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Standard & Poor's. State law limits investments in 
commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization (NRSRO). It is the County's policy to further limit its investments in commercial 
paper to only the top rating as issued by NRSROs. The County held no commercial paper as of 
September 30, 2015. The County's investment policy is silent on the use of rated versus unrated 
money market funds. In addition, there is no rating level requirement for unrated money market 
funds. 

Cuslodial Credil Risk- lnvestmenls is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of 
another side party. The County 's investment policy requires that all investment transactions 
(including collateral for repurchase agreements) be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) 
basis. Securities shall be held by a third-party custodian, as designated by the County Treasurer, 
and shall be evidenced by a safekeeping receipt. As of September 30, 2015, $448,269,865 in 
investments, at fair value, was held in third-party safekeeping in the County's name. 

The County also invests in money market funds that have their securities safe kept with a third 
party selected by the counterparty. However, the pool's securities arc held in trust for the 
participants of the fund and are not available to the countcrparty if the counterparty should happen 
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to fail. We believe this arrangement satisfies the County's investment policy safe-keeping 
requirement. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Investments. On September 30, 2015, the County had investments 
of 5% or more, of the total portfolio, with the following U.S. agency issuers: Fannie Mae 6.97%, 
and Freddie Mac 12. I I%. No other issuer exceeded 5% of the total portfolio. 

Interest Rate Risk - To limit its exposure to fair value losses from rising interest rates, the County's 
investment policy states the County will not directly invest in securities that mature more than three 
years from date of purchase; however, securities exceeding the three-year limitation may be 
purchased provided maturity dates coincide with the expected use of the funds. As of September 
30, 2015, the internal investment pool had a weighted average maturity of 487 days and the longest 
investment maturity in the portfolio was 4,200 days ( 11.5 years). 

Investments- Pension Trust Funds 

The Pension Trust f-unds and the Superseding Retirees' Medical Benefits Trust Fund investments 
arc made in accordance with Act 55 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1982, as amended, and are 
limited to no more than 65 percent in common stock. In addition, no investments, loans, or leases 
are with parties related to the pension plan. 

Pension investments are made through the use of Investment Advisors which are selected and 
retained by the Retirement and Deferred Compensation Board (PERS, VEBA and SMBT). The 
advisors serve at the leisure of the Board as provided by investment agreements. At September 30, 
2015, the Primary Government's Pension Trust fund had 22 investment advisors. Investments are 
held in street name by safekeeping agents under formal trust agreements and/or in the Retirement 
Systems' name. 
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As of September 30, 20 I 5, the County had the following investment types in its Retirement System 
and other postemployment benefits trust funds: 

Average 
Duration 

Investment T;r~e Fair Value Percentage {In Years~ 
Common Stock $ 844,087,596 46.10% N/A 
Corporate Bonds 217,798,793 11.90% 5.68 
Real Estate 156,943,144 8.57% N/A 
Partnerships 113,056,188 6.18% N/A 
Hedge Funds 91,409,533 4.99% N/A 
Government Agencies 142,702,197 7.79% 2.59 
Government Bonds 20,588,516 1.12% 10.01 
International Common Stock 66,808,549 3.65% N/A 
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 60,120,866 3.28% 3.22 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,735,883 1.52% N/A 
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities 26,345,680 1.44% 3.13 
Asset-Backed Securities 17,906,485 0.98% 1.25 
Index Linked Government Bonds 21,159,908 1.16% 13. 12 
Municipal Bonds 2,622,705 0.14% NIA 
International Government Bonds 4,248,720 0.23% N/A 
International Government Agencies 205,517 0.01% N/A 
Other Fixed Income 6,644,414 0.36% 3.56 
Bank Loans 4,882,800 0.27% N/A 
Non-government Backed CMOs 2,401,637 0.13% 2.41 
Gov't Issued Commercial Mortgage-Backed 1,176,747 0.06% 2.98 
Exchange Traded Funds 1,401,920 0.08% N/A 
Other Assets 628,922 0.03% N/A 
Preferred Stock 81,991 0.01% N/A 

Total $1,830,958,711 100.00% 

Credit Risk. The Board' s adopted Statement of Investment Goals and Objectives (SIGO) states 
that no non-convertible bonds and convertible securities are authorized for purchase. In addition, 
no more than I 0% of the total value of the portfolio, at the time of purchase, may be held in non­
investment grade bonds as rated by Moody's and/or Standard & Poor's. Ninety percent ofthe total 
value of the portfolio must have a quality rating of A or better by Moody's and Standard & Poor's. 
For any security held in the portfolio that drops below investment grade as rated by Moody's or 
Standard & Poor's, the investment manager is to advise the Board of that fact along with a 
buy/hold recommendation. The Board shall then instruct the investment manager as to which 
action should be taken. 
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As of September 30, 2015, debt obligation investments held in the retirement system had the 
following ratings: 

Ratings 
Fair Value Percentage S&P Moody's 
$63,705,284 10.01% AAA Aaa 
179,035,998 28.12 AA A a 
88,081,951 13.83 A A 
64,654,993 10.16 BBB Baa 
31,523,541 4.95 BB Ba 
6,441,534 1.01 B B 

102,675 0.02 CCC CCC 
82,550 0.01 c Ca 

203,038,976 31.89 NR NR 
$636,667,502 100.00% 

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk associated that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Retirement System would not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the 
possession of another side party. The Retirement System's Statement of Investment Goals and 
Objectives (SIGO) requires that all investment transactions shall be conducted through a custodian 
that will act as the system's third party. Securities shall be held by the custodian, as designated by 
the Retirement Boards, and shall be evidenced by a custodial report. As of September 30, 20 15, 
$1,830,857,78 I in investments was held in third-party safekeeping in the County's name. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Board's adopted Statement of Investment Goals and Objectives 
(SIGO) states that no more than 5% of the assets of the Retirement System's portfolio may be 
invested in the fixed-income obligations of any one corporation or its affiliates and no more than 
10% may be invested in the equity of any one corporation or its affiliates. Further, for fixed­
income investments, no more than I 0% of the assets of the portfolio may be invested in the 
securities of any governmental agency that is not fully backed by the U.S. government. No 
limitation applies to obligations of the United States Treasury or any fully guaranteed agency of the 
federal government. 

For equities, holdings of all securities of an industry group should not exceed 25% of the portfolio 
at cost. A DRs should not exceed a maximum of I 0% of the portfolio at cost and shall be further 
limited to Canadian securities and non-U.S . domiciled corporations issuing U.S. securities. As of 
September 30, 20 I 5, as reported by the system's investment managers, no holdings exceed any of 
the Board's adopted limits. 

Interest Rate Risk - The Board's adopted Statement of Investment Goals and Objectives (SIGO) 
places no limitation on the system's fixed-income managers on the length to maturity for fixed­
income investments. As the schedule on page 87 indicates, the system's fixed-income investments 
had average durations of between I .2 years and I 3.1 years which is reasonable given the long-term 
nature of the system. Having reasonable durations will reduce the retirement system's risk exposure 
to rapidly adjusting interest rates. 
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Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs) arc U.S. government-issued asset-backed certificates 
and corporate-issued asset-backed certificates. Current CMO holdings have maturity lengths 
ranging from 7.3 years to 46.4 years and arc backed by investments in various assets, including 
mortgages. As of September 30, 2015, the market value was $3,742,318. 

Interest Rate Risk - Collateralized Mortgage Obligations. The market value of such investments 
can be affected by, among other factors, changes in interest rates, including the effect of 
prepayments, marketability, and default rates on assets underlying the securities. At September 30, 
2015, the County's CMO portfolio had an effective duration of 1.82 years. 

Variable Rate Coupon Notes and Bonds. Included in the County's Retirement System investment 
portfolio are variable rate coupon instruments with a market value of $15,582,961 as of September 
30, 2015. Such investments include U.S. government-issued securities and corporate-issued 
securities. The variable rate securities have maturities through the year 2044 and are backed by 
investments in various assets, including mortgages. 

Interest Rate Risk - Variable Rate Coupon Notes and Bonds. The market value of these 
investments may be innuenced by, among other factors, changes in interest rates which affect their 
marketability. At September 30, 2015, the Retirement System was holding variable rate instruments 
that arc reset against the LIBOR (London Interbank Offering Rate) with a plus factor. The coupons 
had short reset points ranging from twice a year, quarterly and monthly. The shorter the reset point, 
the less sensitive the investment is to interest rate changes. 

4. Property Taxes- Receivables and Short-term Debt 

Receivables - Prior to 2004, taxes were levied on December I on the taxable value of real and 
personal property as established the preceding December 31. Taxes became a lien on the property 
on December I and were due and payable on that date through February 28 of the following year, 
after which unpaid taxes became delinquent and subject to penalty. Michigan Public Act 357 of 
2004 required a gradual shift over a three-year period, of county property tax levies from winter to 
summer as a substitute to county revenue sharing from the State. The entire County Operating Tax 
is levied on July I each year beginning in 2007; however, the date for delinquencies did not change 
with the shift in levy dates. Taxable value is determined by using such factors as State equalized, 
assessed, and capped values, along with a value change multiplier. Equalized values for the 20 IS 
summer levy amounted to $60,806,103,774 with taxable values of$51,895,341,437. The operating 
tax rate for the 20 I 5 levy was 4.09 mills, with an additional 0.2410 mills voted for Parks and 
Recreation (winter levy only). The amount unpaid at liscal year-end is reported as current property 
taxes receivable in the County's General Fund. These receivables (current and delinquent) for the 
County operating tax levy amounted to $17,084,104 at September 30, 2015. 

Short-term Debt - By agreement with various taxing authorities, the County purchases (at face 
value) real property taxes for all municipalities and school districts within Oakland County which 
are returned delinquent on March I. To accomplish this, tax notes are sold and the proceeds of 
these notes arc used to liquidate the amounts due the County's General Fund and other 
governmental agencies for purchase of their delinquent real property tax receivables. The assets of 
the Delinquent Tax Revolving fund (an Enterprise fund), in the amount of $228,346,445 at 
September 30, 2015, arc pledged as collateral for payment of the tax notes; subsequent collections 
on delinquent taxes receivable, plus interest, penalties and collection fees thereon, and investment 
earnings arc used to service the debt. 
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The following is a summary of the short-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2015: 

Beginning 
balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
balance 

Due within 
one year 

$ 12,625,000 $ 25,000,000 $ ( 12,625,000) $ 25,000,000 $ 25,000,000 

5. Allowances for Uncollectible Receivables 

At September 30, 2015, the allowances for uncollectible receivables were as follows: 

Gcncr.al Fund 

Capital Projects 
Drains-Act 40 Maintenance Chapters 4 & 18 

Entc rprisc Funds 
Water & Sewer Trust 

$ 25,000 

6,972 

215,310 

Total $ 247,282 

In addition, the Parks and Recreation fund (Enterprise) records an allowance for uncollectible taxes 
receivable in the amount of$36,301 at September 30,2015. 

6. Investment Income- Pension and Other Postemploymcnt Trust Funds 

The following is a breakdown of the investment income for Pension and Other Postemployment 
Trust funds of the primary government for the year ended September 30, 2015: 

Fmployees' VEBA Superseding 
Retirement Trust Trust 

Interest and dividends $ 12,833,745 $ 17,332,682 s 125,702 
Unrcalii'Cd/Rcalizcd loss 

on investments (5,471,303) (I 0, 703,873) (543,859) 

Total $ 7,362,442 $ 6,628,809 $ (418,157) 
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7. Capital Assets 

An analysis of property and equipment as reported in the Statement ofNet Position, and related 
accumulated depreciation, at September 30, 20 15, for governmental activities follows: 

Gowrnmcntul Activities 
Cop ita! a.~scts not being d•:prccintcd 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being 
d1:preciatcd 

Capital assets bcingd .. :pn:ciatcd 
Land improv~:ments 
Duilding-; and improvements 
Equipment and vehicles 
lnfra.~tructurc 

Total capitol assets being 
d ... "P n:cim ed 

Less: Accumulated depn:ciat ion 
Land improv ... -mcnts 
Duildings and improvements 
Equipment and vchich:s 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Dlllllncc 
October I, 

2014 

s 7,365,551 
25,770. 129 

33.135,680 

1,250,633 
236,327,098 
111.495,875 
30,388,996 

379,462.602 

1,066,497 
I 05,834, 160 
90,373,398 
17,073,560 

214.347.615 

165.114,987 
s 198.250.667 

Depreciation expense wa.~ charged to functions a~ follows: 
Public safety 
Justice administration 
Cit izcns services 
Public infra.~tructure 
Commerce and Community Development 
Unallocat ... 'tl dcpr ... -ciation 
Capital a.~sets held by the gowmmL-nt's int ... mal s~:rvice 
funds arc charged to the various functions ba.~cd on 
their usage of the a.~scts 

Total depreciation expense- governmental 
activiti ... -s 

9 1 

Additions 

s 
15.254,238 

15.254.238 

16,561,454 
12,595,796 

292,425 

29.449,675 

24,226 
5,609,082 
7,285,749 

770.213 
13.689.270 

15.760,405 
$31.014.643 

s 3,057,326 
1,102,458 

639,555 
540,870 

29,535 
3.164, 143 

5.155.383 

s 13.689.270 

Disposuls Dlllnncc 
and September 30, 

Adjustments 2015 

s $ 7,365,551 
(26, 123,299) 14,901 .068 

(26.123.299) 22.266.619 

1,250,633 
(2,884,335) 250,004,217 
{2.609,195) 121,482.476 

30.681,421 

{5.493,530) 403.418.747 

1,090,723 
(2,783,982} 108,659,260 
(3,064,431) 94,594,716 

17,843.773 
(5.848.413) 222.188.4 72 

354,883 181.230.275 
s (25. 768.416) s 203,496.894 
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A summary of business-type property and equipment at September 30, 20 I 5 follows: 

BAlance 
October I, 

lOU 

nuslness-tylle ,\ctivllles 
Capitol assets not being depreciated 

Land s 68,158,860 

Construction in pro~ess 38,208, 179 

Other 12.000 

Total cupitul ussets not bemg 
depreciated 106.379,039 

Capital assets being depn:ciated 

Lund improvements 35,229,023 

Buildings nnd improvements 94 ,777,226 

Equipment and vehicles 93 ,407,687 

Infrastructure 327.974,620 

T otai capitnl nssets being 
depreciated ss 1,388.556 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Land improvements 25.283.496 

Buildings and improvements 35,209,524 

Equipment and vehicles 68,537,385 

In frast r uct urc 237.472.364 

Total accumulated depreciation 366.502.769 

Total capital asset s being 

depreciated. net 184.885,787 

Business-type activities cupital 
USSetS, net s 291.264,826 

Depreeint ion expense \\liS clu~rgcd to functions as follO\\S 

Airport s 

Com munity safety support 

Community \\Uter and sc\\\:r 

Recrcut ion und leisure 

Sc\\;age disposal systems 

Total depreciation ex pense - business-type 
activities 

II Beginning balance adjusted per restatement. Sec note 11 20 
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II 

Additions 

s 
33,575,452 

33,575.452 

594,601 

4,039,60 1 

2,518,927 

12,940,432 

20,093.561 

1,412,084 

3,282,31!7 

7,579,04 I 

7,541 ,994 

19,815,506 

278,055 

s 33.853.507 

s 2,718,781 

8,638,636 

2,822,614 

3 ,331,106 

2,304,369 

s 19,815,506 

DISJlOSIIIS 

11nd 
Adjustments 

s 
( 18,836, 134) 

( 18,836,134) 

(6,032,896) 

(6.032,896) 

(5 , 744,024) 

(5.744,024 ) 

(288,872) 

s ( 19, 125,006) 

O~tlance 

September JO, 
1015 

s 68,158,860 

52,947,497 

12,000 

121.118,357 

35,823,624 

98,816,827 

89,893,718 

340.915,052 

565.449,221 

26,695,580 

38,491,911 

70,372,402 

245.014,358 

380,574.25 I 

184,874,970 

s 305.993,327 
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An analysis of property and equipment, and related accumulated depreciation where applicable, at 
September 30, 20 I 5, for component units follows: 

Duhance Disposals Dalunce 
October I, and September 30, 

20!-4 Additions Ad jus tme nts 20t5 
Componenl Units 
Drain11ge Dislricts 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Construction in progress s I 17,174,658 s 47,321.337 s (68,529) s 164,427,466 
Land 325,96-t 325.964 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 117.500,622 47.321.337 (68.529) 164,753.430 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings 57,248,656 57,248,656 
Equipment 71,063 302.494 373,557 
Infrastructure 495.1 10,960 II 68,529 495,179,489 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 552,430,679 371.023 552,801,702 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 2,981,700 1,526,631 4,508,331 
Equipment 11,436 27.102 38,538 
Infrastructure 94,484,966 5.042.395 99,527.361 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 97,478.102 6.5%.128 104,074.230 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 454.952.577 ( 6.225. I 05) 448,727,472 

Governmental activity capital assets, net s 572.453,199 s 41 .096.232 s (68,529) s 6 I 3.480,902 

l{oad Commission 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land and other s 190,542,674 s 5,562,069 s s 196,104,743 
Construction in progress 1.400,610 408.245 (1.2 I 8,979} 589,876 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 191,943.284 5.970.314 (I .218.979) 196,694,619 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and storage bins 20,192,210 190,999 (2,913) 20,380,296 
Road equipment 52,426,179 3,843,925 ( 2.256,557) 54,013,547 
Other equipment 5,073,986 175,549 (3,140) 5.246,395 
Infrastructure 948,292,692 65,016,781 (I 7,525,4 I 9) 995,784,054 
Brine wells and gravel pits 1.461,628 1.027,980 2,489,608 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 1.027.446.695 70.255.134 (I 9,788,019) 1.077.913.900 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
lluildings and storage bins I 1,549,785 577,611 12,127,406 
Road equipment 47,286,461 2.298,919 ( 2,25 5,59 I ) 47,329,789 
Other equipment 4,790,925 93,074 (3,140) 4,880,859 
I nfrastructurc 389,763.992 40.254.833 ( 17.525,4 I 9) 412,493,406 
Brilc wells and gravel pits 1.391.522 19.402 1.410.924 

Total accumubted 
depreciation 454,782.685 43.243.849 ( 19.784,150) 478.242,384 
Total capital assets being 
depreducd net 572.664.010 27.011385 (3.879) 599.671.516 

Governrncntal ncti\ ity capital assets, net s 76-1,607.294 s 32.981,699 s ( 1.222.858) s 796.366,135 

# Beginning balance adjusted per restatement. Sec note 1120. 
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·n1e Coumy issu.:s bonds und notes authon.r.ed by various State nets. Each act provides specific covenants for specilic purposes 

l'rimury C.o,c-rnme•u 

('"f(t\Crnmcutal nethides 

lntrre11 ..... ~ 
Drl.tt ~ith tim6tt>d un.ht& authoricy 
Uutldmstaulhoruv- t\c:tll 2 00~ .,.4 7!5~&. 
lluJ1dlnUDt.Uhonlv r~fundini! l OO~ir-!5 oo~· 
Rc11ra.-s Jfc:alch CAre: Oonds J 6l~lr-4 S2~ &. 
\ \"a1 Cf SUPPI't' • t\C1 ) .J2 l O~i.-6 00~· 
\ \"At c."f and s~cr rcfundinst bonds I . S~P2.7S~t. 
Scwo1e dtlPOsal refundmat bonds l2S~P3 ~• 
~ttc-hwan U.ond ,\u.thontv • 
Sc.."WDI%' J)uposD.I Oonds I. 6l~ r2 so~. 

Total bonds· t"\'Cf"nlfla1tDI octhUin 

Uusincss•I)'JW ""tl'i1i('s 
Uu1ln~u~tyrw Acthitles 
IJ,\ · Act .31 .. Cuuntv ,\tmon 
IJ,\ rcfW1dinJt · Countv t\uuon 
5c.."WRI1! diSIJOSDI • 1\a )42 
~tichu"2fl Uond .t\u1honlv • 
\\'alcr &. .S..""w;u\:' l)isuosal Uonds 

T01al bonds- buslflcu 1ypc 
Tocci bondJ • prunary ~n:nunc:nt 

. ~ .. 5~• 
~ oot'r:2 2s• • 
I 7S• .. 6 7S•• 

2.3o•. N 

Och)W.r 1, 
1014 

s 3~.035.000 
39.270.000 

3SO.OOO.OOO 
24.865.000 

1.605.000 
:290.000 

4.832.1~ 

s 4 .850.000 
3 910.000 
3.645.000 

'"~8 7:11 
21.763.741 

$.177.660.11-15 

s 

2.331.098 

52.331.098 

s 

62:1l11 
694.371 

53.025.469 

RtduC'don• 

S 1'.6H.OOO) 
(4.060.000) 

( 21.410.000) 
(9.0·15.000) 

0911.0110) 
(ISO.OOO) 

!630.000) 
$(41.140.000) 

s 1150.0001 
tJS0.0001 
(145.000) 

£:U"' <Qill 
(1.197.500) 

$(42.337.500) 

1\mo .. nls due 
St'plentWr 30, "hhln Amounts dttl" 

1015 one Yl"•r thc~arccr 

s 29.380.000 
35 210.000 

328.~90.000 
15.1120.000 

1,415.000 
140.000 

6.533.202 

s 417.088.202 

s 4 600.000 
3 560 OliO 
3.500 000 

9~DQ6l" 
21.260.612 

s 438.348.814 

s 2.495.000 
4.185.000 

22.200.000 
78~.000 
210.000 
140.000 

645.000 

$ 30.660.000 

s 250.000 
360.000 
150.000 

2.,n ZDQ 
1.480.200 

s 32.140.200 

s 26 885.000 
31 .025.000 

306.390.000 
1S.OJ$.000 

1.205.000 

S,8K8,20~ 

s 386.428.202 

S 4 350.000 
3.200.000 
3.350.000 

8 880 41" 

19.780.412 

S-106.2011.614 

s 

Ccn~nol 
obl1plloll 

15.875.000 
31.165.000 
328. ~911.000 

s 375.630.0110 

s 4.600000 
3.560.000 
3.500.000 

9Cd)(Hil" 

21.260.612 
$396.890,612 

\\lib 
&6\"C"ntmconhll 
rommitn•cont 

s 13.505.000 
4.o.u.ooo 

15.820.000 
1.41~.0110 

140.000 

6.533,202 

s 4 1.458 202 

s 

s 41.458.202 
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ComJ.,n~l l "nlls 

DralnMJ:l' Districts 

Debt "ith lhnitrd truin.: otUhuril)' 
llrain bonds • Act 40 
()nun rc:rundinc bond a 
~hchi~n Uond Authortty·DrAin Uonds 

Tmnl Oraina!)! Oistrl'"'a 
Total County Ddn 

Road Commission 

CompcnutN Abscncn 
Sclf· in•u•a.l loues 
Othn pOilCtn(llnym'-"fU bmt:fits 
~c:t pauion habihty 
~t1dtit"n Transportotcon 
rund r~n.-nuc no1c:s 

Totul Road Commtuiun 
Toea! rcponUlc('tnny 

lnCC'fC'It 

rRir 

1 . 15~~7 oo~. 

1 .00~ ..... 7'~~-
J J~~--4 lSII!e II 

"* oo•;. 

s 

Octobrr l. 
2014 

71,170,000 
111,275,000 

1511.~00.l9K 

247.645.298 
S 7H,306, 143 

s 2 ,811,150 
1,954,800 

16.463,767 
9,168,707 

1,000.000 
j 1.398.424 

S 7S6.70-U67 

,\~~lelons Rrducdon1 

s 7 215,000 s (3,860 000) 
(3,860000) 

~8 .1163.676 (11.457.500) 
36.098.676 (19.177 ,500) 

$)9,124,145 S!61,51S,000) 

s 207. 100 s 
345,830 (1,054 430 ) 

7,064, 152 
17,JS8,4S5 

3~.CJ7S,SJ7 
!SOO.OOO) 

!I.SS4,430l 
s 6~.09<J.682 s !63.069.4)0) 

Srpte11abrr JO, 
21115 

s 7~.5~5 .000 
1~,415,000 

175,606.H4 
~M.566.474 

s 702,915,288 

s 1,0111250 
1,246 200 

23,sn.919 
26,Sl7.16l 

soo.ooo 
S4.819,S11 

s 757,734.1119 

t\JUOUIItt dUC' 

•illlln 
one Yt'•r 

s 3,665,000 
3 ,07S,OOO 

12,074,1100 
18.814,800 

s 50,955,000 

s 
$12.340 

~.000 
1,0'12,340 

s 52 027 ,3~0 

,\moun Ia due 
therearter 

s 70,880,000 
11,3~0.000 

163,531.674 
245.751.674 

s 651,960,288 

s 3.018,250 
673,860 

23,527,919 
26,527, 162 

n.7~7.19t 

s 705.707.479 

s 

General 
oblia•tlon 

55.223,576 
2,255,189 

17.258.346 
74 737.111 

S471.627,7ll 

s 

S 471 ,627,723 

\\lth 
&o\otntment•l 
commltmrnt 

s 19,321.~24 

12,159,811 
158.348. 121 
189.829.36) 

s 231.287,565 

s 3,018,250 
1,246,200 

23,527,919 
26,527.162 

soo.ooo 
S4,819,SJI 

s 286,107.096 
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The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on debt outstanding at September 30, 2015 (excluding the liabilities for compensated absences, other 
postemployment benefits, pension liabtlity and uninsured loss~-s for the Road Commission component unit) were as follows 

Bond• "ith ltelirecs llealth Core Bonds llusineu-type Bonds 
llmiled llninsauthoritr 

Principal Interest 
limiled tnin& •uthorit~ 

Pri~~eipal lAte rest 
limited tnin& outhoritl 

l'ri11Cip•l Interest 
Totall!rima2: sovemmcnt 
Princip.t Interest 

:!016 s 8,460,000 s 2,722,962 s 22.200,000 s 11,799,138 s 1,4K0,200 s 743,438 s 32,140,200 s 15,265,S38 
2017 9,935,000 2,458,929 23,020,000 10,980,656 1,510,600 709,779 34,465,600 14,149,364 
2018 10,160,000 2,153,506 23,870,000 10,131 ,947 1.345,192 673,443 35,375,192 12,958,896 
2019 9,017,475 1,8-18,494 24,750,000 9.251 ,925 1,311,400 634,050 35,088,875 11 ,734,469 
2020 8,435,000 1.578,207 25,660,000 8,339,504 1,351,800 592,328 35,446,800 10,510,039 
:!021-2025 28,390,000 4,146,349 143,205,000 26,790,450 6,940,800 2,246,500 178,535,800 33,183,299 
2026-2030 9,400,727 1,598,370 65,885,000 2,882,319 6,149,485 936,520 81,435.212 5,417.209 
2031-2035 4,115,000 447,431 1,161 ,135 23,308 5.276,135 470,739 
2036-2040 585,000 51,550 585,000 51.550 
Touts s 88.498.202 s 17.005.798 s 328.590,000 s 80,175,939 s 21.260.612 s 6,559.366 s 438.348,814 s 103,741,103 

Drninosc muriel• Rood Com minion Total rel!ortin& cntill: 
l•rincit•al Interest l'rincip111 Interest l'rindpal Interest 

2016 s 18,814,800 s 7,043,922 s 500,000 s :!0,000 s 51,455,000 s 22.329,460 
2017 17,344,400 6,567,251 51,810,000 20,716,615 
2018 17,28-1,000 6,133,424 52,659,192 19,092.320 
2019 17,538,600 5,701,463 52.627,475 17,435,932 
2020 18,023,200 5.253,981 53,470,000 15,764,020 
2021-:!025 8-1,701 ,876 19,166,649 263,237,676 52,349,948 
:!026-2030 58,795,320 9,275,968 140,230.532 14,693,tn 
2031 -2035 32,064,278 1,798,6)6 37,340,413 2,269,375 
2036-2040 5K5,000 51.550 
Totals s 264.566,474 s 60,941.294 s 500,000 s 20,000 s 703,415.288 s 164,702,397 



County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

The County has pledged its full faith and credit on debt totaling $727,915,288, which includes 
$25,000,000 of short-term notes for the delinquent taxes as described in Note 4. By statute, general 
obligation debt is limited to 10 percent of the state equalized value. As of September 30,2015, the 
debt limit was $6,080,610,377. The County is obligated if payments received on assessments or 
contracts levied against benefiting municipalities arc insufficient to meet principal and interest 
requirements of this debt when due, and is shown in the preceding table as debt "with 
governmental commitment." 

The aforementioned bonds are to be repaid as summarized in the following paragraphs. 

Building Authority- Act 31 
Act 3 I , Michigan Public Acts of I 948, provides for an authority to issue bonds to build and equip 
various public buildings, which arc then leased to the County. Proceeds from these leases are used 
to repay the bonds. The collection of lease payments and retirement of debt is renected in the 
respective Debt Service fund. At September 30, 20 I 5, there were four issues outstanding, totaling 
$29,380,000, maturing in the years 20 I 6-2040, which represents debt originally issued in the years 
20JOP2012 totaling $37,445,000. Subsequent to September 30, 2015, in November 2015, the 
County authorized the issuance of building authority bonds for a new Animal Control Facility in 
the amount of$ I 5,450,000. 

Retirees Health Care Bonds 
In 2007, Taxable Certificates of Participation ("COPS") were issued by the 2007 Oakland County 
Retiree Medical Benefits founding Trust (the " Issuing Trust") which COPS were secured by and to 
be repaid from contract payments made pursuant to a contract entered into by the County of 
Oakland (the "County") under the authority of Michigan Public Act No. I 39 of 1973 in the amount 
of $556,985,000 maturing in the years 2008 through 2027, and funds were placed in trust in the 
2007 Oakland County Intermediate Retiree Medical Benefits Trust (" IRMBT"). The COPS, which 
represent a debt instrument issued in the form of trust certificates, were used to fund current and 
future retiree healthcare costs reported in the VEBA Trust Fund. 

In September 20 I 3, the County issued refunding bonds in the amount of $350,000,000, the 
proceeds of which have enabled the County to fully fund the VEBA Trust fund as of September 
30, 2014. The County thereafter entered into a Superseding Contract with a new, Superseding 
Trust which was created by the County, under which contract the County is now obligated to 
maintain the funding in the VEBA Trust in future years pursuant to the terms of that contract under 
a Superseding Plan which has superseded and supplanted the obligation of the County to maintain 
retiree health services by keeping the VEBA Trust at full funding. This action freed up remaining 
assets in the IRMBT which became "Surplus Intermediate Trust Assets" which the County directed 
to be paid to the Funding Trust for the purpose of redeeming the outstanding callable COPS in the 
amount of $422,135,000 on April I, 2014. As of September 30, 2015, there were two issues 
outstanding totaling $328,590,000 maturing in the years 2016-2027. 
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Sewage Disposal, Water and Sewer, and Water Supply Bonds- Act 342 
Act 342, Michigan Public Acts of 1939 provides for a contract between the County and local 
municipalities which defines a schedule of annual payments to be made by the municipality to meet 
principal and interest obligations. Such contractual payments may be funded by revenue produced 
by utility or tax revenue. The County is obligated upon the default of the local municipality, and 
therefore, such obligation is shown as "with governmental commitment." Assessments are shown 
in their entirety with the corresponding deferred inflows in the Debt Service funds for each act. At 
September 30, 2015, there were five issues outstanding, totaling $15,820,000, maturing in the years 
2016-2034. This represents debt originally issued in the amount of $18,100,000 issued in the years 
1997-2014. 

Refunding Bonds 
Michigan Public Act 202 of 1943 and Act 34 of 200 I provide for the refunding of bonds based on 
covenants contained in the acts. The bonds will be repaid from assessments levied against the 
benefiting municipalities for water and sewer debt, or leases for Building Authority debt. At 
September 30, 2015, there were seven issues outstanding, totaling $36,765,000, maturing in the 
years 2016-2025. This represents debt originally issued in the years 2005-2014 totaling 
$52,525,000. 

Michigan Bond Authority Sewage Disposal Bonds 
In October 1996, the County authorized the issuance of bonds from the Michigan Municipal Bond 
Authority Revolving Loan fund for up to $9,350,000 for the White Lake Township Sewage 
Disposal System project; the entire amount was received as of the end of fiscal year 1999. The 
amount outstanding for this issue at September 30, 2015 was $1,685,000, which matures in the 
years 2016-2018. 

In September 2007, the County authorized the issuance of bonds from the Michigan Municipal 
Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for up to $2,000,000 for the Softwater Lake Capital 
Improvement Sewage Disposal System project. As of September 30, 2010, a final amount of 
$1,935,727 was received from the State Revolving Loan fund. The amount outstanding at 
September 30, 20 15 for this issue is $1, 190,727, which matures in the years 2016-2027. 

In September 2014, the County authorized the issuance of bonds from the Michigan Municipal 
Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for up to $36,855,000 for the Evergreen and Farmington 
Sewage Disposal Systems Middlebelt Transport and Storage Tunnel project. As of September 30, 
2015, $3,657,475 was drawn from the State Revolving Loan fund. The amount outstanding at 
September 30, 2015 for this issue is $3,657,475, which matures in the years 2016-2019. 

Business Type 
In December 2010, the County issued $4,060,000 of sewage disposal bonds for the Evergreen­
Farmington Sewage Disposal System (enterprise fund type). The bonds arc federally taxable 
recovery zone economic development bonds, issued under the authority of Act 34, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 2001. The amount outstanding for this issue at September 30, 2015 was $3,500,000, 
which matures in the years 2016-2031. 
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Two Building Authority bond issues for the County Airport fund consist of the Airport T -Hangar 
Refunding in the amount outstanding as of September 30, 2015 of $3,560,000 maturing in the years 
2016-2024 and the Airport Terminal Building in the amount outstanding as of September 30, 2015 
of $4,600,000 maturing in the years 2016-2030. These represent original debt issued in the amount 
of $4,585,000 in 2012 for the Airport T -1-langar and $5,800,000 in 20 I 0 for the Airport Terminal 
Building. 

In March 2012, the County authorized the issuance of bonds from the Michigan Municipal Bond 
Authority Revolving Loan fund for up to $2,415,000 for the Evergreen-Farmington Sewage 
Disposal System 8 Mile Pumping Station Septage Facility (enterprise fund type); the entire amount 
was received as of the end of fiscal year 2014. The amount outstanding for this issue at September 
30, 20 I 5 was $2,125,000, which matures in the years 2016-2032. 

In August 2012, in conjunction with the transfer of operations of the City of Pontiac water and 
sewer system to the County, the County's Water and Sewer Trust fund assumed the debt 
obligations initiated by the City of Pontiac for five Clean Water/Water Quality projects. The total 
authorized loan amount is $8,845,300; as of September 30, 20 I 5, the amount outstanding was 
$6,866,420. In addition, in October 2014, the County authorized the issuance of bonds from the 
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for City of Pontiac Water Supply 
System Improvements for up to $6,890,000; as of September 30, 20 I 5, $609,192 was drawn from 
the State Revolving Loan fund. Further, in October 2015, the County authorized the issuance of 
two additional bonds from the Michigan Municipal Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for the 
City of Pontiac Water Supply System for one up to $6,850,000 with $1,762,500 principal 
forgiveness and one up to $720,000. The debt obligation recorded as of September 30, 20 I 5 
amounted to $7,475,612, maturing in the years 2016 through 2032. 

Drain Bonds- Act 40 (Component Unit) 
Act 40 provides for the creation of a Drain Board, which has the power to assess state, county, and 
local levels of government for principal and interest payments. Such assessments are to be funded 
from General Fund revenue of the respective municipality. The County portion of the assessment 
is identified as a general obligation. Further, the County is obligated if assessments levied against 
benefiting municipalities are insufficient to meet principal and interest requirements when due. 
Such obligations arc shown as "with governmental commitment." At September 30, 2015, there 
were 14 issues outstanding, totaling $74,545,000, maturing in the years 2016-2034. This 
represents original debt issued for $86,895,000 in the years 1994-2014. 

Drain Refunding Bonds (Component Unit) 
Act 202 of 1943 and Act 34 of 200 I provide for the refunding of bonds based on covenants 
contained in the acts. The County initiates the refunding of various drain bonds issued under Act 
40 on behalf of the drainage district's component unit. Bonds will be repaid from assessments 
levied against the benefiting municipalities. At September 30, 2015, there were nine issues 
outstanding, totaling $I 4,415,000, maturing in the years 2016-2025. This represents debt originally 
issued in the years 2001-2013 in the amount of $36,180,000. 
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Michigan Bond Authority Drain Bonds (Component Unit) 
The County authorized issuance of bonds in the amount of $9,365,000 in 1994 from the Michigan 
Municipal Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for the Combined Sewer Overflow Project. In 
October 2000, the County additionally authorized the issuance of bonds for up to $17,880,000 for 
the George W. Kuhn Drainage District, with the entire amount from the State Revolving Loan 
Fund being received by 2005. Further, in 200 I, the County authorized an additional $82,200,000 
for the George W. Kuhn Drainage District Segment II, with successive authorizations in the years 
2005 through 2008 amounting to $14,240,000. As of September 30, 2014, the drainage district had 
received the entire amount from the State Revolving Loan Fund for Segment II. In February 20 I 0, 
Oakland County, Macomb County, and their underlying municipalities under the authority of 
Chapter 21 of Public Act 40, Public Acts of Michigan of 1956 were permitted to issue bonds in the 
amount of $26,076,000 for the Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drainage District with successive 
authorizations for Segments II, Ill and IV in the years 2012, 2013 and 2015, respectively, 
amounting to $99,160,000. Through September 30, 20 IS, the drainage district received 
$110,090,768 from the State Revolving Loan Fund for the Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drain 
District Segments I, II, Ill and IV. In August 2012, in conjunction with the transfer of operations of 
the City of Pontiac waste water treatment system to the County, the County's Drainage District 
assumed the debt obligations initiated by the City of Pontiac for two Clean Water/Water Quality 
projects. The total authorized loan amount is $13,689, 700; as of September 30, 2015, the amount 
outstanding was $11,502, It 0. In addition, in October 2014, the County authorized issuance of 
bonds from the Michigan Municipal Bond Authority Revolving Loan fund for the Pontiac Waste 
Water Treatment Drain District for up to $9,840,000 with $1,000,000 principal forgiveness. At 
September 30, 2015, there were 15 issues outstanding, totaling $175,606,474, maturing in the years 
2016-2033 . 

Advance and Current Refunding of General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds 
In October 2014, bonds were called as result of resources provided by the Township of Oxford in 
the form of prepaid assessment rolls. Debt amounting to $8,345,000 for the Oxford Township 
Water Supply System, Series 2005 was eliminated and the corresponding special assessment 
receivable is not included in the County's financial statements. 

In March 2015, bonds were called as a result of resources provided by the Community Mental 
Health Authority in the form of prepaid contracts. Debt amounting to $3,210,000 for the 
Community Mental Health Authority, Series 2012 was eliminated and the corresponding receivable 
is not included in the County's financial statements. This defeasance resulted in the elimination of 
debt for fiscal years 2029 through 2032 and a net savings to the Community Mental Health 
Authority of$1,343,734 in interest for fiscal years 2016 through 2032. 

Changes in Other Long-term Liabilities 
Long-term liabilities activity, as reported in and liquidated through the Fringe Benefit Fund and 
Building Liability Insurance Fund, Internal Service funds, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2015 was as follows: 
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Con mme ntul ucth·itits 

Accrued compensated absences 
Claims and judgments 

Accrued unreported health costs 
Accrued workers' compensation 
lluikling und liability insurance 

Net pension liability 

s 

Beginning 

bulunce 

12,315,350 

3,125,090 
12,007,421 
5,777,550 

Addilions 

s 1,421.702 

2,436,606 
1,770,000 

501.269 
12,718.628 

l~eductions 

s (1.231,535) s 

(1,041,6%) 
(3,777,421) 
(I ,725,217) 

Ending 

balance 

12,505,517 

4,520,000 
10.000,000 
4,553,602 

12.718,628 

Due \\ilhin 

one year 

s 1,250,552 

1,506,667 
1,720,203 
1,178,895 

Governmental activity long-term 
liabilities s 33.225.411 s 18,848.205 s (7,775,869) s 44.297,747 s 5,656,317 

9. lntcrfund Balances 

lnterfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Due to/from other funds: 

ltceciwhlc fund 
General 

Non major governmental 

Water & Sewer Trust 

Parks & Recreation 

Nonmajor enterprise 

Internal service 

J,uyuhle fund 
Building Authority Debt Act31 
Nonmajor governmental 

Total 

General 
Evergreen Farmington S.O.S. 
Non major governmental 
S.O.C.S.D.S. 

Total 

Non major governmental 

Internal service 

Non major enterprise 
Internal service 

Total 

Gcner.1l 

Total 

s 912 
4,453.727 

4,454.639 

16,549 
1,960 

993,414 
\,899 

1,013,822 

5.000.000 

3,493 

\,556 
76,968 

78,524 

308 

s 10.550,786 

These balances result from the time difference between the dates that services are provided or 
transfers are authorized, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments between 
funds are made. 
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Receivables and payables between funds of the Primary Government and the Component Units at 
September 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Primary Government 

Due rrom Component Unit 
General 

Nonmajor governmental 

Evergreen Farmington SDS 

Internal Service 

Component Unit 

Due rrom Primary Government 
Drainage Districts 

Road Commission 

Component Unit 

Due to Primary Government 
Drainage Districts 
Road Commission 

Total 

Drainage Districts 
Road Commission 

Total 

Drainage Districts 

Drainage Districts 
Road Commission 

Total 

Total 

Primary Government 

Due to Component Unit 
Water & Sewer Trust 

Internal Service 

Total 

s 143,068 
1,703 

144,771 

473,509 
25 

473,534 

75,575 

75 
26,524 

26.599 

s 720,479 

s 116,445 

495 

$ 116,940 

Advances to/ from other funds (including current and long-term portions) at September 30, 20 IS 
were as follows: 

Rccci vabl e Fund 
Nonmajor governmental 

Delinquent Tax Revolving 

Payable Fund 
Nonmajor governmental 

Internal Service 

Total 

$1,611 ,207 

77,298 

s 1,688,505 

Advances distinguish Jong·term internal borrowings from receivables and payables that arise in 
connection with routine borrowings and short-term loans (due to/due from other funds). 
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lnterfund transfers between the funds within the Primary Government recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements as operating transfers in/out for the year ended September 30, 
20 15 were as follows: 

Trunsfcrs In Trunsfcrs Out Amount 

General Nonmajor governmental s 9,135,463 
Delinquent Tax Revolving 14,832,848 

Total 23,968,311 

Building Authority Act 31 General 2,278,125 
Building Authority Act 31 250 
Nonmajor governmental 3.482,516 

Total 5,760,891 

Nonmajor governmental General 30,689,951 
Nonmajor governmental 2,371,133 
Delinquent Tax Revolving 4,801,650 
Internal Service 186,297 

Total 38,049,031 

Water & Sewer Trust Evergreen Farmington S.O.S. 213,232 
S.O.C.S.D.S. 8,121 
Clinton Oakland S.O.S. 195,063 
Water & Sewer Trust 1,392,167 
Nonmajor enterprise 670 

Total I ,809,253 

Nonmajor enterprise General 2,350,697 
Nonmajor governmental 27,081 
Nonmajor enterprise 200,000 

Total 2,577,778 

Internal Service General 9,464,275 
Nonmajor governmental 67,055 
Parks & Recreation 208,852 
SOCSDS 25,756 
Evergreen Farmington SDS 40,950 
Water & Sewer Trust 85,120 
Clinton Oakland SDS 33,971 
Nonmajor enterprise 289,384 
Internal service 152,140 

Total 10,367,503 

Total transfers s 82,532.767 

The transfers to and from the various funds arc made to account for budgetary authorizations 
and/or providing funding for operations as needed . 
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10. Fund Equities 

At September 30, 2015, a deficit existed in the following funds : 

Capital Projects Funds 

Lake Levels Act 146 
Drain Chapter 4 Construction 

$ 162,619 
863,079 

In the Capital Projects fund, the negative unassigned fund balance in the Lake Levels Act 146 
primarily reflects costs that are related to the Bush Lake Level project in the amount of $126,869 
and the Upper Straits Lake Level Dam Reconstruction project in the amount of $41,978. The Bush 
Lake Level is construction of a new lake level control structure which has been completed and a 
long-term special assessment for the project commenced in FY 20 I I. In 20 I 0, the Oakland County 
Board of Commissioners authorized a loan in the amount of $300,000 from the County's Long 
Term Revolving rund to the Bush Lake Special Assessment District to be collected in I 0-annual 
installments. The long-term receivable is now on the balance sheet to track the collection of the 
Long Term Special Assessment. Collection of the annual special assessment has reduced the 
deficit by $28,005 from the FY 20 I 4 deficit of $154,875 to the FY 20 IS deficit of $126,870. The 
Upper Straits Lake Dam Replacement project consists of replacing an existing lake level control 
structure in West Bloomfield Township, Oakland County, Michigan and is currently in the design 
phase. When the design phase is completed, the estimated project cost will be determined. It is 
planned that the project will be financed with a loan from the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioner' s Long Term Revolving Fund. The loan will be repaid by an assessment to the 
Upper Straits Lake Level Special Assessment District over a proposed I 0-year period. The Special 
Assessment District must be updated, prior to requesting the loan. Updating the district requires 
Circuit Court action and therefore, the project schedule is directly affected by the Court schedule. 
There have been some delays on the project and related court proceedings due to critical 
infrastructure improvements needed for other systems under the responsibility of the Oakland 
County Water Resources Commission's office. Delays in receiving the court judgment on the 
district update will impact the timing of receiving loan money and approval of the special 
assessment. 

In the Capital Projects fund, the negative unassigned fund balance in the Drain Chapter 4 
Construction Fund reflects costs that are related to the Lower Pettibone Lake Sanitary Chapter 4 
Drain Construction project in the amount of $863,079. A loan from the Long Term Revolving 
Fund was approved by the Oakland County Board of Commissioners via Miscellaneous Resolution 
#14136 adopted June I I , 2014 to provide up to $1 ,200,000 in funding for this project. A 20-year 
assessment against each of the benefiting properties in the District has been approved to repay the 
loan with the first payment due in December 2014. The Construction of the sewer was completed 
and became operational as of January 2015 and the deficit for this specific project will be 
eliminated when the long-term assessment roll collection is completed. 
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Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances of the primary 
government at September 30,2015 were as follows: 

S~nclllbh: 

~onspendAbl~ R~slric:l~d CommiU~d ,\ssl~tn~d UnAsslj!n~d 

Primnry Gon:rnm~nl 
G~nrn1l Fund 
Prep aids s 349,122 s s s s 
lnv;:ntories 141,377 
Property Tux Forfeiture 15,190,71!6 
Future operating requirements 2016 126,023,058 

and beyond 
Future Technology R~-plucement 18,500,000 
Financial System Updates 10,000,000 
llomclund Security Enhancements 8,904,249 
Property Tu.'( Forfeiture Activities 8,806,624 
Animnl Control Debt Scrv YI-Y7 7,000,000 
IIR Camp/Workforce l>lunning 5,600,000 
1-lculth Cure Impact 5,000,000 
Cupitnl Reserve 5,000,000 
Emergency Snluries 5,000,000 
Future Heudk-c Rollback 5,000,000 
Catastrophic Claims 5,000,000 
Unfunded Mandates 5,000,000 
Tri-Purty Supplemental 3,909,236 
Operationnl Improvements 3,000,000 
DB Pension Contribution 3,000,000 
D utn Privacy and Security 3,000,000 
Curry fonvards 2,333,884 
Pnndemie Response 2,200,000 
13uildang Security Cruneras nnd Consoles 2.042,986 
Business Continuity 1,000,000 
WRC Long-Term Revolving Fund 1,000,000 
Sheriff Avintron 877,055 
M I SCAO Interpreter Costs 750,000 

Fedcrnl Rcgulutory Chan!!'.'S 750,000 
Oourd of Commissioners J>rojccts 635,000 
Jail Alternative Prg Sturtup 600,000 

Tu.x Tribunal Appeals Consultants 500,000 
New Grant Match Opportunitk.'S 500,000 

II uman Resources Legal 500,000 

Quality of Lrfc Initiatives 480,000 
Community Partnerships 238,654 
Microloun 200,000 

Buy Local 150,000 

Department Operations 129,105 
Jail Commissary 123,539 

Rx Discount Curd l>rogram 23,787 
Unassigned 1,745,931 

Totul s 490,499 s 15,190,786 s s 242,777,177 s 1,745,931 
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S[!cndnblc 
Nonspcndablc l~estrictcd Committed Assigned Unassigned 

J•rimnry Government 
Spccinll~cvcnuc Funds 

Grants (Deficit) s s s s s (3,054,397) 
SpecifiC programs 18,395,160 

Total s $ 18.395.160 s s s ( 3,054,397) 

Debt Scn·icc Funds 
Debt scrvicc•gcnerul obligations s $ 899.136 $ s s 
Cupital Projects Funds 

Long·lcrm rccc ivabk:s s 1,176,207 s s s s 
Work projects 27,813,859 ( 1,025.698) 

Total $ I .176,207 s s 27,813.859 s s ( 1,025,698) 

11. Employee Benefits 

Primary Government 
The County provides various benefits to its employees. Expenditures in 2015 for these benefits 
totaled the following: medical insurance, $37,787,014; dental insurance, $3,061,895; optical 
insurance, $274,31 0; disability, $2,7 I 8,860; tuition reimbursement, $265, 172; Social Security, 
$15 ,401 ,174; workers' compensation, $1 ,720,203; and unemployment claims, $333,309. 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 
The Oakland County Public Employers' Retirement System (PERS) is a single-employer defined 
benefit pension plan, covering all eligible employees. The plan provides retirement, disability, and 
death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The plan is administered by the Oakland 
County Retirement and Deferred Compensation Board. 

Management of PERS is vested with the Retirement and Deferred Compensation Board, which 
consists of nine voting members comprised of the following individuals: 

• Oakland County Board of Commissioners chairperson or designee. 
• BOC Finance Committee chairperson or designee. 
• County Treasurer or designee. 
• County Executive or designee. 
• Three (3) elected employee members. 
• One (I) elected retiree member. 
• One (I) citizen member appointed by the Board and confirmed by 

the Oakland County Board of Commissioners. 
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Plan Membership 
The County PERS covers the majority of full-time employees of the County hired prior to July I, 
1994. The plan's membership consists of the following at September 30, 2015, the date of the 
latest actuarial valuation: 

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 
Terminated plan members entitled to, but 

not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

1,975 

113 
403 

2,491 

The County established a defined contribution plan for County employees, and all new employees 
and eligible part-time employees hired on or after July I, 1994 are covered by the defined 
contribution plan, as the County's PERS is no longer available to new employees. 

Benefits 
Members of both plans may retire at age 55 (except Sherifrs deputies, who may retire with 25 
years of service regardless of age), with 25 years of service, or at age 60 with eight years of 
service. Members vest after eight years of service. 

Eligible employees under the County plan are provided benefits based on 2%, 2 .2% for years in 
excess of 14 years (Shcrifrs deputies, 2.2% for the first 14 years of service, and 2 .5% for 
thereafter, command officers 2.5%) of the final average compensation times the number of years of 
credited service. Maximum County retirement is 75% of final average compensation, defined as 
the average of the highest five consecutive years during the last I 0 years. 

Duty disability benefits provided by the County arc computed as a regular retirement, with 
additional service credited until anainmcnt of age 60, less an amount offset by workers' 
compensation payments, with a maximum payment of 75% of final average compensation. Non­
duty disability benefits after 10 years of service arc computed as a regular retirement. Death 
benefits arc provided to beneficiaries after I 0 years of service, based on years of service. 

Funding Policy/Contributions 
The County policy is to fund normal costs of the plan by contributions which are based on 
actuarially determined rates, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, and which are 
sufficient to accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. For fiscal year 2015, the annual 
contribution was $4,554,832 which was determined through actuarial valuations performed at 
September 30, 2013. 

Sherifrs deputies contribute at a rate of 3 percent of their annual pay for the first 14 years of 
service and 5 percent thereafter. Command officers contribute 5 percent. General County 
Option A members who have elected improved benefits contribute I percent of their pay after 14 
years of service. Contributions received from these employees for the years ended September 30, 
20 IS and September 30, 2014 amounted to $473,247 and $560,091, respectively. 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the County arc established and may be 
amended by the Board of Commissioners in accordance with County policies, union contracts, and 
plan provisions. All administrative costs of the plan are financed directly by Oakland County. 
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Investment Policy 
The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be 
amended by the PERS Board by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the PERS Board 
to pursue an investment strategy that is in compliance with Michigan Public Act 314 of 1965 and 
manages risks through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of 
distinct asset classes. The following was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of July I, 
2012. 

Rate of Return 

Asset Class 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Equity 
Non U.S. Equity 
Hedged Equity 
Fixed Income 
Real Estate 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

0.0% 
40.0% 
10.0% 
5.0% 

40.0% 
5.0% 

100.0% 

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the annual money weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was .35 percent. The money-weighted rate of 
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested. 

Fund Balance Reserved for Employees' Pension Benefits 
Fund balances reserved for employees' pension benefits include legally required reserves. Fund 
balance as of September 30, 20 I 5 consists of the following reserves: 

Annuity reserve 
Pension reserve 
Pension accumulated reserve 

Total fund balance 

$ 5,382,036 
186,097,015 
554, 180,778 

$ 745,659,829 

Annuity reserve represents the cumulative contribution for retirees, disabled members, or surviving 
spouses who have elected monthly annuity benefits. Pension reserve represents the funded pension 
benefits available for retired lives and is funded by actuarially determined transfers from the 
pension accumulated reserve. Pension accumulated reserve represents the accumulated reserve for 
pension payable by the County. 
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Since the County docs not issue a stand-alone report for its County PERS, following are condensed 
financial statements for the period as of and including September 30, 20 I 5: 

Cash and in..estments 
Other assets 

Total assets 
Liabilities 
Net position 

Statement of Net Position 

Statement ofChunges in Net Position 

Additions: 
Contributions 
ln..estment income 
Other rewnuc 

Total additions 
Deductions: 

Benefit payments 
Other expenses 

Total deductions 
Change in net position 

Net position held in trust, beginning of year 
Net position held in trust, end of year 

Basis of Accounting 

s 744,017,654 
2,213,903 

746,231,557 
571,728 

$ 745,659,829 

s 5,028,079 
7,362,442 

149,367 
12.539,888 

52,066,966 
2,709,173 

54,776,139 
( 42,236,251) 
787,896,080 

s 745,659,829 

The County's financial statements arc prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member 
contributions arc recognized in the period in which contributions arc due. Employer contributions 
arc recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide 
contributions. Benefits and refunds arc recognized when due and payable, in accordance with the 
terms of the plan. 

Method Used to Value Investments 
Investments arc reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are 
valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. The fair value of real estate 
investments is based on independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established 
market arc reported at an estimated fair value or amortized cost. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
The annual required contribution was determined as part of the actuarial valuation as of September 
30, 2013, using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used include 
(a) 7.25 investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5 to 10.5 percent per year and 
(c) 1.5 percent per year cost of living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component 
of 4.5 percent. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the 
effects of short-term volatility over a five-year period. 

The aggregate accrual cost method does not produce an actuarial accrued liability. The entry age 
actuarial cost method is used to develop the actuarial liability and the associated values shown 
above in compliance with GASB Statement No. 50. In addition, the aggregate method does not 
formally recognize an amortization period for the overfunded AAL. 

Net Pension Liability 
The County has chosen to use September 30, 2015 as its measurement date for the net pension 
liability. The September 30, 2015 reported net pension liability was determined using a measure of 
the total pension liability and the pension plan net position as of September 30, 2015. The 
September 30, 2015 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as 
of September 30, 2014, which used updated procedures to roll forward the estimated liability to 
September 30, 2015. 

The components of the net pension liability of the County at September 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Total pension liability 
Plan fiduciary net position 
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

$ 758,378,456 
(745.659.828) 

$ 12,718.628 

98.32% 

The net pension liability of $12,718,628 has been recorded in the Fringe Benefit Fund, an internal 
service fund that is used to account for the County's employee fringe benefits. 
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Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

lncrcnsc/(Dccrease) 
Totnl Pension Net Pension 

Unbili~ Plnn Net Position Unbili!l;: 
Bulunces nt 9/30/2014 s 724,043,780 s 787,896,080 s (63,852,300) 
Chnnges for the yenr: 

Service cost 3,705,776 3,705,776 
Interest 50,740,081 50,740,081 
Dincrence between expected 

and actual experience 2,621 ,256 2,621 ,256 
Assumption changes 29,334,529 29,334,529 
Contributions • employer 4,554,832 (4,554,832) 
Contributions • member 473,247 (473,247) 
Net investment income 5,099,460 (5,099,460) 
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of member contributions (52,066,966) (52,066,966) 
Administrative expenses (296,825) 296,825 

Net changes 34,334,676 (42,236,252) 76,570,928 
Bnlnnccs ut 9/30/2015 $ 758,378,456 $ 745,659,828 $ 12,718,628 

Assumptions changes. For the calculation of net pension liability as of September 30, 20 I 5, the 
mortality table used was updated to the RP-20 14 Health Annuitant Mortality Table, projected to 
2021 using a static projection based on the 2 dimensional MP-20 14 improvement scales. The wage 
inflation percentage was also updated to 3.25 percent. Additionally, the actuarial cost method was 
changed to the individual entry age method. 

Pension Expense and Deferred OutOows of Resources and Deferred lnOows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the County recognized pension expense of $36,325,259. At 
September 30, 20 15 the County reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the 
follow sources: 

Net dillcrence between projected and actual 

earnings on pens ion plan investments 

Total 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Net Deferred 
Fiscal Yeur Ending OutRows of 

September 30 Resources 
2016 $ 10,061,417 
2017 10,061,417 
2018 10,061,417 
2019 10,061,418 

Total s 40,245 ,669 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2014, 
which used update procedures to roll forward the estimated liability to September 30, 2015. The 
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0% 
3.25 - 9.25% average, including inflation 

and step increases 
7.25% net of pension investment 

expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-20 14 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected to 2021 
using a static projection based on the 2-dimensional MP-2014 improvement scales. 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at 
the current contribution rate and that County contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

Projected Cnsh Flows 
Based on those assumptions. the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long-term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was determined using a building­
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges arc combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the plan's trustees after 
considering input from the plan's investment consultant(s). For each major asset class that is 
included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30,20\4, these best estimates 
are summarized in the following table. 
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Asset Class 
Core Bonds 
Core Plus 
Global Bonds 
U.S. Large Cap Equity 
U.S. Mid Cap Equity 
U.S. Small Cap Equity 
International Developed Equity 
Emerging Market Equity 
Long/Short Equity 
Core Real Estate 
Opportunistic Real Estate 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

2.80% 
3.07% 
2.63% 
7.800/o 
8.47% 
9.09% 
8.79% 
10.14% 
7.64% 
5.51% 
8.800/o 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following table presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated using a discount rate of 
7.25%, as well as what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percent lower and one percent higher. 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

1% 
Decrease 
6.25% 

$ 89,410,684 

Current Single 
Discount Rate 

7.25% 
$ 12,718,628 

1% 
Increase 
8.25% 

$ (53,561 ,279) 

The Road Commission for Oakland County Retirement System board of trustees administers the 
Road Commission for Oakland County Retirement System - a single-employer defined benefit 
pension plan that provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all eligible general 
employees of the Retirement System. Benefit terms have been established by contractual 
agreements between the Retirement System and the various employee union representation or other 
actions of the Oakland County Board of Road Commissioners; amendments are subject to the same 
process. The Road Commission's net pension liability as of December 31,2014 was $26,527,162. 
The Road Commission has chosen to use December 31, 2014 as its measurement date for the net 
pension liability. The September 30, 2015 reported net pension liability was determined using a 
measure of the total pension liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2014. The 
December 3 I, 20 I 4 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of 
that date. For the year ended September 30, 2015, the Road Commission recognized pension 
expense of $8,2 I I ,535. At September 30, 2015, the Road Commission reported total deferred 
outflows of resources of$ I 7,222,616. 

13. Defined Contribution Plans 

The County maintains a defined contribution plan, Oakland Performance Retirement System 
(OPRS), which qualifies under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). Employees in the County 
PERS were first afforded the opportunity to transfer to the OPRS through December 31, 1995, 
retroactive to January I, 1995. Employees who elected to transfer to the OPRS had their 
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individually actuarially determined earned retirement benefits in the County PERS, determined as 
of January I, 1995, plus accrued interest at the rate of7.5% from January I, 1995 until the date of 
election to transfer, transferred into the OPRS. Subsequent to 1995, the County reopened the 
opportunity for transfer several times, resulting in an additional I ,477 employees transferred from 
the County PERS to the OPRS. 

The OPRS maintains a schedule of vesting, with the participants becoming fully vested upon 
completion of six years of continuous service. Employees transferring from the County PERS 
were allowed a permanent selection of employee contributions of 0% or 3% of their salary, with 
the employer matching the contribution respectively with 6% or 9% for general employees, or 7% 
or I 0% for employees in certain bargaining units. For employees hired on or after July I , 1994, the 
employer contributes 5% of the employee's salary. Effective December 1999, employees were 
offered an opportunity to increase their contribution with a County match of 2% for new hires and 
I% for all others. In December 2000, the employee and County match were increased I%. All 
employees arc able to contribute up to 10% of their salary on a voluntary after-tax basis. All 
contributions are remitted to a third-party plan administrator. 

Total membership in the OPRS as of September 30, 2015 was 3,009, which includes 408 
employees who elected to transfer from the PERS in 1995 through 2000 and 2,601 current 
employees hired since July I, 1994. 

The County's payroll for employees covered by the OPRS for the year ended September 30, 2015 
was $176,486,083, and the County's total payroll was $220,272,993. The required contributions, 
which matched those actually made, were $6,678,314 by employees and $15,875,209 by the 
County, representing 3.8% and 9.0% of covered payroll, respectively. 

In 2008, the County offered a voluntary defined contribution plan for part-time non-eligible 
employees. The plan qualifies under the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA) and 
IRS Section 3 I 2 I (b) & (F) which allows for a defined contribution plan in lieu of Social Security. 
With the implementation of this plan, the County contributes 1.3% and the employee contributes 
6.2% of their earnings into a defined contribution plan. The employee would be immediately 
I 00% vested in both the employer and employee contributions, but cannot access the money 
invested in the plan until they are separated from County employment. During fiscal year 2015, 
th~ County contributed $198,063 to the plan. 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the County arc established and may be 
amended by the Board of Commissioners in accordance with County policies, union contracts, and 
plan provisions. 

14. Postcmploymcnt Benefits 

Oakland County provides medical care benefit insurance coverage to retired employees or 
survivors of deceased employees who were hired on or before September 20, \985, or hired on or 
after September 21, 1985 and had 15 years of service (for family coverage) or 8 to 14 years of 
service (for retired members only). This single-employer defined benefit plan is administered by 
Oakland County through two funding vehicles: the Oakland County VEBA Trust (the Trust) and 
the Superseding Trust. 
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For employees whose employment ends prior to retirement, the Trust provides benefits to those 
with 15 to 19 years of service (for members only) or 20 years of service (for family coverage). 

In 2015, the County provided 2,263 retirees medical insurance and reimbursed them for Medicare 
premiums under the Trust. In 2015, the County disbursed $30,116,293 for this purpose. 

Postemployment benefits are established and may be amended by the Board of Commissioners in 
accordance with County policies, union contracts, and plan provisions. The plan covers the 
following classes of employees: General, Command Officers, and Deputies. The plan in the 
general class is now closed to new hires. The County has established a "Retirement Health Savings 
Plan" beginning January I, 2007, whereby the general class of employees hired on or after this date 
will no longer receive a defined health insurance benefit, but will receive a cash payment upon 
retirement from which they can purchase their own health insurance. At September 30, 2014, the 
date of the most recent actuarial valuation, membership in the OPEB consisted of 2,324 retirees 
and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits, 2,322 active employees, and 234 terminated 
employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them. 

The annual OPEB costs, the percentage contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB asset for the 
current and two preceding years were as follows: 

Annual OPEB cost (ARC) 
Percentage of ARC contributed 
Net OP EB asset 

Fiscal year ended September 30 
2015 2014 2013 

$ 5,605,849 $ 29,545, 126 $ 28,359,365 
OOAI 0% 

$163,092,632 $168,698,481 
0% 

$198,243,607 

In 2013 , the County contributed an additional $236,000,000 in order to fully fund the VEBA. In 
2015, the annual required contribution (ARC) as determined by the actuary was $818,930 and there 
were no County contributions, given the VEBA was fully funded . 
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The funding progress of the plan as of September 30, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation 
report, is as follows: 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
Vested terminated employees who will be eligible when 

they collect retirement (age 60 in most cases) and 
their beneficiaries 

Active employees and benefteiaries 
Actuarial accrued liability 
Actuarial value of assets 
Unfunded AAL (Overfunded AAL) 

Funded ratio 
Annual covered payroll 
Overfunded AAL as a percentage of payroll 

Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) 
Adjustment to the ARC 
Interest on net OPEB asset 
Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions 
Decrease in net OPEB asset 
OPEB asset p Beginning of year 
OPEB asset- End of year 

$ 463,768,854 

58,886,930 
362,848,645 
885,504,429 

I ,076,904,047 
$ (191,399,618) 

121.6% 
$ 146,473,723 

130.7% 

$ 818,930 
9,629,938 

( 4,843,0 19) 
5,605,849 

5,605,849 
168,698,481 

$ 163,092,632 

The County contributions arc based on a I 0-ycar open amortization of the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liabilities (UAL) for the ovcrfunded divisions and a 20-year closed amortization of the 
UAL for the underfunded division (Command Officers). In addition, the County reports an other 
post-employment benefits asset for the funding provided by the previous sale of certificates of 
participation. The remaining amortization period of this asset as of September 30, 20 IS was 21 
years. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates arc made about the future. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {the plan 
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at 
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the 
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
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In the September 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the 
individual entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.5 
percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which consists of a real rate of 
return of 3.00 percent per year plus a long-term rate of inflation of 4.5 percent per year and an 
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.0 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate 
of 4.5 percent after I 0 years. Both rates included a 4.5 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial 
value of assets is equal to the reported market value of assets at the valuation date. The UAAL for 
the groups was amortized over a I O~year open level dollar method for the overfunded divisions and 
a 20ayear closed level dollar method for the underfunded division (Command Officers). Active 
member payroll was assumed to increase 4.5 percent per year for the purpose of determining the 
level percent contributions. 

The following arc condensed financial statements as of and including September 30, 2015 (the 
OPEB Plan includes the VEBA and Superseding Trusts): 

Statement of Net Position 

Cash and investments 
Other assets 

Total assets 
Liabilities 
Net position 

Statement of Changes in Net Position 

Additions: 
Contributions 
Investment income 
Other revenue 

Total additions 
Deductions: 

Benefits 
Other expenses 

Total deductions 
Change in net position 

Net position held in trust, beginning of year 
Net position held in trust, end of year 

$ 1,081,646,174 
2,874,902 

I ,084,52 I ,076 
2,840,181 

$ I ,081,680,895 

s 111,372 
6,210,652 
2,237,832 
8,559,856 

30,116,293 
3,358,219 

33,474,512 
(24,914,656) 

1,106,595,551 

s 1,081,680,895 

The Road Commission contributes to the Road Commission for Oakland County Retiree Health 
Care Trust (the ··Trust"). The Trust provides for future payment of medical benefits for eligible 
retirees, their spouses and their dependents. The obligation to provide benefits to employees was 
established by negotiation with various collective bargaining units or other actions of the Oakland 
County Board of Road Commissioners. At December 31, 2014, the date of the most recent 
actuarial valuation, membership consisted of 706 retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits, 280 vested active employees, and 62 nonvested active employees. For the year ended 
September 30, 2015. the Road Commission's adjusted annual required contribution to the Trust 
was $12,851,553 with interest of $740,870 on the prior year net OPEB obligation. The Road 
Commission contributed $500,000 to the Trust during the year and paid $6,028,271 directly toward 
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insurance premiums and medical costs for retirees during fiscal year 20 15, leaving a net OPEB 
obligation of$23,527,919 at September 30, 2015. 

15. Deferred Compensation Plan 

In fiscal year 1998, both the County and the Road Commission adopted GASB Statement No. 32, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plans. During fiscal year 1999, as required by the statement, the County and the 
Road Commission each placed all Deferred Compensation Plan assets with a trustee, relinquishing 
all fiduciary accountability for the assets. Accordingly, the related assets and liabilities of the plan 
arc not reported in the County and Road Commission financial statements. 

16. Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, employee injuries, general 
liability claims, and torts, as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The County has 
purchased a commercial property policy for its building and contents, electronic data processing 
equipment, boats and motors, ATYfsnowmobiles, and automobile catastrophe physical damage 
coverage. The policy is subject to a maximum per occurrence catastrophic loss limit of 
$350,000,000. Policy limits (subject to the maximum $350,000,000 per occurrence catastrophic 
loss limit) are: building and contents in the amount of $632,246,617, electronic data processing 
equipment in the amount of $42,301,397, boats and motors in the amount of $569,000, 
ATVfsnowmobilcs in the amount of $66,000, automobile catastrophe physical damage in the 
amount of $2,000,000, flood coverage in the amount of $50,000,000 (subject to limitations in some 
flood zones), earthquake coverage in the amount of $50,000,000, boiler and machinery coverage in 
the amount of $100,000,000, property insurance for helicopter hull physical damage in the amount 
of $2,854,184, and helicopter additional equipment physical damage in the amount of $1 ,218,000. 
Liability insurance has been purchased for: airport operations in the amount of $50,000,000, 
helicopter operations in the amount of $100,000,000, automobile fleet operations in the amount of 
$5,000,000, fiduciary liability in the amount of $25,000,000, employee dishonesty/faithful 
performance in the amount of $3,000,000, travel accident in the amount of $100,000 per 
person/$500,000 aggregate, N.E.T. law enforcement liability in the amount of $5,000,000, 
workers' compensation statutory coverage in excess of $1 ,000,000 for each occurrence, and self­
in~ured retention and employers' liability in the amount of $1,000,000. The County is uninsured 
for all other risks except as noted. The Road Commission has similar risks and is uninsured for 
these claims within certain limits. 

The County and the Road Commission estimate the liability for all the above-mentioned claims 
that have been incurred through September 30, 2015, including both those claims that have been 
reported, as well as those that have not yet been reported, and estimates of both future payments of 
losses and related claim adjustment expenses. Estimated liabilities for unpaid claims are based on 
historical claim payments, including related legal and administrative expenses. 
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The County records estimates in the Fringe Benefits and the Building and Liability Insurance 
funds, both Internal Service funds, and the Road Commission records these estimates in the 
governmental fund type. Changes in the estimated claims liabilities are as follows: 

Primary Government 
Beginning-of-period liability 
Estimated claims incurred, claim adjustment 
expenses and changes in estimates 

Provisions for current-year events 
Decrease in provisions for prior-year events 

Total incurred claims, claim adjustment expenses 
and changes in estimates 

Claim payments and claim adjustment expenses 
Related to current-year events 
Related to prior-year events 

September 30 
2015 2014 

$ 20,910.061 

48,513,809 
831,066 

49,344,875 

$ 20,654,795 

48,485,558 
(882,472) 

47,603,086 

Total claim payments and claim adjustment expenses 
End-of-period liability 

(44,219,801) 
(6,961 ,533) 

(51.181,334) 
$ 19,073,602 

(45,340,199) 
(2,007,621) 

(47,347,820) 
$ 20,910,061 

Road Commission- Component Unit 
Beginning-of-year liability 
Estimated claims incurred and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

End-of-year liability 

17. Leases 

$ 2,854,800 
11,524,812 

(12.233,412) 
$ 2,146,200 

$ 3,346,033 
11,977,100 

(12.468,333) 
$ 2,854.800 

The County (primary government) leases certain office facilities and other equipment under non­
cancelable operating leases. Total costs for such leases for the County for the year ended 
September 30, 2015 were $992,830. The future minimum lease payments as of September 30, 
20 15 arc as follows: 

Primary 
Fiscal year government 
2016 $ 801 ,716 
2017 640,564 
2018 538,888 
2019 482,323 
2020 372,000 
2021-2025 992,000 

Total s 3,827,491 

Additionally, the County leases portions of certain buildings to various governmental agencies. 
The amount received from these leases for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 totaled 
$I 06,708, recorded in the Facilities Maintenance & Operations fund, an internal service fund type. 

The County has also "loaned" its AAA bond rating to assist local communities in the ability to 
finance local projects by pledging full faith and credit on the debt issued through the Oakland 
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County Building Authority. Debt is to be paid from payments from the benefiting community over 
the life of the debt issues, with the structures being collateral. A contract, or lease, receivable with 
a corresponding deferred revenue is shown in the Debt Service Fund financial statements of the 
County. Debt and receivables are reported for a Sherifrs Sub-station in the City of Rochester Hills 
for $5.2 million in 2002, Community Mental Health Authority Housing Project in the amount of 
$5,500,000 in 2007, Keego Harbor City Hall and DPW Building in the amount of $1,120,000 in 
2010, City of Oak Park in the amount of $2,500,000 in 2012, and Community Mental Health 
Authority Project in the amount of $14,500,000 in 2012. The future minimum lease payments to 
be received as of September 30, 2015 arc as follows: 

Primary 

Fiscal year government 

2016 s I ,751,485 
2017 1,734,022 
2018 1,744,773 
2019 1,729,385 
2020 1,613,310 
2021 -2025 6,802,288 
2026-2030 5,078,041 
2031 -2035 1,110,962 
2036-2040 636,550 

$ 22,200,816 

18. Commitments and Contingencies 

The County, the Drainage Districts, and the Road Commission arc involved in legal actions in 
which plaintiffs seek damages of indeterminable amounts which may exceed insurance coverage 
where applicable. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of individual 
matters cannot be predicted. Accordingly, a reasonable range of liability to the County, the 
Drainage Districts, or Road Commission pertaining to these matters cannot be determined. 
Management has taken steps to protect the County and believes any liability resulting from cases in 
which it is involved will not materially affect its financial position. 

The County, the Drainage Districts, and the Road Commission received funds from various federal 
and state units to finance specific activities. The final determination of revenues is subject to the 
acceptance of project costs by the granting agency, usually after a compliance audit. To the extent 
that costs arc disallowed by the granting agency, the County, the Drainage Districts, and Road 
Commission resources would be required to reimburse the grant funds. Management believes that 
disallowed costs, if any, would be immaterial. 

The County has outstanding construction commitments (contracts) under the jurisdiction of the 
Water Resources Commissioner, and has contracts for Act 342 projects at September 30, 2015 as 
follows: Farmington Hills Water System Project with a total cost of $5,195,396 with a remaining 
balance of $360,212; contracts with a cost of $14,434,627 for the Clinton Oakland Sewage 
Disposal System with a remaining balance of $261,425; Walled Lake-Novi Wastewater Treatment 
Plant with a cost of $1,298,000 with a balance of $454,952; Evergreen-Farmington S.D.S -
Middlcbelt Road Tunnel Project contract with a cost of $28,179,499 with a remaining balance of 
$25,298,492 and the Pontiac Water System Water Main Replacement and Improvements contracts 
with a cost of $4,693,085 with a remaining balance of $1,257,710. Building Authority Projects 

120 



County of Oakland 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
September 30, 2015 

have contracts with a cost of $2,704,964 for the Facilities Infrastructure/ Information Technology 
Project with a remaining balance of $51,603. 

The Drainage Districts' component unit has construction contracts for the Bloomfield Township 
CSO project with a total cost of $2,720,377 and a remaining balance of $399, I 09; the Pontiac 
Waste Water Treatment Facility Pump Station Phase II Project has a cost of $7,936,820 with a 
remaining balance of $2,844,726; and contracts for the Oakland Macomb Interceptor Drainage 
District Project with a total cost of$102,246,259, with a remaining balance of$19,729,018 as of 
September 30,2015. 

19. Statement of Net Position- Reconciliation of Internal Balances 

The internal balances amount on the Statement ofNet Position is reconciled as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Governmental Funds 

Due from other funds $ 5,468,461 
Advances receivable 1,611 ,207 
Due to other funds (I 0,464,91 0) 
Advances payable (I ,61 I ,207) 

Internal Service Funds 
Due from other funds 308 
Due to other funds (80,461) 
Current and long-term advances payable (77,298) 

Governmental activities, internal balances $ (5, 153,900) 
Business-Type Activities 
Proprietary Funds 

Due from other funds $ 5,082,017 
Current and long-term advances receivable 77,298 
Due to other funds (5,415) 

Business-type activities, internal balances $ 5,153,900 

20. Accounting and Reporting Change 

In fiscal year 2015, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions, the primary objective of which is to improve accounting and financial 
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. The County elected to record these changes 
in the Fringe Benefits Fund, an Internal Services fund, and for reporting purposes the net position 
of this fund was restated as of September 30, 2014. 

Fund Financial Statements 

lntcrnnl Service Funds 
Net Posit ion at September 30, 20 14 
Adjustment for implementat ion ofGASB 

Statement No. 68 
Net Posit ion at September 30, 20 I 4, as restated 
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Fringe 
Benefits Fund 

s 33,493,389 

63.852.300 
s 97.345,689 

Totals 
September 30, 

2015 

$ 98,755,788 

63 ,852.300 
s 162.608,088 
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This restatement is also reported in the Proprietary Funds Statement of Changes in Net Position -
Governmental Activities - Internal Service funds. 

The Road Commission Component Unit likewise reports a restatement of Net Position due to the 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 as follows: 

Net Position at September 30, 2014 
Adjustment for implemenation ofGASB 

Statement No. 68 
Net Position at September 30, 2014, as restated 

Road 
Commission 

$ 801 ,955,292 

(8,039,777) 
$ 793,915 ,515 

Total 
Component 

Units 

$ 1,319,971,139 

(8,039,777) 
$ 1,311,931 ,362 

In addition, based on an independent engineering study, it was determined that a portion of assets 
and related debt for the City of Pontiac Wastewater Treatment Plant, as previously reported in the 
County's Water & Sewer Trust Fund (Enterprise fund) and the Drainage Districts component unit 
needed to be reallocated at a ratio of 54.0% to Pontiac sewer and 46% to the Chapter 20 Drainage 
District. As a result, the Net Position of the Water & Sewer Trust fund (major fund) and the 
Drainage Districts Component Unit was restated as of September 30, 2014 as follows: 

Proprietary Funds 

Business -Type Activities· Enterprise Funds 
Net Position at September 30, 2014 
Restatement of Debt 
Restatement of Capital Assets 
Net Position at September 30, 2014, as restated 

Comroncnt Units 
Net Position at September 30, 20 14 

Restatement of Debt 
Restatement of Capital Assets 

Net Position at September 30, 2014, as restated 

Water and 
Sewer 
Trust 

s 143,924,759 
12,054,610 

( 11 ,535,709) 
$ 144,443,660 

Drainage 
Districts 

s 518,015,847 

(12,054,610) 
11 ,535 ,709 

s 517,496,946 

Totals 
September 30, 

2015 

$ 701,548,867 
12,054,610 

( 11,535,709) 
$ 702,067,768 

Total 
Component 

Units 

s 1,319,971,139 

(12,054 ,610) 
11 ,535,709 

s 1,319,452,238 

As a result of the preceding changes, the Government-wide Statement of Activities is restated as 
follows: 
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Statement of Activities 
Primnry Government 

Business-
Governmental Type 

Activities Activities Totals 
Component 

Units 

Net Position at September 30,2014 $380,353,437 S 701,548,867 S 1,081,902,304 $1,319,971,139 
Adjustments 63.852.300 518,901 64.371.201 (8.558.678) 
Net Position ill September 30, 2014, 

ilS rcstutcd S 444,205.737 S 702.067.768 S 1,1 46,273,505 S 1.311.412.461 
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PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE PROCEEDINGS 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
DRAIN BONDS, SERIES 2017 

At 11 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time, on the 41
h day of April, 2017, at the office of (i) the 

Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan, Buhl Building, 535 Griswold, Suite 1850, Detroit, 

Michigan, or (ii) Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated, 500 Woodward Avenue, Suite 

3500, Room #3559, Detroit, Michigan, proposals were received for the purchase of the Drain 

Bonds, Series 2017 (the "Bonds") to be issued by the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the 

"Drainage District") as set forth in the Request for Proposal for the Bonds. A summary of 

proposals received is attached to these proceedings. 

Municipal Financial Consultants Incorporated ("MFCI"), the County's financial 

consultant, solicited such proposals from at least twenty-five prospective purchasers and 

circulated the Request for Proposal at least seven days prior to the date hereof. 

On the date hereof, following consideration of the proposals received and a report 

prepared by MFCI, the following order was entered by the Chairperson of the Drainage Board 

for the Dan Devine Drain: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1. The fixing of April 4, 2017 as the date of sale of the Bonds and the form of the 

Request for Proposal for the Bonds are ratified and confirmed. The actions taken by MFCI in 

connection with the distribution ofthe Request for Proposal are ratified and confirmed. 

2. The proposal of CFC Capital, Inc. to purchase the Bonds at par and bearing 

interest per annum as set forth in Section 3 hereof (same being the bid that produces the lowest 



true interest cost to the Drainage District after adding discount or deducting premium) is 

accepted. 

3. The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1,745,000, shall 

be dated the date of delivery, shall mature on April J of each year and shall bear interest, payable 

on October J, 20 J 7, and semiannually thereafter, as follows: 

MATURITY DATE 
APRIL I AMOUNT INTEREST RATE 

2018 $150,000 1.00% 
2019 155,000 1.30% 
2020 160,000 1.55% 
2021 165,000 1.80% 
2022 170,000 2.00% 
2023 175,000 2.15% 
2024 185,000 2.30% 
2025 190,000 2.40% 
2026 195,000 2.50% 
2027 200,000 2.60% 

4. The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

5. In accordance with the designation of the County Treasurer, The Huntington 

National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, is approved as the bond registrar and paying agent for 

the Bonds. 

6. All orders and parts of orders insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

order are hereby rescinded. 

JIM ~SH, Chairperson 
On 1age Board for the Dan Devine Drain 

Dated: April 4, 2017 

BLOOMFIELD 9007-423 1793820v1 



REPORT OF PROPOSALS, RECOMMENDED BOND AWARD 

TO THE 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT, DRAIN BONDS, SERIES 2017 

DATED: APRIL 4, 2017 

PREPARED BY: 

MEREDITH A. SHANLE, PRESIDENT 

MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS INCORPORATED 
500 WOODWARD AVE., SUITE 3500, ROOM #3559 

DETROIT, MI 48226 
(313) 884-1550 



REPORT OF PROPOSALS 

APRIL 4, 2017 



$1,745,000 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT, DRAIN BONDS, SERIES 2017 

Sale Date: April 4 t 2017 Premium: $ 8,725 
Time: 11:00 a.m., EDST Discount: $17,450 
Dated: April 1, 2017 Maximum Interest: 5% 

Maturities - Due April 1 

YEAR 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Proposer: 

2018 1. 00% 
2019 1.30% 
2020 1.55% 
2021 1. 80% 
2022 2.00% 

AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT 
$150,000 2023 $175,000 
155,000 2024 185,000 
160,000 2025 190,000 
165,000 2026 195,000 
170,000 2027 200,000 

CFC Capital, Inc. 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2.15% 
2.30% 
2 . 40% 
2.50% True Int Rate: 
2.60% 

BOND COUNSEL 
DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC 

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 

2.242954% 
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0ICKINSONf"/RIGHTrLLC 

Dan Devine Drain Drainage District 
Oakland County, Michigan 

April 20, 201 7 

500 WOODWARD AV~NU~ , SUITE 4000 

DETROIT, M I 48226·3425 
TELEPHONE (313) 223-3500 
FACSIMILE (844) 670-6009 
http Jl www dicSunsonwrighl com 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Oakland 
County, Michigan (the "Drainage District") in connection with the issuance by the Drainage 
District of its $1,745,000 Drain Bonds, Series 2017, dated the date hereof (the "Bonds"). We 
have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we deem necessary to 
render this opinion. 

As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon certified proceedings 
and other certificates of public officials and others furnished to us without undertaking to verity 
the same by independent investigation. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows: 

1. The Bonds are valid and legally binding obligations ofthe Drainage District payable 
from the collection of the several installments of special assessments against the Charter Township 
of Bloomfield (the "Township") and the County of Oakland (the "County11

) on Special Assessment 
Roll No. 1 for the Dan Devine Drain. 

2. The full faith and credit of the Drainage District and the County have been pledged 
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. 

3. The tax levying officials of the Township and the County are obligated to levy 
sufficient taxes to pay assessment installments and interest as the same become due, unless there 
have been set aside moneys sufficient therefor. In addition, by reason of its pledge of full faith and 
credit as recited in the Bonds, the County is authorized and obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon 
all taxable property within its limits in amounts sufficient to provide funds to advance to the 
Drainage District in the event the Township or the County shall fail or neglect to pay any special 
assessment installment and interest when due. Taxes levied by the Township are subject to 
constitutional, statutory and charter limitations and taxes levied by the County are subject to 
constitutional and statutory tax limitations. 

4. The Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all taxation by the State of 
Michigan or a political subdivision thereof, except estate taxes and taxes on gains realized from 
the sale, payment or other disposition of the Bonds. 

ARIZON,\ I· LORIDA KENTUCKY 
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Dan Devine Drain Drainage District 
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DICKINSON WRIGIIT PL I. C 

5. The interest on the Bonds (a) is excluded from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes and (b) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative 
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; we note, however, that certain 
corporations must take into account interest on the Bonds in determining adjusted current 
earnings for the purpose of computing such alternative minimum tax. The opinion set forth in 
clause (a) above is subject to the condition that the Drainage District comply with all 
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that must be satisfied 
subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or continue to be) 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of 
such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be so included in gross income 
retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Drainage District has covenanted to comply 
with all such requirements. We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences 
arising with respect to the Bonds. 

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or 
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our 
attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur. 

It is understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof 
may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable 
and that their enforcement also may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate 
cases. 

Troy 9007-423 1796176v1 
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NONARBITRAGE AND TAX COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan 

$1,745,000 
Drain Bonds, Series 20 1 7 

Pursuant to Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Treasury Regulations on Income Tax, the 
undersigned hereby certifies with respect to the Drain Bonds, Series 2017, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $1,745,000 (the "Bonds"), issued and delivered by the Dan Devine Drain 
Drainage District, Oakland County, Michigan (the "Issuer"), pursuant to the bond resolution (the 
"Bond Resolution") adopted February 28, 2017, by the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine 
Drain, and an order of the Chairperson of the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain, dated 
April 4, 20 I 7 (the "Sale Order"), that, on the date hereof, the following exist or are reasonably 
expected to occur: 

1. Due lnouirv. The undersigned is the Chairperson of the Drainage Board for the 
Dan Devine Drain and has made due inquiry with respect to and is fully informed as to the 
matters set forth in this Certificate. 

2. Issue Date. The Bonds are being issued and delivered to the original purchaser 
thereof on the date hereof (the "Issue Date"). 

3. Purpose. The Bonds are authorized and issued for the purpose of providing funds 
to be used (i) to defray part of the cost of acquiring and constructing the Dan Devine Drain in the 
County of Oakland, Michigan (the "Project"), and (ii) to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

4. Amount of Proceeds. 

(a) The Issuer expects to receive from the original purchaser of the Bonds the 
sum of$1,745,000, representing the aggregate principal amount ofthe Bonds. 

(b) The amount to be received by the Issuer from the original purchaser of the 
Bonds and the investment earnings thereon will not exceed the amount required for the purposes 
described in paragraph 3 above. 

5. Use of Proceeds. The $1,745,000 amount to be received from the original 
purchaser of the Bonds will be deposited in the Construction Fund for disposition as described in 
paragraph 6 of this Certificate. 

6. Construction Fund. 

(a) The $1,745,000, proceeds of the sale of the Bonds deposited in the 
Construction Fund as described in paragraph 5 above and the investment proceeds thereof will be 
used to pay the costs of the Project and the costs of issuing the Bonds. The investment earnings 
with respect to investments in the Construction Fund that are allocable to proceeds of the sale of 



the Bonds and investment proceeds thereof will be deposited upon receipt in the Construction 
Fund and reinvested until used to pay the foregoing costs. Until expended, the sale and 
investment proceeds of the Bonds in the Construction Fund will be invested without restriction 
as to yield, subject, however, to the applicable requirements of the memorandum attached hereto 
as Exhibit A relating to the rebating of certain excess investment earnings to the United States 
(the "Rebate Memorandum"); provided, however, that any sale or investment proceeds of the 
Bonds remaining in the Construction Fund after the third anniversary of the Issue Date (or with 
respect to investment proceeds only, the first anniversary of the date of receipt, if later) will be 
invested at a yield (computed with regard to any yield reduction payments to the United States 
pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.148-5( c)) not exceeding the yield on the Bonds by more than 0.125 
percentage points 

(b) Within 6 months of the Issue Date, the Issuer will incur a substantial 
binding obligation to a third party to expend at least 5 percent of the net sale proceeds of the 
Bonds on costs of the Project. 

(c) Construction of the Project will commence on or about April 24, 2017, 
and the Project and the allocation of the net sale proceeds of the Bonds to expenditures for costs 
of the Project will proceed with due diligence to completion, which is expected on or about May 
30,2018. 

(d) At least 85 percent of the net sale proceeds of the Bonds will be allocated 
to expenditures for costs of the Project within three years of the Issue Date. 

7. Principal and Interest Fund. Special assessments payments made by the Charter 
Township of Bloomfield and the County of Oakland to the Issuer on Special Assessment Roll 
No. 1 for the Dan Devine Drain will be immediately deposited upon receipt by the Issuer in the 
Principal and Interest Fund and, except to the extent not depleted each year and exceeding a 
reasonable carryover amount as described below increased by the unused minor portion 
described in paragraph 10 of this Certificate, will be invested without restriction as to yield and 
expended within 13 months of the date of deposit to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds; 
provided, however, that any amounts deposited to the Principal and Interest Fund to pay 
principal of the Bonds other than at maturity or to pay redemption premiums on the Bonds will 
be expended within 30 days of the date of such deposit to pay principal of or redemption 
premiums on the Bonds or will be invested at a yield (determined without regard to yield 
reduction payments to the United States pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.148-5( c)) not exceeding the 
yield on the Bonds by more than 0.001 percentage points. Investment earnings on amounts in 
the Principal and Interest Fund will be redeposited thereto and used within 13 months of the date 
of receipt to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds. The Principal and Interest Fund will be 
primarily used to achieve a proper matching of revenues with principal and interest payments on 
the Bonds in each bond year, and will be depleted each year except for a reasonable carryover 
amount not exceeding the greater of (i) the earnings on the Principal and Interest Fund for the 
immediately preceding bond year or (ii) one-twelfth of the principal and interest payments on the 
Bonds for the immediately preceding bond year; provided, however, that the Issuer has 
scheduled the principal and interest payments on the Bonds in such a way as to provide a 
reasonable assurance that the special assessment payments, including any prepayments, and the 
investment earnings on amounts in the Principal and Interest Fund will provide sufficient cash 



flow to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they come due, with the result that the 
carryover amount in certain bond years may exceed the greater of the amounts described in 
clauses (i) and (ii) above. Such excess amounts in the Principal and Interest Fund, if any, to the 
extent exceeding the unused minor portion described in paragraph I 0 of this Certificate, will be 
invested at a yield (determined without regard to yield reduction payments to the United States 
pursuant to Treas. Reg. §1.148-5(c)) not exceeding the yield on the Bonds by more than 0.001 
percentage points. 

8. Yield on the Bonds. The yield on the Bonds is calculated in the manner provided 
in Treas. Reg. § l.l48-4(b) and in reliance on the certificate of CFC Capital, Inc. in the form of 
the attached Exhibit B. The yield on the Bonds, so calculated, as of the Issue Date, is 
2.2429543% per annum. 

9. Replacement Proceeds. 

(a) No funds or accounts other than the Construction Fund and the Principal 
and Interest Fund will be pledged directly or indirectly to pay the principal of or interest on the 
Bonds such that there is a reasonable assurance that amounts deposited therein will be available 
to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds, even if the Issuer encounters financial difficulties. 

(b) The Bonds have a weighted average maturity of 5.718 years, which does 
not exceed 120 percent of the average reasonably expected economic life of the Project, which is 
not less than 25 years. 

(c) The proceeds of the Bonds will not replace any funds of the Issuer 
invested at a yield materially higher than the yield on the Bonds, since no funds of the Issuer 
have been designated for the purposes for which the Bonds are issued such that those amounts 
would have been used for that governmental purpose if the proceeds of the Bonds were not used 
or to be used for that governmental purpose. 

10. Minor Portion. At no time after the Issue Date and prior to the final payment of 
the Bonds will the Issuer or the County of Oakland have on hand in the Construction Fund or in 
the Principal and Interest Fund, or otherwise, an aggregate amount in excess of $87,250 invested 
at a yield materially higher than the yield on the Bonds and comprised of: 

(a) Any proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and investment proceeds thereof in 
the Construction Fund that are not expended within 3 years of the Issue Date (or with respect to 
investment earnings only, within one year of the date of receipt, if later) to pay costs of the 
Project and costs of issuing the Bonds (yield computed with regard to yield reduction payments 
to the United States pursuant to Treas. Reg.§ l.l48-5(c)); 

(b) any amount in the Principal and Interest Fund not expended to pay the 
principal of or interest on the Bonds within 13 months of the date of receipt, and any amount in 
the Principal and Interest Fund longer than 30 days that is not expected to be expended to pay the 
principal of or interest on the Bonds within 13 months of the date of receipt (yield determined 
without regard to yield reduction payments to the United States pursuant to Treas. Reg. 
§ 1.148-S(c)). 
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11. Rebate of Arbitrage Earnings; Election under 2-Year Spending Exception. 

(a) The Rebate Memorandum attached hereto as Exhibit A sets forth the 
procedures for rebating arbitrage earnings on the Bonds to the United States. The Issuer agrees 
to cause such procedures to be followed and such payments to be made on a timely basis 
pursuant to its covenant in Section 18 of the Bond Resolution. 

(b) The Issuer hereby elects, pursuant to Treas. Reg. §1.148-7(f)(2), to apply 
the provisions of Treas. Reg. § 1.148-7( e) through (m) based on actual facts and not on 
reasonable expectations as of the Issue Date. 

12. Additional Tax Compliance Representations. 

(a) No Federally Guaranteed Bonds. The payment of principal or interest 
with respect to the Bonds is not guaranteed in whole or in part by the United States or any 
agency or instrumentality thereof. The Bonds are not issued as part of an issue 5 percent or more 
of the proceeds of which is to be used in making loans the payment of principal or interest with 
respect to which is to be guaranteed in whole or in part by the United States or any agency or 
instrumentality thereof, or invested directly or indirectly in federally insured deposits or 
accounts, other than those proceeds invested during applicable temporary periods or as 
investments in bona fide debt service funds or investments in permissible reserves or in 
obligations issued by the United States Treasury. The payment of principal of or interest on the 
Bonds is not otherwise indirectly guaranteed in whole or in part by the United States or any 
agency or instrumentality thereof within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. 

(b) No Private Activity Bonds. No more than 10 percent of the proceeds of 
the Bonds will be used directly or indirectly in a trade or business carried on by any person other 
than a governmental unit (a "private business use"). No more than 5 percent of the proceeds of 
the Bonds will be used for any private business use that is not related to governmental purposes 
of the Issuer or that, although related to governmental purposes of the Issuer, exceeds the amount 
of Bond proceeds used for governmental purposes of the Issuer other than a related private 
business use. No more than 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly or 
indirectly to make or finance loans to persons other than governmental units or loans for 
purposes other than enabling a borrower to finance any governmental tax or assessment of 
general application for a specific essential governmental function such as the Project. 

(c) Reimbursement Allocations. 

( 1) Except for preliminary expenditures for architectural, 
engineering, soil testing, bond issuance, and similar costs (not including land acquisition costs, 
site preparation costs or similar costs incident to the commencement of the acquisition, 
construction) that were incurred prior to the commencement of construction or rehabilitation of 
the Project and do not exceed 20 percent of the aggregate issue price of the Bonds, no proceeds 
of the Bonds will be allocated to the reimbursement of an expenditure for costs of the Project 
paid more than 60 days prior to July 16, 2013, on which date the Issuer formally declared its 
official intent to finance the Project. Except for preliminary expenditures described in the 
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preceding sentence, no proceeds of the Bond will be allocated to the reimbursement of any 
expenditure paid more than 3 years prior to the date of such reimbursement allocation. 

(2) Within one year after the Issue Date, funds corresponding 
to the proceeds of the Bonds for which a reimbursement allocation is made will not be used in a 
manner that results in the creation of replacement proceeds of the Bonds or another issue. For 
this purpose, replacement proceeds are created if amounts are so allocated to an issue or to the 
governmental purpose of an issue such that those amounts would have been used for that 
governmental purpose if the proceeds of the issue were not used or to be used for that 
governmental purpose. 

(d) No Hedge Bonds. The Issuer reasonably expects that at least 85 percent of 
the spendable proceeds of the Bonds will be used to carry out the governmental purpose of the 
Bonds within the 3-year period beginning on the Issue Date. No more than 50 percent of the 
proceeds of the Bonds will be invested in nonpurpose investments having a substantially 
guaranteed yield for 4 years or more. 

(e) Information Reporting. The IRS Form 8038-G with respect to the Bonds 
is true, accurate and complete. 

(f) Change of Use. Any change of use of the Project will conform with the 
requirements of Treasury Regulation § 1.141-12 and the Rebate Memorandum. 

13. Matters Relating to Certificate. 

(a) To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned, the 
expectations of the Issuer as set forth in this Certificate are reasonable. 

(b) It is intended that this Certificate meet the requirements of Section 148 of 
the Code and Sections 1.148-0 through -11 of the Treasury Regulations on Income Tax, and the 
terms used herein shall be construed consistently therewith. Paragraph 12 addresses additional 
matters under the Code in furtherance of the Issuer's tax compliance covenant in the Bond 
Resolution. 



(c) Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the meanings specified in 
this Certificate or in the Bond Resolution. 

Dated: April20,2017 

BLOOMFIELD 9007-423 1796185v1 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
Oakland County, Michigan 

By: 
ASH, Chairperson 

Dr · age Board for the Dan Devine Drain 
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EXHIBIT A 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Oakland County, Michigan (the "Issuer") 

FROM: Dickinson Wright PLLC ("Bond Counsel") 

RE: $1,745,000 Drain Bonds, Series 2017 (the "Bonds") 

DATE: April 20, 2017 

This Memorandum specifies procedures designed to comply with the provisiOns of 
Section 148(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), relating to the 
rebating of arbitrage earnings to the United States so as to establish and maintain the exclusion of 
the interest on the Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 
Compliance with these procedures by the Issuer is mandated by the Issuer's tax covenants in 
Section 18 of the Bond Resolution. All terms and references from the Issuer's Nonarbitrage and 
Tax Compliance Certificate dated as of even date herewith relating to the Bonds are hereby 
incorporated by reference. 

1. Rebate Requirements. 

An amount equal to the sum of the excess of the aggregate amount earned from the Issue 
Date on all nonpurpose investments to which gross proceeds of the Bonds are allocated as 
described herein over the amount that would have been earned if the yield on such nonpurpose 
investments had been equal to the yield on the Bonds, plus any income attributable to such 
excess, must be calculated as described in Section 4 of this Memorandum, and must be paid to 
the United States as described in Section 4 hereof by the Issuer. Nonpurpose investments for this 
purpose include investments of gross proceeds of the Bonds in the Construction Fund and the 
Principal and Interest Fund. For purposes of this Memorandum, all amounts in the Construction 
Fund and the Principal and Interest Fund are treated as gross proceeds of the bonds. 

2. Exceptions to Rebate Requirements. 

(a) Bona Fide Debt Service Fund. Earnings from the investment of amounts 
in the Principal and Interest Fund are not subject to the rebate requirements of Section 1 of this 
Memorandum, unless such amounts set aside in the Principal and Interest Fund do not satisfy the 
requirements of paragraph 7 of the Nonarbitrage and Tax Compliance Certificate in that Bond 
Year. 



' 

(b) Spending Exceptions. 

(1) 6-Month Exception. The rebate requirements of Section 1 will be 
considered to have been satisfied with respect to the gross proceeds of the Bonds if all gross 
proceeds of the Bonds are allocated to expenditures for the governmental purposes of the Bonds 
within the 6-month period beginning on the Issue Date. The 6-month period is extended for an 
additional 6 months if all gross proceeds are expended within the initial 6-month period except 
for a failure to spend an amount not exceeding 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds. Solely for 
purposes of determining whether all gross proceeds are allocated to expenditures within the 
initial 6-month period (as extended, if applicable), the gross proceeds do not include (i) amounts 
in the Principal and Interest Fund that qualify for the exception described in subparagraph (a) 
above, and (ii) subsequently arising gross proceeds described in Section 3 of this Memorandum 
that arise more than 6 months after the Issue Date. The rebate requirements of Section 1 apply to 
the amounts described in the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii), notwithstanding the 6-month spending 
exception (subject, however, to the other exceptions described in this Section 2). 

(2) 18-Month Exception. The rebate requirements of Section 1 will be 
considered to have been satisfied with respect to the gross proceeds of the Bonds if all gross 
proceeds of the Bonds are allocated to expenditures for the governmental purposes of the Bonds 
in accordance with the following schedule measured from the Issue Date: 

(i) At least 15 percent within 6 months; 

(ii) At least 60 percent within 12 months; and 

(iii) I 00 percent within 18 months, except that a reasonable 
retainage (not to exceed 5 percent of the net sale proceeds of the Bonds) may be allocated to such 
expenditures within 30 months. 

Solely for purposes of determining whether all gross proceeds of the Bonds are allocated to 
expenditures in accordance with the foregoing schedule, the gross proceeds do not include (i) 
amounts in the Principal and Interest Fund that qualify for the exception described in 
subparagraph (a) above and (ii) subsequently arising gross proceeds of the Bonds described in 
Section 3 of this Memorandum that arise more than 18 months after the Issue Date. The rebate 
requirements apply to the amounts described in the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii), notwithstanding 
the 18-month spending exception (subject, however, to the other exceptions described in this 
Section 2). 

(3) 2-Year Exception. The rebate requirements of Section 1 will be 
considered to have been satisfied with respect the available construction proceeds of the Bonds, 
if (i) at least 75 percent of the available construction proceeds of the Bonds is used for 
construction expenditures with respect to property that is to be owned by a state or local 
governmental unit or 50l(c)(3) organization, and (ii) at least 10 percent of the available 
construction proceeds of the Bonds is spent for the governmental purpose of the Bonds within 6 
months of the Issue Date, at least 45 percent within 12 months of the Issue Date, at least 75 
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percent within 18 months of the Issue Date, I 00 percent of the available construction proceeds of 
the Bonds, excluding a reasonable retainage not exceeding 5 percent of the available construction 
proceeds of the Bonds, within 24 months of the Issue Date, and 1 00 percent of the available 
construction proceeds of the Bonds, including all retainages, within 36 months of the Issue Date. 
Payment of interest on the Bonds allocable to Bonds is treated for this purpose as an expenditure 
for the governmental purpose of the Bonds, and the payment of interest on the Bonds al1ocable to 
the Bonds that accrues before the date construction is substantially completed is treated as a 
construction expenditure, except to the extent properly allocable on a ratable basis to costs of 
acquiring or equipping, as opposed to constructing or renovating, the Project. The available 
construction proceeds of the Bonds include investment earnings (the actual investment earnings 
based on the election in paragraph lO(b) of the Nonarbitrage and Tax Compliance Certificate) 
with respect to investments in the Construction Fund. The rules with respect to the 2-year 
exception are set forth in Treas. Reg. §1.148-7(e). The rebate requirements apply to all gross 
proceeds of the Bonds as described in Section 1 of this Memorandum other than the available 
construction proceeds of the Bonds, notwithstanding the 2-year spending exception (subject, 
however, to the other exceptions described in this Section 2); provided, however, that the rebate 
requirements do not apply to the portion of the proceeds of the Bonds in the Construction Fund 
that is used to pay issuance costs if that portion is expended within 24 months of the Issue Date. 

( 4) Effect of Prepayments. In determining whether gross proceeds 
have been properly allocated to expenditures, a prepayment is treated as an investment, and not 
as an expenditure, if a principal purpose for prepaying is to receive an investment return from the 
time the prepayment is made until the time payment otherwise would be made. However, a 
prepayment is treated as an expenditure, and not as an investment, if (i) prepayments on 
substantially the same terms are made by a substantial percentage of persons who are similarly 
situated to the Issuer but who are not beneficiaries of tax-exempt financing, (ii) the prepayment is 
made within 90 days of the reasonably expected date of delivery of all of the property or services 
for which the prepayment is made, or (iii) the prepayment meets certain special rules that are 
applicable only to State and local government natural gas and electric utilities. 

(5) Spending Exceptions Not Mandatory. The 6-month, 18-month and 
2-year spending exceptions are not mandatory. For example, in computing the rebate 
requirements with respect to any investments allocable to subsequently arising gross proceeds 
described in Section 3 of this Memorandum, you may include investments allocable to gross 
proceeds of the Bonds in the Construction Fund, even if a spending exception applies. 

(6) Accounting for Expenditures; 18-Month Rule. For purposes of the 
spending exceptions, and for purposes of determining the dates of receipts on nonpurpose 
investments for the purposes described in Section 4(c)(2) of this Memorandum, you may use any 
reasonable accounting method for allocating funds from different sources to expenditures for the 
cost of the Project and costs of issuing the Bonds, including any of the following methods, if 
consistently applied: a specific tracing method; a gross proceeds spent first method; a first-in, 
first-out method; or a ratable allocation method. However, an allocation of gross proceeds of the 
Bonds to an expenditure must involve a current outlay of cash occurring not later than 5 banking 
days after the date as of which the allocation of gross proceeds to the expenditure is made. You 
must account for the allocation of proceeds to expenditures not later than 18 months after the 
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later of the date the expenditure is paid or the date the Project is placed in service. This 
allocation must be made in any event by the date 60 days after the First Required Payment Date 
(as defined in Section 4(a) of this Memorandum}. If you do not maintain books and records 
sufficient to establish that a particular allocation method was used, you will be deemed to have 
used a specific tracing method. For example, if you requisition the Construction Fund 
periodically for reimbursement of the cost of the Project and costs of issuing the Bonds that you 
have paid since the last requisition, you may treat Bond proceeds as having been expended either 
on the date on which you paid a contractor (simultaneously "deallocating" a corresponding 
amount in the Construction Fund from Bond proceeds) or on the date of the reimbursement. 
However, unless you establish within the IS-month period accounting records indicating that 
Bond proceeds were allocated to expenditures on the date of each contractor payment, the Bond 
proceeds will probably not be deemed to have been expended until the requisition date, which is 
a specific tracing method. 

3. Subsequently Arising Gross Proceeds. While it may not be anticipated that 
amounts other than the amounts described in Section 1 hereof will be deemed gross proceeds of 
the Bonds, if any amounts do become gross proceeds of the Bonds in the future (for example, 
upon a receipt of sale or insurance proceeds upon the sale or destruction of the Project and 
deposit of those proceeds in the Principal and Interest Fund such that the conditions of the 
exception described in 2(a) of this Memorandum will not be met), the excess of the actual 
aggregate amount earned on such resulting gross proceeds over the amount that would have been 
earned if the resulting proceeds of the Bonds had been invested at a yield equal to the yield on the 
Bonds, plus any income attributable to such excess, must also be rebated to the United States. 

4. Rebate Procedures. 

(a) Computation Dates. 

The procedures for satisfying the statutory rebate requirements under Section 
148(f) of the Code described in Section 1 above are set forth in final regulations at Treas. Reg. 
§§ 1.148-0 through -11 published in the Federal Register on June 18, 1993, as amended (the 
"Arbitrage Regulations"). In order to satisfy the minimum procedural requirements of the 
Arbitrage Regulations, you must compute the amount required to be paid to the United States as 
of the last day of each fifth Bond Year and as of the date on which the Bonds are finally retired, 
i.e., assuming that the Bonds remain outstanding to maturity, as of September 30, 2021, 
September 30, 2026, and April 1, 2027 (each a "Computation Date"). 1 The period between two 

A "Bond Year" is any consistently applied annual period designated by you. The first and last Bond 
Years may be short periods. This Memorandum assumes that you will choose to designate a Bond 
Year coinciding with the Issuer's fiscal year. You may also make more frequent provisional 
computations, e.g., as of the last day of each Bond Year, beginning September 30, 2017, and treat 
the date of each such computation as an additional "Computation Date." Annual computations are 
generally advisable and may be required by accounting standards relating to disclosure of contingent 
liabilities. 
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successive Computation Dates (or between the Issue Date and the first Computation Date) is 
referred to in this Memorandum as a "Computation Period"). 

Under the Code and the Arbitrage Regulations, the first rebate installment 
payment must be made for a Computation Date that is not later than 5 years after the Issue Date 
(the "First Required Payment Date"). Subsequent rebate installment payments must be made for 
respective Computation Dates each of which is not later than 5 years after the previous 
Computation Date for which an installment payment was made (subsequent "Required Payment 
Dates"). In this case, the First Required Payment Date is September 30, 2021, and the 
subsequent Required Payment Dates, assuming that the Bonds remain outstanding to maturity, 
are September 30, 2026, and April 1, 20272

• Each rebate payment must be made no later than 60 
days after the Required Payment Date to which it relates, and, if made within that 60-day period, 
is treated as made on that Required Payment Date. 

(b) Yield on the Bonds. 

The yield on the Bonds is 2.2429543% per annum, based on semiannual 
compounding and a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, as shown in paragraph 9 
of the Nonarbitrage and Tax Compliance Certificate. That yield applies for all purposes of this 
Memorandum and may not be recomputed to take into account any subsequent events, including, 
without limitation, any early redemption or any after-acquired credit enhancement. An exception 
exists only in the case of a transfer, waiver, modification, or similar transaction with respect to 
any right that is part of the terms of a bond of the Bonds or is otherwise associated with a bond of 
the Bonds (e.g., a redemption right), in a transaction that is separate and apart from the original 
sale of the Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an interest rate swap or other hedge transaction 
could cause the Bonds to be treated as a variable yield issue, which would require a 
redetermination of the yield as of each Computation Date. 

(c) Payments and Receipts on Nonpurpose Investments. 

You should establish a bookkeeping system for recording all payments and 
receipts on nonpurpose investments of amounts treated as gross proceeds of the Bonds as 
described above. The following special rules apply with respect to payments and receipts on 
nonpurpose investments: 

(1) Payments. The following payments are taken into account in the 
rebate computation: (i) amounts actually or constructively paid to acquire a nonpurpose 
investment (or treated as paid to a commingled fund); (ii) for a nonpurpose investment that is 
first allocated to the Bonds on a date after it is actually acquired (e.g., an investment that 

You may also treat an earlier Computation Date as the First Required Payment Date. For example, 
you may treat September 30, 2017 as the first Required Payment Date, in which case the remaining 
Required Payment Dates, assuming that the Bonds remain outstanding to maturity, would be 
September 30, 2022, and April 1, 2027. 
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becomes allocated to the Bonds on the Issue Date), or that becomes subject to the rebate 
requirement with respect to the Bonds on a date after it is actually acquired (same example), the 
fair market value of the investment on that date; (iii) for a nonpurpose investment that was 
allocated to the Bonds at the end of the preceding Computation Period, an amount equal to the 
value of that investment at the beginning of the Computation Period; (iv) on the last day of each 
Bond Year during which there are amounts allocated to the Bonds that are subject to the rebate 
requirement, and on the final maturity date (including a date on which all of the Bonds are 
redeemed prior to maturity), a computation credit of $1,0003

; and (v) any yield reduction 
payments on nonpurpose investments made pursuant to Treas. Reg. §1.148-5(c).4 

(2) Receipts. The following receipts are taken into account in the 
rebate computation: (i) amounts actually or constructively received from a nonpurpose 
investment (including amounts treated as received from a commingled fund), such as earnings 
and return of principal; (ii) for an investment that ceases to be allocated to the Bonds before its 
disposition or redemption date (e.g., in the case of a partial refunding of the Bonds) or that ceases 
to be subject to the rebate requirement on a date earlier than its disposition or redemption date 
(e.g., an investment transferred to the Principal and Interest Fund), the fair market value of that 
nonpurpose investment on that date; and (iii) for a nonpurpose investment that is held at the end 
of a Computation Period, the value of that investment at the end of that Computation Period. 

(3) Value of Investments. The value of an investment (including a 
payment or receipt on the investment) on a date must be detennined using one of the following 
valuation methods: 

(i) Outstanding Principal Amount. A "plain par investment" 
may be valued at its outstanding stated principal amount, plus any accrued unpaid interest. A 
"plain par investment" is defined with particularity in the Arbitrage Regulations and generally 
includes any conventional investment not issued with an original issue discount or premium 
exceeding 2 percent or acquired with a market discount or premium exceeding 2 percent. 

(ii) Present Value. A fixed rate investment may be valued at its 
present value. Yield-restricted investments must be valued at their present value. 

(iii) Fair Market Value. Except for yield-restricted 
investments, any investment may be valued at its fair market value, as more particularly 

Under proposed regulations issued September 26, 2007, the $1,000 computation credit would in­
crease to $1 ,400, further increased by a cost of living adjustment. Issuers may currently apply this 
proposed change to bond years ending after September 26, 2007. 

Treas. Reg. § 1.148-S(c) permits certain yield restriction requirements with respect to gross proceeds 
of a bond issue to be satisfied by making periodic yield reduction payments, similar to rebate 
payments, to the United States. Yield reduction payments have the effect of reducing the amount of 
rebatable arbitrage, as described here. 
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described in Section 5 of this Memorandum (certain other exceptions apply that are not expected 
to be applicable to the Bonds). 

(4) Qualified Administrative Costs. Qualified administrative costs are 
taken into account in determining payments and receipts on nonpurpose investments (i.e., as in­
creasing payments or decreasing receipts). Qualified administrative costs are reasonable, direct 
administrative costs, other than carrying costs, such as separately stated brokerage or selling 
commissions, but not legal and accounting fees, record keeping, custody, and similar costs. Gen­
eral overhead costs and similar indirect costs such as employee salaries and office expenses are 
not qualified administrative costs (except in the case of investments in regulated investment 
companies, which may pass through such indirect costs). Costs associated with computing the 
rebate amount also are not qualified administrative costs. In general, administrative costs are not 
reasonable unless they are comparable to administrative costs that would be charged for the same 
investment or a reasonably comparable investment if acquired with a source of funds other than 
gross proceeds of tax-exempt bonds. A broker's commission or similar fee with respect to a 
guaranteed investment contract or investments purchased for a yield restricted defeasance escrow 
is reasonable to the extent that (i) the amount of the fee that the Issuer treats as a qualified admin­
istrative cost does not exceed the lesser of (A) $30,000 and (B) 0.2% of the computation base or, 
if more, $3,000, and (ii) for the Bonds, the Issuer does not treat as qualified administrative costs 
more than $85,000 in brokers' commissions or similar fees with respect to all guaranteed invest­
ment contracts and investments for yield restricted defeasance escrows purchased with gross pro­
ceeds of the Bonds. The "computational base" is (i) for a guaranteed investment contract, the 
amount of gross proceeds the Issuer reasonably expects, as of the date the contract is acquired, to 
be deposited in the guaranteed investment contract over the term of the contract, and (ii) for in­
vestments (other than guaranteed investment contracts) to be deposited in a yield restricted de­
feasance escrow, the amount of gross proceeds initially invested in those investments. Certain 
cost of living adjustments described in Treas. Reg. § 1.148-5(e)(2}(iii)(B)(3) apply to the forego­
ing dollar amounts. 

(d) Computation of Rebate Amount. 

The rebate amount with respect to the Bonds as of each Computation Date is 
equal to the excess of the future value, as of that date, of all receipts on nonpurpose investments 
over the future value, as of that date, of all payments on nonpurpose investments. The future 
value is determined using the economic accrual method (i.e., compounding interest at the end of 
each compounding period) and equals the value of the payment or receipt when it is paid or 
received (or treated as paid or received), plus interest assumed to be earned and compounded 
over the period at a rate equal to the yield on the Bonds, compounding semiannually and 
calculating interest consistently with the Bonds. 

(e) Payments to the United States. 

( 1) Amount of Pavments. The amount required to be paid to the 
United States within 60 days after the First Required Payment Date is equal to 90 percent of the 
rebate amount as of the First Required Payment Date. The amount required to be paid to the 
United States within 60 days after each succeeding Required Payment Date, except the final 
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Required Payment Date, is equal to the amount that, when added to the future value (determined 
as described in (d) above, as of that Required Payment Date, of previous rebate payments made 
for the Bonds (treating such payments as made on the respective Required Payment Dates to 
which they relate, if the payments were timely), is equal to 90 percent of the rebate amount as of 
that Required Payment Date. The amount required to be paid to the United States within 60 days 
after the final Required Payment Date is equal to the amount that, when added to the future 
value, as of the final Required Payment Date, of previous rebate payments made for the Bonds, is 
equal to 1 00 percent of the rebate amount as of the final Required Payment Date. There is no 
provision for rounding of payments. 

(2) Where and How to Make Payments. Each payment to the United 
States should be filed with the Internal Revenue Service Center, Ogden, Utah 84201, 
accompanied by Form 8038-T. 

5. Fair Market Value. 

(a) In General. The fair market value of an investment is the price at which a 
willing buyer would purchase the investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm's-length 
transaction. Fair market value generally is determined on the date on which a contract to pur­
chase or sell the nonpurpose investment becomes binding (i.e., the trade date rather than the set­
tlement date). Except as provided below for certificates of deposit and guaranteed investment 
contracts, an investment that is not of a type that is traded on an established securities market is 
rebuttably presumed to be acquired or disposed of for a price that is not equal to its fair market 
value. 

(b) Certificates of Deposit. The purchase price of a certificate of deposit that 
has a fixed interest rate, a fixed payment schedule, and a substantial penalty for early withdrawal 
is treated as its fair market value on the purchase date if the yield on the certificate of deposit is 
not less than (i) the yield on reasonably comparable direct obligations of the United States and 
(ii) the highest yield that is published or posted by the provider to be currently available from the 
provider on reasonably comparable certificates of deposit offered to the public. 

(c) Guaranteed Investment Contracts and Investments Purchased for Yield Re-
stricted Defeasance Escrows. The purchase price of a guaranteed investment contract (which in­
cludes any nonpurpose investment that has specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment 
provisions and a specifically negotiated interest rate, and also includes any agreement to supply 
investments on two or more future dates, e.g., a forward supply contract) and the purchase price 
of an investment purchased for a yield restricted defeasance escrow is treated as its fair market 
value of the investment if all of the following requirements are satisfied: 

(1) The Issuer makes a bona fide solicitation for the purchase of the 
investment. A bona fide solicitation is a solicitation that satisfies all of the following require­
ments: 

(i) The bid specifications are in writing and are timely forward-
ed to potential providers. 

.g. 



(ii) The bid specifications include all material terms of the bid. 
A term is material if it may directly or indirectly affect the yield or the cost of the investment. 

(iii) The bid specifications include a statement notifying poten-
tial providers that submission of a bid is a representation that the potential provider did not con­
sult with any other formal or informal agreement that the potential provider has with the issuer or 
any other person (whether or not in connection with the bond issue), and that the bid is not being 
submitted solely as a courtesy to the Issuer or any other person for purposes of satisfying the re­
quirements of paragraph (2)(i) or (ii) below. 

(iv) The terms of the bid specifications are commercially rea-
sonable. A term is commercially reasonable if there is a legitimate business purpose for the term 
other than to increase the purchase price or reduce the yield of the investment. For example, for 
solicitations of investments for a yield restricted defeasance escrow, the hold finn period must be 
no longer than the issuer reasonably requires. 

{v) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts only, the 
terms of the solicitation take into account the Issuer's reasonably expected deposit and drawdown 
schedule for the amounts to be invested. 

(vi) All potential providers have an equal opportunity to bid. 
For example, no potential provider is given the opportunity to review other bids (i.e., a last look) 
before providing a bid. 

(vii) At least three reasonably competitive providers are solicit-
ed for bids. A reasonably competitive provider is a provider that has an established industry rep­
utation as a competitive provider of the type of investments being purchased. 

(2) The bids received by the Issuer meet all of the following require-
ments: 

(i) The Issuer receives at least three bids from providers that 
the Issuer solicited under a bona fide solicitation meeting the requirements of paragraph (1) 
above and that do not have a material financial interest in the Bonds. The lead underwriter is 
deemed to have a material financial interest in the Bonds until 15 days after the Issue Date. In 
addition, any entity acting as a financial advisor with respect to the purchase of the investment at 
the time the bid specifications are forwarded to potential providers has a material financial inter­
est in the Bonds. A provider that is a related party to a provider that has a material financial in­
terest in the Bonds is deemed to have a material financial interest in the Bonds. 

(ii) At least one of the three bids described in subparagraph (i) 
above is from a reasonably competitive provider, within the meaning of paragraph (l)(vii) above. 

(iii) If the Issuer uses an agent to conduct the bidding process, 
the agent did not bid to provide the investment. 



(3) The winning bid meets the following requirements: 

(i) Guaranteed Investment Contracts. If the investment is a 
guaranteed investment contract, the winning bid is the highest yielding bona fide bid (determined 
net of any broker's fees). 

(ii) Other Investments. If the investment is not a guaranteed 
investment contract, the following requirements are met: 

(A) The winning bid is the lowest cost bona fide bid 
(including any broker's fees). The lowest cost bid is either the lowest cost bid for the portfolio 
or, if the Issuer compares the bids on an investment-by-investment basis, the aggregate cost of a 
portfolio comprised of the lowest cost bid for each investment. Any payment received by the Is­
suer from a provider at the time a guaranteed investment contract is purchased (e.g., an escrow 
float contract) for a yield restricted defeasance escrow under a bidding procedure meeting there­
quirements of this subsection (c) is taken into account in determining the lowest cost bid. 

(B) The lowest cost bona fide bid (including any bro-
ker's fees) is not greater than the cost of the most efficient portfolio comprised exclusively of 
State and Local Government Series Securities from the United States Department of the Treas­
ury, Bureau of Public Debt. The cost of the most efficient portfolio of State and Local Govern­
ment Series Securities is to be determined at the time that bids are required to be submitted pur­
suant to the terms of the bid specifications. 

(C) If State and Local Government Series Securities 
from the United States Department of the Treasury, Bureau of Public Debt are not available for 
purchase on the day that bids are required to be submitted pursuant to terms of the bid specifica­
tions because sales of those securities have been suspended, the cost comparison under (B) above 
is not required. 

( 4) The provider of the investments or the obligor on the guaranteed 
investment contract certifies the administrative costs that it pays (or expects to pay, if any) to 
third parties in connection with supplying the investment. 

(5) The Issuer retains the following records with the bond documents 
until three years after the last outstanding Bond is redeemed: 

(i) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts, a copy of 
the contract, and for purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment contracts, the 
purchase agreement or confirmation. 

(ii) The receipt or other record of the amount actually paid by 
the Issuer for the investments, including a record of any administrative costs paid by the Issuer , 
and the certification under paragraph (4) above. 
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(iii) For each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and 
entity submitting the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results. 

(iv) The bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the purchase 
agreement or the guaranteed investment contract deviated from the bid solicitation form or a 
submitted bid is modified, a brief statement explaining the deviation and stating the purpose for 
the deviation. For example, if the Issuer purchases a portfolio of investments for a yield restrict­
ed defeasance escrow and, in order to satisfy the yield restriction requirements of Section 148 of 
the Code, an investment in the winning bid is replaced with an investment with a lower yield, the 
Issuer must retain a record of the substitution and how the price of the substitute investment was 
determined. If the Issuer replaces an investment in the winning bid portfolio with another in­
vestment, the purchase price of the new investment is not covered by the safe harbor unless the 
investment is bid under a bidding procedure meeting the requirements of this subsection (c). 

(v) For purchases of investments other than guaranteed invest-
ment contracts, the cost of the most efficient portfolio of State and Local Government Series Se­
curities, determined at the time that the bids were required to be submitted pursuant to the terms 
of the bid specifications. 

6. Modification of Requirements. None of the requirements of this Memorandum 
need be observed if the Issuer receives an opinion or opinions of nationally recognized bond 
counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Issuer, that the failure to observe the 
procedures set forth in this Memorandum will not cause the Bonds to become arbitrage bonds 
under Section 148 of the Code or otherwise adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the 
Bonds from the gross income of the owners thereof for purposes of federal income taxation. 
Conversely, it may become necessary in the future to follow additional or modified procedures 
described in the writing by nationally recognized bond counsel in order to ensure that the interest 
on the Bonds will not be included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

Please call us from time to time if you have questions relating to arbitrage rebate rules 
and procedures. 

Troy '1007--42J 1796190vl 
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EXHIBIT B 

CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER 

The undersigned is the original purchaser of the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, 
Oakland County, Michigan (the ••Drainage District") Drain Bonds, Series 2017, in the principal 
amount of $1,745,000 (the "Bonds"). In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the 
undersigned hereby certifies that it is purchasing the Bonds for its loan portfolio and has no 
present intention of reoffering or selling the Bonds to any person, firm or corporation. The 
undersigned is not acting in the capacity of broker, dealer, municipal securities underwriter, or 
financial advisor in connection with its purchase of the Bonds. 

The undersigned has experience in the municipal bond and note market, has knowledge 
and experience in financial and business matters and is capable of evaluating the merits and risks 
of the Bonds. The undersigned has had ample opportunity to request the information from the 
Drainage District and the County of Oakland relating to the Drainage District, the County of 
Oakland and the Bonds that the undersigned deems necessary in forming its decision to purchase 
the Bonds. 

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Bonds, in the principal amount of 
$1,745,000, from the Drainage District on the date hereof. 

CFC CAPITAL, INC. 

By: q~-~ 
Dated: April 20, 2017 

Troy 9007-423 1796211 v1 



CERTIFICATE OF CHAIRPERSON OF THE DRAINAGE BOARD 

I hereby certify that: 

1. I am the duly elected Water Resources Commissioner of the County of Oakland 
in the State of Michigan and that I am the Chairperson of the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine 
Drain. 

2. The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District has been established as an intra county 
drainage district pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 20 of Act No. 40, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1956, as amended. 

3. The foregoing is a complete and correct transcript of all the proceedings and 
records of the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain and the Board of Commissioners of the 
County of Oakland, the originals or certified copies of which are on file in my office, relating to 
the issuance and sale by the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District of its Drain Bonds, Series 2017, 
dated April 20, 2017 in the principal amount of $1 ,745,000. 

4. Said proceedings have not been rescinded, amended or modified in any manner 
whatsoever, except as set forth in said transcript, and that the time for reconsideration of such 
proceedings or filing notice thereof has expired. 

5. The facsimile signatures of Jim Nash and Michael J. Gingell appearing on the 
Bonds are those of the Chairperson and Member of the Drainage Board for the Dan Devine 
Drain. 

Dated: April 20, 2017 

Troy 9007-423 1796253v1 

JIM ASH, Oakland County Water 
Re ources Commissioner and Chairperson of the 
Drainage Board for the Dan Devine Drain 



CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY CLERK 

LISA BROWN hereby certifies that: 

1. I am the duly elected County Clerk of the County of Oakland in the State of 
Michigan. 

2. Miscellaneous Resolution # 17040 adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the 
County of Oakland (the "Board") on March 15, 2017, the original of which is on file in my 
office, relating to the issuance and sale by the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the 
"District") of its $1,745,000 Drain Bonds, Series 2017, dated April 20, 2017 (the "Bonds"), has 
not been rescinded, amended or modified in any manner. 

3. At the time of the adoption of the proceedings described in paragraph 2 hereof, 
the persons named therein as being members of the Board were the duly qualified and acting 
members of the Board. 

4. To my knowledge. no litigation of any nature is now pending, or to my 
knowledge threatened, seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance and delivery by the District of 
the Bonds or the imposition and collection of the special assessments by the District for payment 
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the imposition of taxes by the County of Oakland 
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or in any manner questioning the 
proceedings and authority under which the Bonds are issued, or the validity of the Bonds. 

5. To my knowledge, neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the District or 
the County of Oakland nor the title of the present officers of the District or the County Oakland 
to their respective offices is being contested and that no authority or proceedings for the issuance 
of the Bonds has been annulled, repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended. 

. ~ 

;/'AJIU Kf~--
LISA BROWN, Clerk 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan 

Dated: April 20, 2017 

BLOOMFIELD 9007-4231796258v1 



CERTIFICATE AND RECEIPT OF COUNTY TREASURER 

I hereby certify that: 

I. I am the Treasurer of the County of Oakland, Michigan (the "County"). 

2. The current valuation of all the taxable property in the County as equalized by the 
State of Michigan is $65,084,851,114. 

3. The taxable value of all taxable property in the County is $52,706,863,613. 

4. The County has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of contractual 
obligations to the Oakland County Building Authority and bonds and notes issued by the County 
and by drainage districts, which contractual obligations, bonds and notes are now outstanding in 
an aggregate amount not exceeding $746,651,515. 

5. The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, is designated bond 
registrar and paying agent for the Drain Bonds, Series 2017, dated April20, 2017 (the "Bonds"). 

6. The Bonds were delivered to CFC Capital, Inc., the purchaser thereof, on this 
date, that the Bonds have been paid for in full by the purchaser in accordance with the tenns of 
sale and that the said purchaser has fully complied with its contract for the purchase of the 
Bonds. 

Dated: April 20, 2017 

BLOOMFIELD 9007·4231796171v1 

~~.~ 
ANDREW E. MEISNER, Treasurer 
County of Oakland 



$1,745,000 
Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, 

Drain Bonds, Series 2017 

DEBT SERVICE §~HEDULE 

Total 
Date Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Annual Total 

10/01/17 $15,660.60 $15,660.60 $15,660.60 
04/01/18 $150,000.00 1.00% 17,508.75 167,508.75 
10/01118 16,758.75 16,758.75 184,267.50 
04/01/19 155,000.00 1.30% 16,758.75 171 ,758.75 
10/01/19 15,751 .25 15,751 .25 187,510.00 
04/01/20 160,000.00 1.55% 15,751 .25 175,751 .25 
10/01/20 14,511.25 14,511 .25 190,262.50 
04/01/21 165,000.00 1.80% 14,511.25 179,511.25 
10/01/21 13,026.25 13,026.25 192,537.50 
04/01/22 170,000.00 2.00% 13,026.25 183,026.25 
10/01/22 11 ,326.25 11,326.25 194,352.50 
04/01/23 175,000.00 2.15% 11 ,326.25 186,326.25 
10/01/23 9,445.00 9,445.00 195,771 .25 
04/01/24 185,000.00 2.30% 9.445.00 194,445.00 
10/01/24 7,317.50 7,317.50 201,762.50 
04/01/25 190,000.00 2.40% 7,317.50 197,317.50 
10/01/25 5,037.50 5,037.50 202,355.00 
04/01/26 195,000.00 2.50% 5,037.50 200,037.50 
10/01/26 2,600.00 2 ,600.00 202,637.50 
04/01/27 200,000.00 2.60% 2,600.00 202,600.00 202,600.00 

$1 745 000 00 $224 716 85 $1 969 716 85 $1.969,]16 85 

Dated Date: 04/20/17 Principal: $1 ,745,000.00 
Closing Date: 04/20/17 Accrued Interest: 0.00 
Arbitrage Yield: 2.22088% Credit Enhancement: 0.00 

Orig Issue Prem/(Oisc): 0.00 

il 74:2,CCC.CQ 

dmh\ 1 O-OAKDR46( dr) (2).xls 4/4/2017 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Rc: 

MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS 
INCORPORATED 

CLOSING MEMORANDUM 

Jim Nash, Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner, 248-858-0958 
Andrew Meisner, Oakland County Treasurer, 248-858-0624 
Natalie Neph, Oakland County Treasurer's Office, 248-858-7097 
Holly Conforti, Oakland County Fiscal Services, 248-858-0821 
Paul Wyzgoski, Dickinson Wright PLLC, 248-433-7255 
Diana Murphy, Dickinson Wright PLLC, 248-433-7213 
Ellen Campbell, The Huntington National Bank, 616-235-5941 
Patrick O'Donnell, The Huntington National Bank, 616-771-6210 
Kyle Fahrner, Chemical Bank, 989-839-5237 
Pavel Konecny, Chemical Bank, 989-839-5258 

Meredith Shanle, MFCI 313-884-1550 or 313-408-5990 

April 20, 201 7 

$1,745,000 Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Drain Bonds, Series 2017 

On Thursday, April 20, 2017 at approximately 10:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Savings 
Time, CFC CAPITAL, INC. (Chemical Bank) will wire transfer Federal Reserve Funds in the 
amount of $1,745,000 to the following wire instructions: 

Bank: 
ABA#: 
Acct #: 
Credit: 

PNC BANK 
041000124 
4255065437 
OC Treasurer Wire Transfer Account 

The $1,745,000 is comprised of the following: 

Par Amount of the Bond 
Amount Due at Closing 

$1.745.000.00 
$1,745,000.00 

Upon confirmation of receipt of proceeds, Dickinson Wright PLLC, bond counsel, will authorize 
The Huntington National Bank and CFC Capital, Inc. to release the bonds through the 
Depository Trust Company. 

Dmh.dr-oakdr46-47( 4-20-17) 



The Depository Trust Company 
A subsidiary of the Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation 

BLANKET ISSUER LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 
(To be completed by Issuer and Co-lssuer(s), IF applicable) 

Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, Oakland County, Michigan 

(Name oflssuer and Co-Issucr(s), ifapplicnblc) 

The Depository Trust Company 
570 Washington Blvd, 4th FL 
Jersey City, NJ 07310 
Attention: Underwriting Department 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Aprll20, 2017 
(Dale) 

This Jetter sets forth our understanding with respect to all issues (the "Securities") that 
lssuer shall request to be made eligible for deposit by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). 

Issuer is: (Note: Issuer shall represent one and cross out the other.) 

(~~ [formed under the laws of]_t_he_st_a_te_o_f_M_Ic_h_lg_a_n ________ _ 

To induce DTC to accept the Securities as eligible fo1· deposit at D TC, and to act in 
accordance with DTC's Rules with respect to the Securities, Issuer represents to DTC that issuer 
will comply with the requirements stated in DTC's Operational Arrangements, as they may be 
amended from time to time. 

~: 
Schedule A contains statements that DTC 
believes accumtely describe DTC, the method 
oroiT•c::lln8 boak-cnlry lrt~fl•r"r» oraccul'lllcs 

distributed through DTC, and certain related 

Very truly yours, 

matters. By:_-4'-1--=-=.;=.::=;:=;;;;::~~~~~~::-----

Jim Nash 
(Prinl Non~e) 

Building #95 West, One Public Works Drive 

(Sif~cl Ad~rcss) 

Waterford, Michigan USA 48328-1907 

(City) (Stole) (Country) (Zip Code) 

248-858-0958 
(Phone Nwnbcr) 

DTCC nashj@oakgov .com 
(E-mail Address) 

BLOR 06-2013 



SCHEDULE A 
(To Blanket Issuer Letter or Representations) 

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE 
DESCRIBING BOOI<-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE 

I l'rc:par~d by DTC ··bracketed motcrml may be apphcublc only to ccrtoin iuucs) 

L The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York. NY, will act as securities depository for the 
securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name ns may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC. One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the 
aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. (If, however, the aggregate principal 
amount of[ any] issue exceeds SSOO mill ion, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of 
principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remnining principal amount of such 
issue.} 

2. DTC, the world's largc:st securities depositoty, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under 
the New York Banking Law, a "ban king organization" within the meaning oft he New York Banking Law, a 
mernber oft he Federal Reserve System, a "clearing c orporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform 
Commercial Code, and a ''cl curing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. 
equity issues, corporate and municipnl debt issues, and money market instruments (from over l 00 countries) that 
DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among 
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized 
book-entry transfers and pledges betwec:n Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical 
movement of securities cc11ificatcs. Dirc:ct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of TI1e Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"}. DTCC is the holding company for DTC, 
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered 
clearing agencies. DTC C is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and 
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly (" Indirect Participants"). DTC has o Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable 
to its Participants arc on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More infom1ation about DTC can be 
found at www.dtcc.com. 

3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a crt:dit for the Securities on DTC 's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 
.:uch Scc:urll)' ("BcncOc:lul Owner") Is In turu lo be recorde d on the Dirccl QOd lndia·ocl PQrticipanla' records. 

Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, 
however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transnction, as well as periodic 
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Securities arc to be accomplished by entries made on the 
books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates rc:presenting their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system 
for the Securities is discontinued. 

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, oil Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the nnme of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede &. Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC. TI1e deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & 
Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the 
actual Bencficinl Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity ofth c Direct Participants to 
whose accounts such Sl!curities an: credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and 
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

BLOR 06-2013 
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SCHEDULE A 
(To Blanket Issuer Letter ofRepresentntions) 

5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Dil'ect Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take ce11nin steps to augment the transmission to them of 
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such os redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed 
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that 
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. 
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that 
copies of notices be provided directly to them.] 

[6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. lflcss thnn all of the Securities within nn issue nrc being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to 
be redeemed.] 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy 
assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities arc 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, nnd dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede 
& Co .• or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice Is to 
credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds nnd corresponding detail information from Issuer 
or Agent, on payable date in accord once with their respective holdings shown on DT C' s records. Payments by 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case 
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend 
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is 
the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of 
Direct and Indirect Participants. 

(9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its 
f>urticipant, to [Ten dcr/Rcmnrkctina] 1\uent, nnd sh111l effect delivery of such Socuritio• by cousins the Direct 
Participant to transfer the Paniciptmt's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tendcr/Remarketing] Agent. 
The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase 
will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are lronsfcrred by Direct Participants on DTC's 
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC accounl.] 

I 0. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is 
not obtained, Security certificates arc required to be printed and delivered. 

II. Issuer may decide to discontinue usc of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

BLOR 06-2013 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of tram.fer, exchange. or 
payment. and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co .• has an interest herein. 

R-1 

INTEREST RATE 

1.00% 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2018 April 20, 2017 235770 AA2 

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount: *****$150,000***** 

The Dan Devine Drain Dra~Poi~~J M ifihltrict"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October I, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tntst Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER. PLEDGE. OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

R-2 

INTEREST RATE 

1.30% 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April l, 2019 April20, 2017 235770 ABO 
\ 

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount: *****$155,000***** 

SPEC~ MEN 
The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 

State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository TntSt Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

R-3 

INTEREST RATE 

1.55% 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2020 April 20, 2017 235770 AC8 

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount: *****$t6@¥*f~ C I ME ~J 
The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 

State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office ofThe Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close ofbusiness on the 151

1t day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tntst Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer. exchange. or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE. OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co .• has an interest herein. 

R-4 

INTEREST RATE 

1.80% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2021 April 20, 2017 235770 AD6 

CEDE &CO. 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October l, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tntst Company. a 
New York corporation ("DTC'?, to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER. PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

R-5 

INTEREST RATE 

2.00% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2022 April 20, 2017 235770 AE4 

CEDE&CO. 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office ofThe Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close ofbusiness on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of Tire Depository TntSt Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to tire Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

R-6 

INTEREST RATE 

2.15% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2023 April20, 2017 235770 AFI 

CEDE &CO. 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October I, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless tlris Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tntst Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC''), to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE. OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as tire registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co .. has an illlerest herein. 

R-7 

INTEREST RATE 

2.30% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2024 April 20, 2017 235770 AG9 

CEDE &CO. 

*****$185,0Q:Q~~~~"i= ,(' w M i 
~:::t=- i:vuH, =EN 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 151

h day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
Districes obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tnfst Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange. or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER. PLEDGE. OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

INTEREST RATE 

2.40% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

Aprill, 2025 April20, 2017 235770 AH7 

CEDE&CO. 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office ofThe Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 151

h day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company. a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer. exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and a11y payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC). ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

R-9 

INTEREST RATE 

2.50% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE 

April 1,2026 April20,2017 

CEDE&CO. 

CUSIP 

235770 AJ3 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office of The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 15111 day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 201 7. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Tntst Company, a 
New York corporation ("DTC'~. to the Drainage District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF 
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner 
hereof. Cede & Co .. has an interest herein. 

R-10 

INTEREST RATE 

2.60% 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

DRAIN BOND, SERIES 2017 

MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 

April 1, 2027 April20, 2017 235770 AKO 

CEDE&CO. 

The Dan Devine Drain Drainage District (the "Drainage District"), County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, acknowledges itself indebted to and for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set 
forth above on the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of this bond 
at the corporate trust office ofThe Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, Michigan, the bond 
registrar and paying agent, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be 
designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered 
Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the 151

h day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon 
and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the 
Registered Owner at the registered address, interest on such Principal Amount until the Drainage 
District's obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable on the first day of April and October in each 
year, commencing on October 1, 2017. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. lnterest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months. 



This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of One Million Seven 
Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($1, 745,000) issued by the Drainage District under and 
pursuant to and in full confonnity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially Act 
No. 40, Public Acts of 1956, as amended), a bond authorizing resolution adopted by the 
Drainage Board for the Drainage District (the "Resolution") and an order of the Chairperson of 
the Drainage Board for the purpose of defraying part of the cost of acquiring and constructing the 
Dan Devine Drain. The bonds of this series are issued in anticipation of, and the principal and 
interest on the bonds are payable from, special assessments assessed against the Charter 
Township of Bloomfield (the "Township") and the County of Oakland (the "County"), on 
Special Assessment Roll No. 1 for the Dan Devine Drain (an intra-county drain), which 
assessments are the general obligations of said public corporations. The full faith and credit of 
the Township and the County have been pledged for the making of such payments. The full faith 
and credit of the Drainage District have been pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of 
and interest on this bond as the same become due and, in addition, the full faith and credit of the 
County have been pledged therefore. Taxes imposed by the Township for the payment of special 
assessments are subject to constitutional, statutory and charter tax rate limitations. Taxes 
imposed by the County for payment of special assessments and the bonds are subject to 
constitutional and statutory tax rate limitations. 

This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the 
Drainage District kept for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the 
surrender of this bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond 
registrar and paying agent duly execpted by ~he Regi~tered~Owner qr his attorney duly authorized 
in writing. Upon the exchange or~~ftr 2!_~bq~d.i~~eW ~o~b or bonds of any authorized 
denomination, in the same aggregate principal amount anJ or-The same interest rate and maturity, 
shall be authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefore as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided. Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 

This bond is not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to 
exist, happen and be perfonned precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, 
existed, have happened and have been perfonned in due time, form and manner as required by 
law, and that the total indebtedness of said Drainage District, including the series of bonds of 
which this bond is one, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

-2-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, by its Drainage Board, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by the 
manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and at least one other member of the Drainage 
Board. This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by the bond registrar and paying agent or an authorized representative of the bond 
registrar and paying agent. 

DAN DEVINE DRAIN DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

Member of the Drainage Board 

-3-



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 

THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 

By: 
Authorized Representative 

AUTHENTICATION DATE: April 20, 2017 

-4-



ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

(please print or type name, address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within 
bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

Dated: ------------------

Signature Guaranteed: 

Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association ree~zed]sigiJ&t\!I'e gu~tee~rlf]gram. 

~ ~~ • "" " ~ ~ u ~ .:t;- n.~ ·-~ ~ 
WiJ b~Y cVJ IL.a u 

Troy 9007·423 1807385v1 

-S-
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DICKINSONrvRIGHTPLLC 

2600 WES T 810 BEAVER ROAD, SUITE 100 
TROY , Ml 48084 -3312 
TELEPIIONE (248) 433 ·12 00 
FACSIMILE: (844 } 670-60 09 
hllp 1/www dickinsonw rlsht .cu m 

PAUL M , WYZOOSKI 

PWyzgoski@dickin$onwri ght . c om 
(248) 433 - 7255 

April 20, 2017 
Via First Class Mail 

Mr. Harlan Goodrich 
Michigan Department ofTreasury 
Local Audit and Finance Division 
430 West Allegan Street, 1st Floor 
Lansing, Michigan 48922 

Re: $1,745,000 Dan Devine Drain Drainage District Drain Bonds, 
Series 2017 

Dear Mr. Goodrich: 

Please be advised that the referenced bonds were delivered to CFC Capital, Inc. (the 
"Purchaser") on April 20, 2017. Enclosed for filing pursuant to Section 319( 1) of Act No. 34, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, please find a completed Security Report and a check 
made payable to the State of Michigan in the amount of $349, along with the following 
documents: 

1. Minutes of Meeting re Bond Resolution; 
2. Proposal Acceptance Proceedings; 
3. Bond Counsel Opinion Letter; and 
4. Specimen Bond. 

There was no notice of sale published or official statement prepared for this transaction. 
The bonds were sold pursuant to a request for proposal, and the Purchaser purchased the bonds 
for its own investment portfolio and did not require an official statement. 

Please call if you have any questions or need any further information. 

PMW/dml 
Enclosures 

Troy 9007-423 1806901v1 

ARIZONA FLORIDA KENTUCKY 

OHIO TCNNESSEE TEXAS 

Very truly yours, 

(JJ)V"l!"~ ' 
Paul M. Wyzgoski 

MICHIGAN 

TORONTO 

NEVADA 

WASHINGTON DC 



Michigan Department of Treasury 
3892 (2·02) 

Security Report 
Issued under Aulhorlly of Public Acl 34 of 2001 . 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

OebtType Debt Kind 

INSTRUCTIONS. File this report within 15 business days of completing issuance of any municipal securities. Mall this form to Local 
Audit and Finance Division, Michigan Department of Treasury, P.O. Box 30728, Lansing, Ml48909-8228. Direct questions to 
(517) 373-0660 or e-mail to TREAS LAFD@michigan.gov. 

ISSUE INFORMATION 
Issuer Name Dan Devine Drain Drainaqe District, ~~Name of Issue 

OaklandCountv. Mi Dr~ ,Jn Bonds. _Series 2012 
Amounl of l!lsue D>~IP.rl O>~IA nf ~~~~~~~ leoal Auttlorllv IPubllc Act\ 

$1 ,745,000 April 20, 2017 Chapter 20 of Act 40 PA of 1g55 
Purpose 

~o defray the cost of acquiring the Dan Devine Drain 

Full Faith and Credit P1edce First Call Dale ~ate Sold ~et Interest Rate 

~ Limited Te• 0 Unlimited Ta• 0 None N/A April 4, 2017 2.25% 

~heck All That Apply 

D Voted 0 Sch ool Bond Fund Qualified D Special Education Funded 0 Vocational Education Funded 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION Include all Municipalities that are resoonslble for re ~Yment of security. 
I Name % Participation % Revenue % Taxes 
1--

Charter Township of West Bloomfield 73.293% 0 .00% 73.293% 

~ounty of Oakland 15.236~ 0.00% 15.236% 

icounty of Oakland - full faith and credit pledge 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 

I I I I 
MATURITY SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Interest Rate Date Principal Interest Rate 

04/01/18 $150,000 1.00% 

04/01/19 155,000 1.30% 

04/01/20 160,000 1.55% 

04/01/21 165,000 1.80% 

04/01/22 170,000 2.00% 

04/01/23 175,000 2.15% 

04/01/24 185,000 2.30% I 

04/01/25 190,000 2.40% 

04/01/26 195,000 2.50% 

04/01/27 200,000 2.60% 
Troy 9007-423 1806703v1 
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QICKINSONfRlGHTmc 

=:Chase~n~,~-~---.. -- --~- ··--·---· -·By;;~;; ;·~
4

~~ 

9-321720 

---------COUNSELORS AT LAW---------
2600 WEST BIG BEAVER ROAD • SUITE 300 • TROY, Ml 48084 

PAY 

TO THE 
ORDER 
OF 

THREE HUNDRED FORTY-NINE AND 00/100 Dollars 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
430 WEST ALLEGAN STREET, FIRST FLOOR 
LANSING, Ml48922 

DATE 

n• ~ 5(; ~ 30n' •:o? 2000 ~ 2(;•: 388 5 2111 

Tf11S CHECK IS IN PAYMENT OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS: 

DATE DESCRIPTION 

4202017 04/2012017 009007·00423, 0431, 11, Pick up Paul M. WyzgosSS8606 

0JCKJNSONlVVRJGHTmc 

B 356330 TROY, MICHIGAN 48084 

356330 

04/17/2017 AMOUNT 

$ 349.00 

U.S.A. 

DETACH BEFORE DEPOSmNG 
ACCOUNT NO. NET AMOUNT 

2500010000 349.00 

349.00 

~ 

~ 
~ 
.!! 

~ 
ff .. 
~ . 
~ 
= 
.! 
~ 

u 
0 



u.s. Postal Service":' , ·. · · · · 
CERTIFIED MAIL<!? RECEIPT .. 
Domestic Mall Only • 



AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

DONNA M. LEFEVER, being first duly sworn, says that she enclosed in an envelope a 
copy of the IRS FORM 8038-G for: 

Re: $1,745,000 County of Oakland Dan Devine Drain Drainage District Drain Bonds, 
Series 2017 

a copy of which IRS Fonn 8038-G is attached, sealed the envelope, and addressed the envelope 
to INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CENTER, OGDEN, UTAH 84201, and caused the same 
to be deposited in a mail receptacle maintained by a United States post office located in Troy, 
Michigan 48084-3312 on the 201

h day of April, 2017. 

Affiant further states that she caused to be placed such amount of postage on the envelope 
as is required by the postal regulations to penn it passage of the envelope by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, article no. 7016 1970 0000 4846 1631. 

Affiant further states that the following return address was on the envelope: 

Paul M. Wyzgoski, Esq. 
Dickinson Wright PLLC 
2600 West Big Beaver Rd., Ste. 300 
Troy, MI 48084-3312 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
on the 20T11 day of April, 2017 

0 ARY PUBLIC, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires: r o I .9. 't:S I ao I C, 
Acting in Oakland County 

Troy 9007-423 1816852v1 



Form8038•G I 
Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations 

I 

(Rev. September 2011) .,.. Under lntemal Revenue Code section 149le) OMB No. 1545·0720 

Department of the Treasury 
.,.. See separate lnstrucUons. 

Internal Revenue Service Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC. 

.:F.rii •• Reporting Authority If Amended Return, check here ~ r 
1 Issuer's name 2 Issuer's employer ldentltleation number (EIN) 

Dan Devine Drain Drainage District, County of Oakland, Michigan 38·6004876 
3;~ Name of person (other than Issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see Instructions) I 3b Telephone rn.~mber of other person shown on 3a 

i 

4 Number and street (or P 0 . box If maills not delivered to street address) I Room/sule 5 Report number (For IRS Use Only) 

One Public Works Drive, Building 95 West 13 1:"1:::1 
6 Clly, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Oato of Issue 

Waterford, Ml 48328·1907 04/20/2017 
B Name of Issue 9 CUSIP number 

Drain Bonds, Series 2017 235770 AKO 
10a Name attd Iit ie of officer or other emp oyea of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more Information (seo lOb Telephone number of officer or otiler 

instructions) employee shown on 10a 

Jim Nash, Chairperson of Drainage Board 248·858·0958 
I:F.riitllll Type of Issue (enter the issue price). See the lnstrucrons and attach schedule. 
11 Education . . 11 
12 Health and hospital 12 
13 T ransportalion 13 
14 Public safety • 14 
15 Environment [Including sewage bonds) 15 1,745,000 00 
16 Houslng 16 
17 Utilities . 17 
18 Other. Describe ~ 18 
19 If obligations are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a ~ r 1:!:1;''• w• 

If obligations are BANs, check only box 19b ~ r: ~:, 
20 If obligations are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box ~0 

ill ;..;, .!(~'. _ ... :~~~ 
:I:F.riilll II Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed. 

(c) Stated redemption (d) Weighted 
(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price price at maturity average maturity 

21 04/01/2027 $ 1,745,000 $ 1,745,000 5.718 vears 
I:F.Tilll 

~·· Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters' discount) 
22 Proceeds used for accrued interest 
23 Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b)) 
24 Proceeds used for bond ssuance costs (inc uding underwriters' discount) . 24 28,175 

25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement 25 ·0· 
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonabty required reserve or replacement fund 26 .o. 
27 Proceeds used to currently refund prior issues 27 ·0· 
28 Proceeds used to advance refund prior issues 28 .o. 
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . 
30 Nonrefund1ng proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here) 

l::r.ri&'.4111 Descriptionof Refunded Bonds. Complete thispart only for refundina bonds. 
31 Enter the remaining weighted average matunty of the bonds to be currently refunded . 
32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the bonds to be advance refunded . 
33 Enter the last date on which the refunded bonds w ill be called (MM/DD/YYYY} 
34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued ~ IMMIOOIYYYYI 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat No. 637735 

00 

~ 

~ 

~ 

(e) Yield 

2.2429 % 

22 ·0· 
23 1,745,000 00 

; 
·~ 
_.,. 
29 28,175 00 

30 1,716,825 00 

years 
years 

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9·2011) 



Form 8038-G [Rev. 9-2011) Page2 

I ::F.1ii a.' Jl Miscellaneous 
35 Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue un dar section 141 (b)(S) 35 -0· 
36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds Invested or to be invested In a guaranteed investment contract ""l 

.-~-
(GIC) (see instructions) 36a ·0· 

b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC..,.. 
-r. 

l 

c Enter the name of the GIC provider..,.. 
~ 37 Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans ~ 

to other governmental units . 37 ·0· 
38a If this issue IS a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt 1ssue, check box ..,.. 0 and enter the follow1ng mformatlon: 

b Enter the date of the master pool obligation ..,.. -:---~-----------------
c Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool obligation..,.. ----------------
d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool obligation..,.. ---------------:-----

39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(lll) (small issuer exception), check box 
40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box . . . • . . . . . 
41a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here..,.. 0 and enter the following information: 

b Name of hedge provider..,.. 

c Type of hedge..,.. -----------------­
d Term of hedge..,.. ------------------

.... 

.... 
0 
0 

42 If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • ..,.. 0 
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated 

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . . . . . . ..,.. 0 
44 If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box . . . 
45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here..,.. 2:1 and enter the amount 

.... 0 

of reimbursement . . . . . . . . ..,.. $317,058.03 
b Enter the date the official intent was adopted ..,.. ...:J...::u""ly'-1.:....:6;.:.' .::.20.:....:1...:3 _____________ _ 

Signature 
and 
Consent 

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only 38·1364333 

248·433-7255 

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9·2011) 
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